
 
TUCSON SUPPLEMENTAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Notice of Regular Meeting / Agenda 

 
DATE:  Thursday, August 27th, 2015  
TIME:  8:30 a.m.       
PLACE: Finance Department Conference Room, 5th floor  

      City Hall, 255 West Alameda 
    Tucson, Arizona 85701 

 
 

A. Consent Agenda  
 
1. Approval of July 30, 2015 TSRS Board Meeting Minutes 
2. Retirement ratifications – August 2015  
3. July 2015 TSRS expenses compared to budget 

 
B. Investment Activity Report 

 
1. Introduction to Art Cuaron 
2. Champlain Investment Partners – Annual Manager Review – Judy O’Connell, Scott Brayman 
3. Economic Update – Callan Associates  
4. June 30, 2015 TSRS Performance Summary - Callan Associates -  Paul Erlendson, Gordon Weightman 
5. TSRS Portfolio composition, transactions and performance review for 07/31/15  
 

C. Disability Retirement Application – Gina Callen* 
 

D. Administrative Discussions 
 

1. Discussion of treatment for non-trust related expenses  
 

E. Articles for Board Member Education / Discussion 
 
1. The Balance between Crude Oil Supply and Demand (Causeway Capital Management , August 14, 2015)  
2. NIRS bites back on pensions report (Employee Benefit Adviser, August 20, 2015) 
 

F. Call to Audience  
 

G. Future Agenda Items    
 

H. Adjournment  
 

 
 
Please Note: Legal Action may be taken on any agenda item       
 
* Pursuant to ARS 38-431.03(A)(3) and (4): the board may hold an executive session for the purposes of obtaining legal advice from an attorney or attorneys 
for the Board or to consider its position and instruct its attorney(s) in pending or contemplated litigation. The board may also hold an executive session 
pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.03(A)(2) for purposes of discussion or consideration of records, information or testimony exempt by law from public inspection. 



1 

TUCSON SUPPLEMENTAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Meeting minutes from Thursday, July 30, 2015 

Members Present: Robert Fleming, Chairman  
Kevin Larson, City Manager Appointee
Curry Hale, HR Director  
Silvia Amparano, Director of Finance  
Michael Coffey, Elected Representative 
Jorge Hernández, Elected Representative 
John O’Hare, Elected Retiree Representative 

Staff Present: Dave Deibel, Deputy City Attorney 
Silvia Navarro, Treasury Administrator 
Michael Hermanson, Plan Administrator 
Dawn Davis, Administrative Assistant 

Guests Present: Catherine Langford, Yoder & Langford, P.C. 
Leslie Thompson, Gabriel, Roeder, Smith & Company (via telephone) 

Absent/Excused: None 

A. Consent Agenda 

1. Welcome Jorge Hernandez, new TSRS Board member

Item A1 was considered separately at the request of John O’Hare. The Board formally welcomed Jorge 
Hernández. 

2. Approval of June 25, 2015 TSRS Board Meeting Minutes
3. Retirement ratifications - July 2015
4. June 2015 TSRS expenses compared to budget

A motion to approve Consent Agenda items A2 – A4 was made by Chairman Fleming and passed by a 
vote of 5 – 0 (Silvia Amparano absent, Chairman Fleming did not vote). 

B. Administrative Discussions 

1. Determination Letter Renewal / Discussion of Proposed TSRS Code Changes – Cassie Langford

Catherine Langford explained this item relates to taking this opportunity to make minor adjustments to the Plan 
document in conjunction with application to the IRS for a determination letter renewal. The determination letter 
application process requests the IRS to review the Plan document (Tucson City Code) and determine if it 
meets the standards necessary for a tax qualified plan. The application is language based only; the IRS will not 
audit to see if the Board is operating in compliance with any laws, it is only about documentation. TSRS is 
required to submit for a determination letter renewal by the end of January 2016. The IRS will soon be 
suspending this five year renewal program, so this will probably be the last time TSRS will have to submit a 
determination letter application, and from here we will be on our own for maintaining the Code to keep it in 
compliance with the tax laws. Currently, our determination letter means if the IRS audits the plan they cannot 
criticize the language in the Code because the Board has a determination letter proving that the IRS has 

Item A1



 

2 

 

approved the language contained therein; in the future the Board will not have that protection. Ms. Langford 
said there are no compliance changes necessary, just administrative issues that can be fine-tuned or clarified 
to address issues the Board has encountered since the last Code revisions were completed in 2009:  
 
Funding Policy - Chapter 22-30(h) (statutory authority for Rounding Policy) - the code currently requires the 
City to appropriate an employer contribution defined as the Annual Required Contribution (ARC); expressed in 
current terminology as the Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC). The ARC is defined in the Code as the 
employer contribution from the City plus the member contributions. Over the last few years, as the Board has 
been making the funding and the rounding policies, they have been recommending to the Mayor and Council 
that the City contribute an amount in excess of the ARC because the rounding policy takes the dollar amount 
slightly above the ARC calculated by the actuary based on the straight actuarial requirements. This proposed 
change to the Code would incorporate the Board’s funding policies into the Code and therefore what the City is 
required to appropriate, and give the Board statutory authority to have adjustments beyond what the actuary 
calculated. 
 
Michael Coffey asked if the Board had a rounding policy in practice. 
 
Michael Hermanson answered yes because the current funding policy incorporates a rounding approach that is 
applied (added) to the recommended employee and employer contribution rates. 
 
Mr. Coffey clarified; the sole effect of this revision was to incorporate that rounding policy into the Code? 
 
Ms. Langford answered yes because the rounding policy currently in place is designed to level out contribution 
fluctuations for both the City and the plan members, adding stability to the rates. If the Board adopts this 
change, the rounding policy becomes a part of the annual calculations just like the actuarial factors already 
take into account.  
 
John O’Hare asked if a goal of the rounding policy was fully funding the plan within 16 years? 
 
Mr. Hermanson answered full funding of the plan is projected to occur by 2028 or 2029, but that target can 
vary, depending on what the Plan’s annual experiences are. The basic strategy behind rounding up 
contribution rates is to accelerate the funding by adding a slight amount to the contribution amounts paid into 
the plan, which in turn pays off the unfunded liabilities quicker. 
 
Ms. Langford explained the funding policy language has stated intent to reach full funding but does not include 
hard wired requirements to reach those funding targets because things change annually. There is some 
flexibility for the Board because they control the funding policy, so as the funding policy changes over time this 
language incorporates those changes into the Code.  
 
Mr. Hermanson said in essence the Board has transitioned from a funding policy based solely on the ARC to 
one that has an additive element of rounding up the rates.  
 
Ms. Langford explained the last time they performed Code revisions all of the defined terms were tied to the 
actuarial valuation performed every year, and the ARC was divided between the City and member 
contributions; now there is another piece because the Board is using the funding policy. The funding policy is 
also where they capture the amortization period and open vs. closed. All of those factors have been used over 
time but they have not been incorporated directly into the Code through incorporation of the funding policy. 
 
Kevin Larson said he thought of the ARC as an actuarial accounting calculation, which is defined by the first 
sentence of §22-30(h): “’Annual Required Contribution’ or ‘ARC’ means the annual amount necessary to fund 
all employee segment normal cost amounts plus the amount necessary to satisfy the annual amortization 
requirements for the System’s unfunded accrued liability, as determined by the system actuary in accordance 
with sound actuarial principles, and as set by the Board on a fiscal year basis.” When the funding policy 
concept is included they are changing the definition so that the funding policy is a part of the ARC. Instead of 



 

3 

 

trying to add it or change the ARC definition would it be better to say the ARC may be modified or increased by 
the Board to meet certain funding objectives, making it additive to the ARC instead of a part of the ARC.  
 
Ms. Langford said the first sentence is the definition, and the reason she was trying to incorporate the funding 
policy into the definition was because the term funding policy is tied to the appropriation requirement. It could 
be made clearer that the ARC is the ARC with an additive element but it would require more changes to the 
Code, which could ultimately be more confusing. 
 
Silvia Amparano said when she explained the rounding policy to the Mayor and Council they liked that they 
were contributing more than was required, which has been a selling point for them to show they are supportive 
of the plan. She liked giving them that flexibility to decide what they want to do. The ARC has been the 
required minimum for a long time and changing that may have a negative effect on the opinion of Mayor and 
Council. She recognized that she was speaking from the point of view of the Finance Director as opposed to a 
Board Member, but she was not inclined to include the funding policy as a part of the required minimum 
because she did not want to have that kind of flexibility at the Board level instead of at the Mayor and Council 
level.  
 
Ms. Langford stated that was a good point because this was definitely an instance in which the Board 
perspective would differ from the City’s perspective.  
 
Mr. Hermanson explained the Board wanted to maintain their fiduciary control over the funding of the plan. 
Mayor and Council do not have that control; they have control over other factors but not the funding policy.  
 
Ms. Langford said the Board has decided to use the rounding policy for the last few years as a part of the 
funding policy. As it stands now the Mayor and Council can reject any recommendation including any 
additional dollar amount resulting from the funding policy. This revision gives statutory authority to the Board’s 
funding policy. From the Board’s perspective, believing in the funding policy and the goals of the rounding 
policy, the goal was to put as much authority behind the funding policy as possible. This Code revision may not 
be approved at the level of Mayor and Council so the question is whether the Board wants to advance it.  
 
Leslie Thompson calculates the ARC, and the funding policy contribution which incorporates the rounding 
policy. The funding policy contribution provides the recommendation from the Board to Mayor and Council 
every year, so the Code must have language that allows the actuary to calculate the funding policy 
contribution. She expressed concern with the Code language because the annual amortization requirements 
are determined based on the funding policy, which represents sound actuarial principles. The funding policy is 
not superseded with anything she feels is more sound, she just follows the funding policy. 
 
Ms. Langford answered the only new language is the bolded words in the revision draft. The language in 
question was already in the Code. The language predates the formal funding policy put in writing in December 
2014. The Code says “in accordance with sound actuarial principles, and as set by the Board on a fiscal year 
basis.” Because the GASB language is changing, the Board may want to revise the Code on a more wholesale 
level to use an Actuarially Determined Contribution definition so that the new language would fit the current 
actuarial process.  
 
Ms. Thompson says the Code needs to be specific enough that she can produce the numbers the Board 
needs, while keeping it vague enough that the Board can change the funding policy as needed without having 
to perform another Code revision.  
 
Ms. Langford said those were funding policy questions. If there was a consensus from the Board about adding 
the funding policy to the Code, she and Ms. Thompson could work together to determine a long standing and 
appropriate language.  
 
Chairman Fleming confirmed the revisions provided were for informational purposes and that the Board would 
not be taking any formal action at this meeting. 



 

4 

 

 
Ms. Langford confirmed this was correct; the revisions presented were for the purpose of discussion at this 
meeting. 
 
The Board gave the consensus that the policy should expressly require the City to contribute at a level set by 
the funding policy, which includes the rounding policy. 
 
Final Leave Cash Outs - Tier 1 Members - §22-30(i) (clarification) Ms. Langford said the 2nd revision was 
included mainly for clarification. The definition of Average Final Monthly Compensation (AFMC) says for tier I 
members; leave cash outs may be included. The new language would mean that it will be included if it does 
not decrease the AFMC.  
 
Mr. Coffey asked how it was possible for the leave cash out to decrease the AFMC. 
 
Mr. Hermanson answered there has been a question when a member’s current pay rate, as can be the case 
with demotions, is lower than the AFMC and this can dilute the average final monthly compensation. 
 
Disability Benefits - Chapter 22-30(jj)  (SSA determination as evidence; application timing changes) Ms. 
Langford explained the 3rd revision relates to disability benefits and was a compilation of suggestions based on 
some of the disability applications the Board has reviewed over the last few years and the difficulties that have 
arisen when the appropriate answer was not obvious. §22-30(jj) is the definition within the Code of a total and 
permanent disability. Historically the Code has used language to indicate a member is entitled to a disability 
pension if they were permanently disabled. In 2009, the rewrite included language that the disability was a 
condition expected to last for a continuous period of not less than 12 months. This language was not intended 
to set the bar at 12 months and 1 day, it was meant to show a long term condition. Some examples have 
shown it is not always clear what is going to happen if a member is going to be disabled for 2 or 3 years, but 
not permanently, and she thought it was appropriate to move the language back to a permanent standard. This 
was the first piece of the definition change; “to last for a continuous period of not less than 12 months” has 
been changed to “continue for a long and indefinite duration.” If the medical reports indicate that the member 
will recover at a time certain in the future, that is probably not permanent. The second change is whether the 
Board wants to incorporate a Social Security Administration (SSA) determination as conclusive evidence of 
disability.  
 
Chairman Fleming asked if the Board should use a standard of total and permanent disability rather than any 
medical long term and indefinite duration if relying on the SSA determination, because that definition has set a 
different bar for their disability.  
 
Dave Deibel answered that it would be okay because the SSA determination has such a high bar.  
 
Ms. Langford explained they did not want a member to wait for an SSA determination to apply for disability 
retirement because that determination can take years, but if they already have one when they are applying the 
Board might want to recognize it accepting that generally the SSA determination is harder to acquire.  
 
There are also timing issues related to utilizing an SSA determination, which are addressed in the following 
paragraphs of the revision for Qualification - §22-39(a):  
 
Chairman Fleming said the revision stated the member had to apply for disability retirement within 12 months 
of separation from City employment and asked whether it said the member had to have become disabled while 
employed by the City. 
 
Ms. Langford answered that in §22-39(a) there were two options available for this: (1) they could add language 
requiring the member to establish that they terminated employment with the City as a result of their disability, 
which is a high standard to prove, or (2) that their disability developed or was present while they were 
employed by the City. The old Code language, going back 10 to 15 years, said the disability had to be incurred 



 

5 

 

while employed. She believed the long term intent of the language was to require that a disability was present 
at the time of termination as opposed to developing post termination. In terms of qualifying for disability 
retirement, a time frame after termination should be added in which the member has to apply, and there has to 
be a connection between the disability, and physical or mental condition while the member was employed by 
the City. 
 
Curry Hale expressed his support for Ms. Langford’s suggestion and asked if the Board could require physical 
examinations of disability retirees to confirm they were still permanently disabled.  
 
Ms. Langford answered they had the verification process in the Code were the Board could require future 
medical exams and stop benefits if the member is no longer disabled. If at the time someone is approved there 
is medical evidence they should recover the Board and staff should be following up. She asked if staff 
performed disability verification on a discretionary basis or every 5 years.  
 
Mr. Hermanson explained that a disability audit is performed annual by sending out an affidavit for the 
members to complete and return, that continues until they meet normal retirement age 62, or have attained 80 
points, at that point they are not subject to further audit. The affidavit used in the audit states the condition 
persists and that they are not receiving any earned income. If there is no earned income stated, it may be 
assumed the member is not working and remains disabled.  
 
Chairman Fleming asked the Board which option they preferred of the 2 presented by Ms. Langford.  
 
Ms. Langford explained option #1 set a higher standard for the member, and it would decrease the number of 
disability pensions approved which is a cost saving mechanism for the system. The Board needed to consider, 
in terms of reviewing and approving an application what would a member have to show to meet that standard. 
 
Mr. Hermanson answered one example is they would look for evidence of leave time usage and leave without 
pay in the payroll record. 
 
Mr. Hale stated the crux of it was whether they were unable to work due to a medical condition. 
 
Mr. Coffey asked how they would assess the quality of the member’s argument. 
 
Ms. Langford answered the Board would have to review medical records from the time of termination. 
 
Chairman Fleming stated this would be true for option #2 as well to prove the disability existed.  
 
The Board’s consensus was a preference for option #1. 
 
Chairman Fleming asked if it was possible to tie the onset back to the SSA determination so that the Board 
would be permitted but not required to adopt the SSA determination of the date of onset. 
 
Ms. Langford explained the date of onset was another question and it is addressed in Application process - 
§22-39(b) regarding when the disability benefit would commence. There may be an established date for when 
the disability occurred which could be different from the date when the pension benefits would begin, and they 
should focus on when the pension benefits would begin. If someone was disabled before their date of 
termination their disability benefit would not begin until the completed application for disability retirement was 
submitted. 
 
Mr. Hermanson stated they did not want to provide a pension benefit to a member who was still being 
compensated as an employee.  
 



 

6 

 

Ms. Langford clarified the benefit would not begin until all leave balances have been exhausted. The question 
was whether the Board wanted to set a commencement date for a pension disability or leave that to a case by 
case basis. 
 
Mr. Hale stated he would rather leave it on an individual case basis. 
 
Mr. Larson stated if the Board concluded the member was disabled at the time they separated from City 
employment they could still start the benefits at a later date and he felt this opened the Board and the City up 
to litigation. 
 
Ms. Langford said by requiring an application within 12 months they were lessening their exposure on that kind 
of case already. If they said the pension will commence, if approved, not later than the date of the application, 
it would give the Board the discretion to go back to the date of termination if appropriate.  
 
Paid Military Leave - Member Contributions - Chapter 22-34(e) (compliance change) – this revision refers 
to paid military leave for active members called up to serve their country. The IRS requires the plan to address 
compensation to an individual who is on military leave. So if a member receives payment from the City at the 
beginning or end of a military leave the Code must address how the City handles that compensation as well as 
collecting TSRS contributions. The goal is to clarify that if the City is paying any type of compensation to an 
employee on military leave, member contributions will be taken from that compensation.  
 
Mr. Coffey asked if the City already did this. 
 
Mr. Hermanson answered yes, when a member goes out on military leave and their orders are completed, the 
member is offered an opportunity to purchase service credits for the period of time they were gone and did not 
earn service credits, at the same rate they would have paid if they were here.  If the member purchases the 
period of service they were on orders, the City contributes their portion to provide funding for that period. 
 
Mr. Coffey asked if that was standard in other plans as well. 
 
Ms. Langford answered yes, and the language addressed in these changes relates to a small portion of a 
member’s military leave because City compensation will not be provided over the duration of that leave in the 
majority of cases, this applies to member contributions from any City compensation that overlaps with the 
military leave.  
 
The next change Government and Military Service Purchases - §22-36(e) (expand purchase eligibility) 
relates to military leave and the purchase of service credits. There is a service purchase provision that has 
always required the member to be contributing at the time they purchase service credits. There was an 
instance in which a member was on military leave, and not contributing to the TSRS plan, wanted to purchase 
service credits and retire. The existing language says the City should be allowing prior military and government 
service credit purchases as liberally as possible. The change will eliminate the contributing member 
requirement and allow a member who has not yet requested a refund or retirement to buy service credits. This 
would allow someone to purchase service credits for military leave that has not yet been completed, or as a 
deferred vested member who is no longer a City employee contributing to the system. 
 
Mr. Hermanson explained there were 2 ways TSRS sells service for members of the military. In the first 
method already discussed, an employee completes their military orders, and the employee pays into the plan 
the amount of contributions missed, based on their pay rate, the period of orders and the contribution rate; the 
City pays the complementary employer rate for that period. The second method allows an employee to 
purchase service credits for prior military service that took place prior to City employment.  The qualifications 
for purchasing this type of service require there can be no duplicated benefits derived from the military service, 
and the member pays the full cost, determined actuarially.  In that case, the City does not contribute to the 
purchase of service credits for prior government service.  
 



 

7 

 

Ms. Langford advised that the language could be revised so that employees on military leave who would not 
return to City employment would pay the full actuarially determined cost. 
 
Mr. Hermanson stated he would like to talk to Ms. Thompson about that idea before taking action on it. 
 
Ms. Langford said the next revision was to Commencement of Pension to Deferred Vested Members §22-
37(d) - (compliance change), addressing an IRS compliance issue for commencement of pension to deferred 
vested members. When a vested member with deferred status is notified that they have become eligible to 
receive their benefits, occasionally they do not take any action to receive those benefits. The Code has always 
had a rule that if a member does not commence their pension benefits they will not receive any retroactive 
adjustments to account for the delay. The requirement is that if someone waits past the normal retirement age 
before beginning to receive their benefits, retroactive payments are not necessary but there should be an 
actuarial adjustment to the amount of the monthly benefit, to account for the period during which they did not 
receive their payments once they were eligible. This would not result in a retroactive payment back to their 
retirement date because it would be an adjustment to the amount of their monthly benefit. 
 
Chairman Fleming asked if this was required by the IRS. 
 
Ms. Langford answered yes; it is seen in private sector plans. The IRS has looked at it on a few governmental 
plans and has said that even under pre-ERISA rules dating back to the early 1970’s a governmental plan 
should be doing this as well. This was the perfect time to add it to the Code.  
 
The next revision was to Non-Spouse Beneficiary on Joint and Survivor Election - §22-42(c)  (compliance 
change). The Code currently has a rule that says benefit payments will be calculated under U.S. Code 
§401(a)(9), which is the section that governs how much can be paid out over a member’s lifetime and the 
lifetime of their beneficiary. This code section also requires retirement benefits have to start by the time the 
retiree is 70.5 years old. The revision addresses a joint survivor election where the member has designated a 
beneficiary other than a spouse and there is a significant age difference between the member and the non-
spouse beneficiary because there is a limit to how much can be paid to that beneficiary.  
 
The next revision was to Rehire of Retirees - §22-37(g) (Codification of Practice) relating to the rehire of 
retirees. From the Board’s perspective this is a pension suspension issue; the question for the system is 
whether a rehired retiree should continue to receive a pension benefit during their period of re-employment. 
The Code currently provides relief from suspension of pension benefits if a member has been separated from 
service for at least 12 months and they are rehired into a non-permanent classification. There have been a few 
situations where those criteria have been met, but then the rehired retiree has worked in 2 or more non-
permanent classifications in a row. Generally a non-permanent classification lasts for 12 months with a 6 
month extension. 
 
Mr. Hale confirmed this was correct and stated the employees did not receive healthcare benefits. 
 
Mr. Deibel explained he and Ms. Langford had worked together to determine whether the non-permanent job a 
retiree was taking, was different from the job they had retired from. There were also situations in which the 
retiree wanted to remain in another non-permanent position, so a legal determination had to be made as to 
whether or not the successive jobs were distinct from each other or whether it was a subterfuge to avoid the 
benefit suspension rules.  
 
Mr. O’Hare asked if this would affect the pension fund in any way regardless of what the Board decided.  
 
Mr. Hermanson said the actuary could argue that a position was being filled by a non-contributing member, 
which is not good funding policy for the plan. 
 
Ms. Langford explained the legal issue was that they could not pay a pension to a member without a bona fide 
termination, which is why the original Code §22-37(g) was written. If a member retired and returned to work 



 

8 

 

after less than 12 months, or if they returned to a permanent position at any time they are no longer retired 
which is the legal compliance issue that could affect the entire system if it were a regular practice for retired 
employees to come back while still receiving a pension. On the actuarial side, they want to limit the rehire of 
retirees so that City positions are filled with contributing members. The Board may want to be more descriptive, 
given the situations faced since the last revisions, regarding when the suspension of pension benefits would 
start. The current revision addresses the situation Mr. Deibel described previously when a retiree works 
several successive non-permanent jobs.  
 
Mr. Coffey asked if they could include a maximum number of months a retiree can work before their pension 
benefits are suspended. 
 
Ms. Langford answered yes that could be done. 
 
Chairman Fleming asked if the Board could create a rule stating any retiree returning to any City position, no 
matter how long they had been gone, would no longer be retired and their benefits get suspended.  
 
Ms. Langford answered they could and recommended using the traditional union rule; if a retiree comes back 
to work they are no longer retired, their pension is suspended, and they begin contributing to the system again. 
 
Chairman Fleming said presumably the new pension when they retire again will be increased. 
 
Ms. Langford answered that was a complicating factor but it would be manageable. 
 
Mr. Hale and Mr. Coffey expressed their support for this idea. 
 
Mr. Deibel warned that the City Manager’s office and the Mayor and Council may react adversely in proportion 
to the restrictiveness of the revisions. The presented revision is the standard Ms. Langford and the City 
Attorney’s office were currently using. If the Board wanted to completely change the system it should be 
discussed as a separate item because it could place the other revisions in jeopardy.  
 
Mr. Larson asked if a non-permanent employee was considered an employee from an IRS standpoint receiving 
a W2, or were they considered consultants receiving a 1099. He expressed support for becoming stricter on 
the regulations regarding rehiring retirees.  
 
Chairman Fleming stated the Board had expressed collective support for a rehired employee only being 
allowed to work for up to 18 months before they are no longer considered to be retired.  
 
Ms. Langford answered she would add that to the Code revisions.  
 
Mr. Coffey expressed concern over the use of the term “subterfuge” in the Code language. 
 
Ms. Langford said he was not the first person to express this concern and it would be changed. The next 
revision was to Post Retirement Marital Changes - §22-42(a) (Divorce/Remarriage Have No Impact on 
Elections), regarding post retirement marital changes. The Code has issues in 2 different areas, first, when a 
member retires, they have elected a benefit type that is irrevocable; then there is a post retirement divorce and 
remarriage. The language in the Code has always said on the member benefit side, once is selected and 
ratified by the Board, the pension starts and the benefit selected is irrevocable; so the ex-spouse cannot be 
dropped from the pension if they were originally named as a survivor beneficiary. The revisions strengthen that 
language or irrevocability. The second paragraph deals with the Domestic Relations Order (QDRO) applied 
before the member retires and they make elections stipulated in the QDRO which then become irrevocable. 
The revisions say if there is a change in marriage status after the QDRO is accepted, TSRS benefits are 
irrevocable because on an actuarial basis there must be certainty regarding who will be receiving benefits.  
 



 

9 

 

Ms. Amparano asked if the Board should require marriage over a domestic partnership now that same sex 
marriage is legally recognized in Arizona.  
 
Mr. Hale answered the Human Resources (HR) department is working on making changes in the insurance 
benefits area that require marriage so that a spouse would be able to receive benefits but a domestic partner 
could not. 
 
Ms. Langford explained the Board should wait until the changes have been made in HR before the Board 
considers taking any action. 
 
Mr. Coffey clarified that it was an actuarial issue concerning the age of the former spouse vs. the age of the 
new spouse.  
 
Ms. Langford answered yes because if a member retired with a spouse that was their age, then got divorced 
and married a new spouse who was 20 years younger, it would have a significant impact the present value of 
the benefit, so the revision states the original spouse elected at the time the member retired is who will be paid.  
 
Ms. Langford explained in the Code there is a list of Board member authorities and duties under §22-45(i); she 
has added the authority to hear and resolve claims. This would be similar to what the Board does when 
hearing disability applications but it was not written into the Code. It is a responsibility that almost all fiduciary 
bodies over a retirement plan have.  
 
Mr. Larson asked who handled this responsibility previously. 
 
Mr. Hermanson answered this was just a formalization of current Board responsibilities.  
 
Ms. Langford asked if the Board was still interested in looking into making the System Administrator a Board 
appointed position as opposed to a finance department employee. 
 
Mr. Hermanson indicated he was leaving the room so the Board could speak freely.  
 
Ms. Langford explained the idea was to make TSRS separate from City oversight. Mr. Hermanson’s office 
would be responsible for reporting to the Board instead of the finance department. 
 
Mr. O’Hare stated there was real value in this idea from a fiduciary standpoint because more value is given to 
the opinion of the entity responsible for the employee’s evaluation, but all of the administrative type tasks, like 
payroll, could still be handled by the finance department. 
 
Mr. Deibel contrasted that approach with the PSPRS structure, which is required by Arizona State law, and 
advised the Board to discuss this issue with the City employment lawyers because he was not sure that the 
Board could just hire someone outside of civil service and provide City benefits and compensation. The 
PSPRS administrator position was required to be separate by state law; however he is still a City employee 
that does not fall under the oversight of any City department. 
 
Mr. Hale said based on his experience as a PSPRS Board member he would not advise the TSRS Board 
adopt a similar structure. It is inefficient with duplication of efforts, and he also believed City oversight is 
needed over many of the functions.  
 
Mr. Deibel counseled the Board to seriously consider the implications of this action. 
 
Chairman Fleming said the Board may want to look at the PSPRS model and continue the discussion because 
it would be nice to have more control over the salary, hiring, and firing of the plan administrator, but 
implementing the PSPRS model for TSRS could be a terrible mistake.  
 



 

10 

 

Mr. Deibel explained there were no City Board’s with control over hiring, firing, and compensation; the Civil 
Service system was put in place as required by the City Charter, so it was not as simple as just deciding to 
make the Plan Administrator an appointed position. 
 
Mr. Hale stated that the PSPRS Board’s control over the hiring, firing, and compensation for the plan 
administrator has created several problems in the past.  
 
Mr. O’Hare said he never suggested the TSRS Board adopt the model of the PSPRS Board. The TSRS Plan 
Administrator used to be appointed by the TSRS Board.  
 
Chairman Fleming stated this was an issue the Board should continue to discuss at the retreat. 
 
Ms. Langford said for the purpose of that discussion there are other models, besides PSPRS, where the 
administrator is an appointed position outside of civil service the Board could review.  
 
Mr. O’Hare said no part of this discussion should be taken as a reflection of the performance of Mr. Hermanson 
because he had been extremely responsive to the Board’s requests.  
 
Mr. Hale brought Mr. Hermanson back into the meeting. 
 
Ms. Langford asked if the Board would like to increase Board membership as the plan grows.  
 
Chairman Fleming stated the Board had discussed it and decided they did not want to pursue that course of 
action.  
 

2. Discussion of Open and Closed Amortization, comparison to TSRS Funding / Amortization Policy 
(Gabriel, Roeder, Smith & Company – July 14, 2015) 

 
Michael Hermanson said this subject came up when the Independent Audit Performance Commission (IAPC) 
reviewed actions taken by the TSRS Board in responding to the 2012 ballot initiative called the “Sustainable 
Retirement Benefits Act”. Staff responses to the IAPC report called Review of TSRS Pension Alternative 
indicated the commission might want additional information to help them understand how open and closed 
amortization approaches used for payment of unfunded liabilities provide different results.  This report 
contrasts those two approaches with the TSRS funding policy, which is a hybrid method that provides results 
that are closer to a closed amortization approach than what is achieved through open amortization. 
 
Leslie Thompson explained the reason the unfunded liability is always looked at is because the accrued liability 
is the value of the benefits that have been earned to date. Ideally the assets would be equal to the accrued 
liability, but they are not and as a result, there is unfunded liability. The unfunded liability looks, to many 
people, like the value of what the plan should have but does not. The method to pay that off is the amortization 
payment and there are a variety of methods allowed.  
 
Closed amortization refers to the number of years needed to pay off the unfunded liability. The actuary will 
calculate a payment such that the unfunded liability will be paid off in 20 years, and the following year they 
calculate a payment such that it will be paid off in 19 years, until the unfunded liability equals $0. Closed 
amortization methods always lead to $0 in unfunded liabilities; to get there the plan has to make the cash 
amortization payments calculated.  
 
By contrast in the open method; the actuary will calculate a payment such that the unfunded liability will be 
paid off in 20 years, the following year they will calculate a payment such that the unfunded liability will be paid 
off in another 20 years so the unfunded liability never reaches $0. The open method is not allowed in the 
private sector because the private sector entities can close shop and terminate pension plans at any time. In 
the public sector the entities exist in perpetuity, so the open method is allowed because they will not terminate 
their pension plans. The other reason the open method is allowed is because when the GASB Statement Nos. 



 

11 

 

25 and 27 came into effect, the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) tested to see if there was a 
difference in the funding levels between open and closed plans, they found no differentiating distinctions.  
 
The current City funding policy utilizes a rounding policy that has a closed amortization effect, because of its 
projected negative unfunded liability by the year 2029; even though, technically, the Board has an open 
amortization method stated in its funding method. As such, TSRS has the budgeting advantage and the 
actuarial flexibility of an open amortization, but achieves the impact associated with a closed amortization 
method. Some of the IAPC members did not understand the difference between open and closed plans and 
became concerned about open amortization as a code for perpetual debt, so they never got around to 
discussing how the funding policy layers on top of the open amortization method, which solves the problem 
and, moves the plan to closed amortization in effect.  
 
Michael Coffey asked if, of the 347 surveys conducted on public pension plans, TSRS was absolutely unique in 
its design. 
 
Ms. Thompson said they were not absolutely unique, but TSRS was unique because although other entities 
may have a rounding policy, the TSRS funding policy states it will keep the contribution rate stable at 27.5% 
until the plan is fully funded, which is a nice blend of keeping the rates stable and taking care of the plan. 
 
Chairman Fleming asked if going forward they would see charts showing the difference between the Board’s 
intent and what actually happened based on valuation variations. 
 
Ms. Thompson answered yes, there is a projected funding chart in every valuation, and there would be 
fluctuations.  
 
John O’Hare asked for clarification on the GASB test showing no significant differentiation between open and 
closed plans.  
 
Ms. Thompson explained in the comments from the GASB Statement No. 25 or 27, a committee member talks 
about that survey and discovering there is really no difference in the funded ratio between the open and closed 
plans in the public sector over a long period of time, given the impact of public sector plans in the past did a lot 
to meet a statutory rate to stay funded so the funded ratios did not change that much whether the plan used 
open or closed methods. In today’s environment, plans that use open amortization and level percent of pay 
funding methods make the lowest possible amortization payment and that approach pushes a lot of unfunded 
liability into the future.  
 

3. Discussion of Topics and possible guest attendees for the October 30th TSRS Board Retreat (Copy of 

October 2014 Agenda attached) 

 
Michael Hermanson asked the Board to consider what they would like to hear about at this year’s Board 
retreat.  
 
Michael Coffey requested some education and discussion on disability applications and definitions. 
 
Chairman Fleming asked for statistics regarding disability pensions in TSRS. 
 
Mr. Hermanson said there are approximately 156 members receiving retirement benefits from a disability 
application approved.  All of these except for about 70 have not reached age 62 as the normal retirement age, 
which is when they are no longer audited annually. The average benefit paid to disabled retirees is only $1,000 
a month because these retirees have experience a shorter periods of service, averaging only 11 or 12 years. 
Mike said he would provide more specific information at the retreat on this topic. 
 



 

12 

 

Mr. Coffey would like educational materials in order to be able to treat applicants more fairly, and expressed 
concern over recent Board decisions given the applicants had not necessarily completed all the steps in the 
City’s process before submitting their application for disability retirement. 
 
Curry Hale said members of the medical leave management team could give the Board a presentation on the 
benefits offered by the City outside of disability retirement. 
 
John O’Hare and Kevin Larson stated they would like to discuss various models regarding a Board appointed 
plan administrator.  
 
Chairman Fleming and Mr. Hale expressed interest in discussing the rehire of retirees and the process 
involved in changing the current policy.  
 
Mr. Hermanson advised he needed to receive any requests for guest speakers by the end of August so that 
they might have time to plan an invitation. 
 
Chairman Fleming and Mr. Larson expressed interest in having fewer investment managers speak at the 
retreat. 
 
Catherine Langford advised that the Board did not need to meet with each manager every year anymore given 
Callan’s (investment consultant) capacity to evaluate these managers as frequently as necessary. 
 
Mr. O’Hare stated he felt the Board needed to see the managers at least once a year for education purposes. 
 
Chairman Fleming expressed interest in placing the discussion of how many times the Board should meet with 
the managers on the retreat agenda. 
 
Mr. O’Hare said it would be good to discuss indexing parts of the fund at the retreat. 
 
C. Investment Activity Report 

 
1. Update on Transition Manager Activity 

 
Silvia Navarro said the outside counsel has reviewed the proposed contracts and provided revisions, which 
staff sent to the transition managers for their review and acceptance. Staff has heard back from one of the 
managers thus far. Once those agreements have been accepted, staff will request a pre-trade analysis to be 
reviewed by staff and Callan will assist selecting a transition manager to complete the transition in a few 
weeks.  
 

2. TSRS Portfolio composition, transactions and performance review for 06/30/15  
 
Silvia Navarro reported as of 6/30/15 the total portfolio value was $735.5M, as of 7/29/15, it was $736.9M. 
 
Calendar YTD returns – For the month of June, the Total Fund returned -1.08% vs. the Custom Plan Index at  
-1.44%; Total Fixed returned -1.52% vs. the Barclays Aggregate at -1.09%; Total Equities returned -1.66% vs. 
Equity Composite at -1.92%; Total Real Estate returned 2.45%; Total Infrastructure returned 2.66% vs. the CPI 
+4% at 0.68%. Through 6/30/15, the calendar YTD return for the Total Fund was 2.88% vs. 2.05% for the 
Custom Plan Index. 
 
Fiscal YTD returns – As of 6/30/15 the Total Fund returned 4.23% vs. the Custom Plan Index at 4.07%; Total 
Fixed returned 0.67% vs. the Barclays Aggregate at 1.85%; Total Equities returned 5.24% vs. the Equity 
Composite at 4.26%; Total Real Estate returned 12.74% vs. NCREIF at 10.22% (as of 3/31/15); and Total 
Infrastructure returned -3.42% vs. the CPI +4% at 4.14%. 

 



 

13 

 

Trailing One Year Returns – As of 6/30/15 the Total Fund returned 4.23% vs. the Custom Plan Index at 4.07%; 
Total Fixed returned 0.67% vs. Barclays Aggregate at 1.85%; Total Equities returned 5.24% vs. the Equity 
Composite at 4.26%; Total Real Estate returned 12.74% vs. the NCREIF at 10.22% (as of 3/31/15); and Total 
Infrastructure returned -3.42% vs. the CPI +4% at 4.14%. 
 
$4M was transferred into the pension fund to pay for retiree benefits. To meet liquidity and rebalance the 
portfolio $2M was transferred from T. Rowe Price, $1M from BlackRock, and $1M from the cash account.  
 
D. Articles for Board Member Education / Discussion 

 
1. Still a Better Bang for the Buck (National Institute on Retirement Security, December  2014)  

 
Michael Hermanson advised the Board this report, written by the National Institute on Retirement Security was 
a sequel / follow up to a report previously issued entitled A Better Bang for the Buck.  Both reports compare the 
cost advantages between defined benefit and defined contribution plans and this report explains three specific 
areas that provide cost advantages that a defined benefit (pension) plan has over defined contribution plan 
(401(k) plans).  
 
John O’Hare asked for a PDF copy for distribution to the Mayor and Council. 
 

2. Does the Social Security “Statement” Add Value? (Center for Retirement Research at Boston College, July 2015)  
3. Trust Fund Reserve Gains One Year for Projected Depletion Date (Social Security Matters, July 23, 2015) 
4. Transition Management – Beyond the Basics (Callan Investments Institute July 2013) 
 

E. Call to Audience – None heard. 
 

F. Future Agenda Items    
 

Adjournment – 10:30 AM 
 
 
 
Approved: 
 
 
__________________________  _______              __________________________     ________  
Robert Fleming            Date        Michael Hermanson      Date 
Chairman of the Board                                    Plan Administrator  
 
 



Item A2



Item A3





















Item B2



Champlain Mid Cap Core 
 

1. What is the investment philosophy of the strategy and how is it implemented? 
 
 
 
 
2. Please describe the research process. Is it bottom up or top down or perhaps a combination of 

both? How does a security make it into the portfolio? 
 
 
 
 

3. Please discuss the current positioning of the portfolio. 
 

 
 
 
4. In what type of market environment would you expect the strategy to outperform/underperform? 

 
 
 
 

5. When will you sell a security? 
 
 

 
 

6. What is the current level of assets under management in the strategy? At what asset level will the 
strategy close to new investors? 

 
 
 
 
7. What is your outlook for US equity markets in 2015? 

   



M  I  S  S  I  O N    S  T  A  T  E  M  E  N  T

Deliver Exceptional Investment Results and Develop Enduring Client Relationships

2Q 2015



2

Table of Contents

Section Page

Firm Update 4

Portfolio Update 9

Appendix 17



3

Disclosure
Certain data contained in this presentation is based on information obtained from sources believed to be accurate, but
Champlain cannot guarantee the accuracy of such third party information.

No assurance can be given that Champlain Investment Partners’ investment objectives will be achieved or that an investor
will receive a return of all or any portion of his, her or its investment with Champlain Investment Partners. Investment results
may vary substantially over any given time period.

Certain content contained in this presentation constitutes “forward-looking statements,” which may be (but are not
necessarily) identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “expect,” “anticipate,”
“project,” “estimate,” “intend,” “continue,” “target,” or “believe” or the negatives thereof or other variations thereon or
comparable terminology. Due to various risks and uncertainties, actual events or results may vary materially from those
reflected or contemplated in such forward-looking statements. Any such forward-looking statements speak only as of their
dates and reflect the expectation of Champlain Investment Partners, and no obligation is undertaken to update any such
statements or expectations, whether as a result of new information, further events, or otherwise.



4

Firm Update



5

Firm Update

 Expanded Employee Ownership from 8 partners to 12

 Emerging Markets Team

 Revenue Sharing

 $6.62 Billion AUM as of 06.30.15



6

Endowments & 
Foundations

8%

Public
14%

Taft-Hartley
3%

Corporate
17%

Private Bank
21%

Hospital
3%

Family Office/RIA
33%

Retail
1%

Commingled Funds
7%

Mutual Funds
34%

Separate Accounts
58%

Collective Investment Trust
1%

Client Assets Under Management $6.62 Billion 
(as of 06.30.15)

Type of Client Vehicle



7

Corporate
 Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Kansas, Inc.
 BlueCross BlueShield of Tennessee
 Broadcast Music, Inc.
 Cambridge International, LLC
 Chevron Corporation
 DuPont and Related Companies Defined 

Contribution Plan Master Trust
 GE Asset Management Inc.
 Goodville Mutual Casualty Company
 Hearst Corporation
 Louisiana-Pacific Corporation
 Nordson Corporation
 Welch Foods, Inc.
 Western Family Foods

Public
 California Teachers Association Economic 

Benefits Trust
 City of Alexandria Fire Fighters and Police 

Officers Pension Plan
 City of Miami Fire Fighters’ and Police 

Officers’ Retirement Trust
 Första AP-fonden (First Swedish National 

Pension Fund)
 Ohio Bureau of Workers’ Compensation
 Oregon Education Association
 The Metropolitan Gov’t of Nashville and 

Davidson County Employee Benefit System
 Spokane Employee Retirement System
 State of Vermont
 Texas Municipal Retirement System
 Tucson Supplemental Retirement System

Endowment/Foundation
 Amelia Peabody Foundation
 Association for the Children of New Jersey
 Association of the Bar of the City of New York
 Batchelor Foundation
 College Sparks
 Community Foundation of Herkimer and Oneida 

Counties, Inc.
 Community Foundation of Louisville 
 Community Foundation of Western North 

Carolina
 Crouse Health Foundation
 Fairfield County Community Foundation
 Glass-Glen Burnie Foundation
 Greater Milwaukee Foundation
 Guttman Foundation
 Incourage Community Foundations, Inc.
 JCRT Foundation
 Johnson Foundation
 J.W. Anderson Foundation
 Marin Community Foundation
 Mitchell Wolfson Sr. Foundation 
 Norton Museum of Art
 Oregon Public Broadcasting
 Ploughshares Fund
 Robins, Kaplan, Miller & Ciresi Foundation for 

Children
 Sarkeys Foundation
 The Community Foundation for the Greater 

Capital Region
 The Fuller Foundation
 The Harvest Foundation of the Piedmont
 The Stark Community Foundation
 The Rosamond Gifford Charitable Corporation
 The Vermont Community Foundation
 Triangle Community Foundation
 Tull Charitable Foundation

Hospital
 Boca Raton Regional Hospital
 Community Hospital of Monterey Peninsula
 Deaconess Hospital
 Glens Falls Hospital
 Huntington Hospital
 Inspira Medical Center Woodbury, Inc.
 Milton Hospital 
 North Shore – Long Island Jewish Health 

System, Inc.
 South Jersey Hospital
 South Shore Community Hospital
 Vidant Health System

Religious
 Archdiocese of Milwaukee Catholic 

Community Foundation, Inc.
 Diocese of Columbus
 Diocese of St. Petersburg
 Diocese of Trenton
 Jewish Federation of Metropolitan Chicago
 The Ordinary Mutual
 Reta Trust
 Sisters of Charity of Saint Elizabeth
 Sisters of St. Francis
 Sisters of St. Joseph of Carondelet
 Sisters of Saint Joseph of Peace
 Trustees of St. Patrick’s Cathedral
 United Methodist Foundation of Western 

North Carolina
 US Conference of Catholic Bishops
 The Young Men’s and Young Women’s 

Hebrew Association

Private Bank/Financial Co.
 Bessemer Trust Company
 Bridge Builder Trust
 Diversified Trust Company Inc.

Taft-Hartley
 32BJ North Pension Fund
 California Ironworkers Field Pension Trust
 Minnesota Laborers’ Fringe Benefits Fund
 Minnesota Teamsters Construction
 Division Pension Fund
 Southern California Pipe Trades Retirement 

Fund
 Teamsters Industrial Employees Pension 

Fund
 Trucking Employees of North Jersey 

Pension Fund

College/University
 Centre College of Kentucky
 Fordham University
 Indiana University
 Practising Law Institute
 Regis University
 Rider University
 Samford University
 The Canisius College of Buffalo, NY

Representative Client List (as of 06.30.15)

Champlain Mutual Funds
 All Cap (CIPYX)
 Mid Cap (CIPMX & CIPIX)
 Small Cap (CIPSX)

The above list includes all institutional clients that allow disclosure of their
relationship with Champlain Investment Partners, LLC. It is not known
whether the listed clients approve or disapprove of the adviser or the advisory
services.



8

Professionals

Daniel B. Butler, CFA 
Partner

Technology Analyst

David M. O’Neal, CFA 
Partner

Health Care Analyst

Van Harissis, CFA 
Partner

Portfolio Manager
All Cap and Generalist

Small and Mid Cap

Deborah R. Healey 
Partner

Head Trader 
and Technology

Judith W. O’Connell 
Managing Partner 

Chief Executive Officer 

Wendy K. Nunez 
Partner  

Chief Compliance Officer
and Chief Operating Officer

Finn R. McCoy
Partner
Trader

Erik C. Giard-Chase,CFA
Senior Associate

Health Care Analyst

Corey N. Bronner, CFA
Partner

Financials and
Consumer Analyst

Joseph J. Farley
Senior Associate 

Technology Analyst

Joseph M. Caligiuri
Associate 

Industrials and
Energy Analyst

Scott T. Brayman, CFA 
Managing Partner 

Chief Investment Officer
Small and Mid Cap

Andrew J. Hanson
Associate

Technology Analyst

Jason L. Wyman, Ph.D.
Senior Associate

Quantitative Analyst

Elizabeth J. Wykoff
Associate 

Office Administration

Kate R. Saraceno
Associate 

Client Service

Lauren C.  Harris
Associate 

Investment Team 
Support

Richard W. Hoss
Senior Associate

Emerging Markets
Analyst 

Russell E. Hoss, CFA
Senior Associate
Portfolio Manager
Emerging Markets

Kelly S. Barnes
Associate 

Business, Finance,
and Human Resources

Margaret  C. O’Brien
Associate 

Client Service

ShawnnaLea Y. 
Zemanek
Associate 

Client Service

Meredith A. Ackel
Associate 

Client Service

Frost W. Gay
Associate 
Operations

Will F. Clavelle 
Associate 

Operations and 
Compliance

Angie M. Holbrook, CFA
Senior Associate
Client Service

Mary E. Michel 
Partner

Client Service

Matthew S. Garcia
Partner

Compliance

Eric P. Ode
Partner

Business Management

Judith W. O’Connell 
Managing Partner 

Client Service 

Lisa L. Trubiano, CFA
Senior Associate
Client Service

Henry C. Sinkula
Associate

Quantitative Analyst

 Seasoned Industry Professionals

 Critical Thinkers

 Courageous



9

Portfolio Update



10

Tucson Supplemental Retirement System
(as of 07.31.15) 

Net Return Gross Return Russell Midcap

Year To Date 5.08% 5.60% 3.11%
1 Year 11.02% 11.96% 10.69%
3 Years - Annualized 19.15% 20.16% 19.48%
5 Years - Annualized 16.36% 17.35% 16.77%
Since Inception - Annualized (07.09.10 - 07.31.15) 16.50% 17.49% 17.15%
Since Inception (07.09.10 - 07.31.15) 116.62% 126.11% 122.74%



11

Mid Cap Composite Risk Reward (5 yr as of 06.30.15)

Source: eVestment Alliance, returns are presented annualized. The returns are gross of advisory fees
and other expenses. This information is presented as supplemental to the performance disclosure
page included in this presentation.



12

2Q15

1Q15
4Q14 3Q14

2Q141Q14

4Q13
3Q13

2Q13

1Q13

4Q12 3Q12

2Q12

1Q12
4Q11

3Q11

2Q11
1Q11

4Q10

3Q10

2Q10 1Q10

4Q09
3Q09

2Q09
1Q09 4Q08

3Q08

2Q08
1Q08

4Q07

3Q07

-5.00%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

-25% -15% -5% 5% 15% 25% 35%

M
C

 C
om

p
o

si
te

 R
ol

li
n

g
  3

-Y
ea

r 
R

el
at

iv
e 

A
n

n
u

al
iz

ed
 R

et
u

rn

Russell Midcap Rolling 3-Year Annualized Absolute Return

Historical α and β of MC 
Composite Relative to 

Russell Midcap (Based on 
Quarterly Annualized 3-Year 

Returns, 3Q07-2Q15):
α = 5.48%
β = 0.68

Indicates Positive Absolute Return
Indicates Negative Absolute Return

Rolling 3 Year Relative Returns – 3Q07 through 2Q15
Champlain Mid Cap Composite vs. Russell Midcap

The returns are gross of advisory fees and other expenses. This information is presented as 
supplemental to the performance disclosure page included in this presentation.



13

Return Analysis by Sector and Holdings

1 Year (06.30.14 – 06.30.15) 
Absolute Contribution (%) vs. Russell Midcap

Energy -3.73 -1.05

Industrials -0.66 -0.75

Consumer Discretionary +1.76 +0.02

Materials -0.05 +0.05

Telecommunication Services +0.00 +0.16

[Cash] +0.00 +0.19

Financials +1.79 +0.28

Utilities +0.00 +0.58

Consumer Staples +1.25 +0.70

Information Technology +3.67 +1.48

Health Care +6.34 +2.10
Total +10.36 +3.75

Champlain Mid Cap Composite

This information is presented as supplemental to the performance disclosure page included in this 
presentation.

1 Year (06.30.14 – 06.30.15) 
Largest Contributors Absolute Contr. (%) Largest Detractors Absolute Contr. (%)

Edwards Lifesciences Corporation +1.01 Denbury Resources Inc. -1.75

Zoetis, Inc. Class A +0.98 Forum Energy Technologies, Inc. -0.68

Red Hat, Inc. +0.97 Oasis Petroleum Inc. -0.61

CareFusion Corporation +0.96 Actuant Corporation Class A -0.59

Altera Corporation +0.82 Dover Corporation -0.54

Informatica Corporation +0.75 Core Laboratories NV -0.40

PetSmart, Inc. +0.66 Solera Holdings, Inc. -0.36

Verisk Analytics Inc +0.59 Frank's International NV -0.28

Cepheid +0.59 Esterline Technologies Corporation -0.23

Bed Bath & Beyond Inc. +0.55 SolarWinds, Inc. -0.16

Total +7.89 Total -5.60



14

Top Ten Holdings

St. Jude Medical, Inc. 3.43%

McCormick & Company, Incorporated 3.18%

Red Hat, Inc. 2.94%

Flowers Foods, Inc. 2.88%

Rockwell Automation, Inc. 2.68%

WEX Inc. 2.63%

J. M. Smucker Company 2.59%

PTC Inc. 2.44%

Cullen/Frost Bankers, Inc. 2.42%

Endurance Specialty Holdings Ltd. 2.34%

Total 27.53%

Portfolio Characteristics − 06.30.15 
Champlain Mid Cap Composite

Portfolio Russell Midcap

FTM P/E 20.3x 20.0x

Price/Cash Flow 16.4x 14.7x

Debt/Cap 35.3% 44.5%

ROE 15.2% 14.4%

ROE (5 Yr Avg) 15.7% 14.1%

ROE (5 Yr StDev) 3.9% 5.8%

Est 3-5Yr EPS Growth 10.9% 11.3%

EPS 5 Year CAGR 9.7% 13.7%

Sales/Sh 5yr CAGR 9.6% 7.7%

5 Yr CAGR BV/Sh 9.2% 7.8%

Owners Yield* 3.9% 4.4%

Wtd. Mkt. Cap (MM) $8,129 $12,255

# of Holdings 57 824

Port. Ending Active Share** 94.0% NA

3 Yr Avg Portfolio Turnover 42.9% NA

*Owner’s Yield Definition: ((Cash for Common Dividends + Cash Used in Acquisitions + Net Cash from Increase/Decrease in Total Debt + Net Cash from Share Issuance/Purchase + YoY
Nominal Increase/Decrease in R&D Spend) / Shares Outstanding (Diluted Basis))/ Price per Share.

**Active share ranges from 0 to 100 percent and measures the percentage of a portfolio’s holdings which differs from the benchmark.

Source: FactSet and Compustat - All characteristics (with the exception of Market Cap, Active Share and Portfolio Turnover) are calculated on a Weighted Average basis with outliers dampened
via Inter-quartile methodology. All figures on a TTM Basis. Holdings are subject to change. References to specific issuers or securities are presented to illustrate the application of our
investment philosophy only and are not intended to be considered recommendations by Champlain Investment Partners. The specific securities identified and described in this presentation do
not represent all of the securities purchased, sold or recommended by Champlain, and it should not be assumed that investments in the securities identified were or will be profitable. Upon
request, Champlain will provide a list of all securities purchased over the last year. This information is presented as supplemental to the performance disclosure page included in this
presentation.



15

Mid Cap Recent Activity and Current Posture
 Relatively Under-Exposed to Interest Rate Risk

– No exposure to REITs
– Bank exposure is mostly with asset-sensitive banks
– Insurance holdings have short-duration bond portfolios
– Less exposed to highly leveraged companies 
– Utilities are excluded by process

 Overweight Software – Focused on key business processes and infrastructure

 Overweight Machinery Industry – Attractive machinery valuations due to weak oil price and 
strong Dollar

 EVA Analysis Affirms Quality Bias of Strategies

 Upgrading Holdings – EVA accretive



16

Mid Cap Opportunities and Risks

 Policy mistake(s) – Trade, Taxes, Fiscal, Monetary

 Complexity of global financial system

 Cyber crime/terrorism

Opportunities:

Risks:

 Shift from client-server to cloud-based computing

 Well-managed (asset-sensitive) community banks

 Diversified industrials with exposure to energy and Europe

 Reliable, long-duration cash flow streams

 Time horizon arbitrage



17

Appendix



18

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

W
ei

g
h

te
d

 H
ar

m
o

n
ic

 A
ve

ra
g

e 
P

/
E 

R
at

io

Maintaining Valuation Discipline Without Sacrificing Quality 
Champlain Mid Cap Composite vs. Russell Midcap and S&P MidCap 400 (09.30.04 – 06.30.15)

Weighted Harmonic Average P/E1 Weighted Average 
Gross Profitability2 and  EVA Margin3

1 The Weighted Harmonic Average P/E Ratio is defined as the total market value of the portfolio divided by the total
earnings of the portfolio: P/E = Σ(PRICE x SHARES)/ Σ(EPS x SHARES), where the sum is over all stocks in the portfolio.
2 Gross Profitability = (Sales – COGS)/Total Assets.
3 EVA stands for Economic Value Added and is the profit a company earns after deducting all operating and capital costs
from sales: EVA = Sales – Operating Costs – Capital Costs; EVA Margin is EVA divided by sales.

Source: Compustat, Factset Datafeed; Analysis: MATLAB. Security level EVA Margin provided by evaDimensions Equity
Research, data as of 06.30.15. Portfolio and benchmark distribution and statistics calculated by Champlain Investment
Partners with MatLab; outliers were removed using the interquartile method. This information is presented as
supplemental to the performance disclosure page included in this presentation.

MC COMP

S&P 400

Russell Midcap

Russell Midcap Negative P/E

S&P 400 Negative P/E

MC COMP Gross Profitability (left)

S&P 400 Gross Profitability (left)

Russell Midcap Gross Profitability (left)

MC COMP EVA Margin (right)

S&P 400 EVA Margin (right)

Russell Midcap EVA Margin (right)

-2

-1

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

20

22

24

26

28

30

32

34

36

38

40

EV
A

 M
ar

g
in

 (
%

)

Tr
ai

li
n

g
 T

w
el

ve
 M

on
th

 G
ro

ss
 P

ro
fi

ta
b

il
it

y 
(%

) 



19

Total Return of Russell 2000 – Earners and Non-Earners
(12.31.14-06.30.15)

Source: FactSet Alpha Testing. The Non-Earners group is comprised of all companies within the
Russell 2000 whose total earnings over the prior twelve months was negative. The Earners group is
comprised of all companies within the Russell 2000 whose total earnings over the prior twelve
months was non-negative. Daily group returns represent the market cap weighted returns of all
constituents within the group; weights and groups were rebalanced daily and the total return
number represents the cumulative total of compounded daily group returns over the time period.



20

Process Exclusions & Perennial Underweights– Mid Cap
(09.30.04-06.30.15)

Note: Bold legend items are GICS Sectors, else GICS Industries . 
Source: Factset Research Systems. This information is presented as supplemental to the 
performance disclosure page included in this presentation.

-100

0

100

200

300

400

C
u

m
u

la
ti

ve
 A

b
so

lu
te

 R
et

u
rn

 (
%

)

Technology Hardware Storage & Peripherals Telecommunication Services Consumer Discretionary

Semiconductors & Semiconductor Equipment Real Estate Investment Trusts Construction & Engineering

Metals & Mining Russell Midcap Index



21

Perennial Overweights – Mid Cap
(09.30.04-06.30.15)

Note: Bold legend items are GICS Sectors, else GICS Industries . 
Source: Factset Research Systems. This information is presented as supplemental to the 
performance disclosure page included in this presentation.

-100

0

100

200

300

400
C

u
m

u
la

ti
ve

 A
b

so
lu

te
 R

et
u

rn
 (

%
)

Consumer Staples Machinery Health Care Equipment & Supplies Software Russell Midcap Index



22

Breakdown of Capital Employed
Champlain Mid Cap Representative Account (07.31.09 – 06.30.15)

Source: FactSet and Champlain Investment Partners. Analysis performed with MATLAB. Data
from July 2009 as that is the inception of the representative account used. This information is
presented as supplemental to the performance disclosure page included in this presentation.

-60%

-40%

-20%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

W
ei

g
h

te
d

 A
ve

ra
g

e 
P

re
m

iu
m

/
D

is
co

u
n

t 
to

 C
os

t 
(%

) 

W
ei

g
h

t 
(%

) Weight Above Cost (Left Axis) 

Cash Weight (Left Axis)

Weight Below Cost (Left Axis)

Average Discount 
(Right Axis)

Average Premium (Right Axis)



23

Average Position Size* Over Time
Champlain Mid Cap Composite

*Portfolio average position size is total weight of non-cash holdings divided by the total number of non-cash holdings;
cash is included in the calculation of the weight of each holding.
**In 2Q08 we increased the range of stocks we can own from 40-60 to 50-75. This somewhat higher number of
names allows us to scale into and scale out of names in a more gradual or opportunistic manner and makes the mid
cap approach more consistent with how we buy and sell names in our small cap strategy.

Source: Factset. This information is presented as supplemental to the performance disclosure page included in this
presentation.

--

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

3.00

3.50
%

 W
ei

g
h

t

Average Position Size Average Size of Top 10 Holdings



24
Source: Champlain Investment Partners, FactSet. This information is presented as supplemental to 
the performance disclosure page included in this presentation.

Champlain Mid Cap Portfolio Historical Deletion Analysis
2008 – 2Q 2015

17.21 17.96
13.75

15.67
13.36

21.13
17.79

6.61

9.54

1.39

1.36

7.64

5.20

6.58

2.39

5.32

8.15

3.05

0.00

16.76

6.24

8.20

12.74

4.98

6.61

6.34

3.19

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

C
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e
 %

 o
f 

T
o

ta
l 
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 D

e
le

te
d

Valuation Merger, Acquisiton, or Takeover Market Cap Fundamental / Mistake

2008 Total:
51.7%

2010 Total: 
23.3%

2009 Total: 
28.6%

2008 - 2014 Average Yearly Deletion
Reason for Deletion Avg. Min. Max.

Valuation:  16.7% 13.4%   21.1%

Merger/Acquisition/Takeover:  4.9%       1.4%     9.5%

Market Cap:  1.6%         0.0%     8.2%

Fundamental / Mistake:  8.8%         5.0%    16.8%

2011 Total: 
36.1%

2012 Total: 
23.5%

2013 Total: 
34.3% 

2014 Total: 
26.5% 

2015 Q2  
YTD: 16.2% 
2Q 2015



25

-40%

-35%

-30%

-25%

-20%

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

2000

M
ar

ch
-0

5

Ju
ly

-0
5

N
ov

em
be

r-
05

M
ar

ch
-0

6

Ju
ly

-0
6

N
ov

em
be

r-
06

M
ar

ch
-0

7

Ju
ly

-0
7

N
ov

em
be

r-
07

M
ar

ch
-0

8

Ju
ly

-0
8

N
ov

em
be

r-
08

M
ar

ch
-0

9

Ju
ly

-0
9

N
ov

em
be

r-
09

M
ar

ch
-1

0

Ju
ly

-1
0

N
ov

em
be

r-
10

M
ar

ch
-1

1

Ju
ly

-1
1

N
ov

em
be

r-
11

M
ar

ch
-1

2

Ju
ly

-1
2

N
ov

em
be

r-
12

M
ar

ch
-1

3

Ju
ly

-1
3

N
ov

em
be

r-
13

M
ar

ch
-1

4

Ju
ly

-1
4

N
ov

em
be

r-
14

M
ar

ch
-1

5

Champlain MC Discount to FV (RHS) Champlain MC Cash (RHS) Russell Midcap Index (LHS)

Correlation = .59

Champlain Mid Cap Portfolio Discount to Fair Value* 
vs. Russell Midcap

*The Champlain portfolio’s discount to fair value is a weighted average metric based on our
estimate of intrinsic value for each security in the portfolio. The right hand side (RHS) of the chart
displays the discount to our estimates of intrinsic value on a monthly basis through time.

Source: Champlain Investment Partners, FactSet. Data as of 06.30.15. This information is
presented as supplemental to the performance disclosure page included in this presentation.



26

Champlain Mid Cap Composite

The returns are gross of advisory fees and other expenses. This information is presented as 
supplemental to the performance disclosure page included in this presentation.

Rolling 3 Year Quarterly Periods

Rolling 5 Year Quarterly Periods

Annualized Rolling Returns – as of 06.30.15

-20.00

-10.00

0.00

10.00

20.00

30.00

3Q07 4Q07 1Q08 2Q08 3Q08 4Q08 1Q09 2Q09 3Q09 4Q09 1Q10 2Q10 3Q10 4Q10 1Q11 2Q11 3Q11 4Q11 1Q12 2Q12 3Q12 4Q12 1Q13 2Q13 3Q13 4Q13 1Q14 2Q14 3Q14 4Q14 1Q15 2Q15

Champlain Mid Cap Composite Russell Midcap

0.00

4.00

8.00

12.00

16.00

20.00

24.00

28.00

3Q09 4Q09 1Q10 2Q10 3Q10 4Q10 1Q11 2Q11 3Q11 4Q11 1Q12 2Q12 3Q12 4Q12 1Q13 2Q13 3Q13 4Q13 1Q14 2Q14 3Q14 4Q14 1Q15 2Q15

Champlain Mid Cap Composite Russell Midcap



27

 S&P MidCap 400  Industrials 
Problem Solvers
Innovators

 Consumer
Brand Loyalty
Low Fashion Risk

 Health Care
Minimize Exposure 
to Government Payors  

 Technology
Low Obsolescence Risk

 Financials
Niche Focus 
Avoid Spread Business

 High Returns

 Low Debt 

 Quality Earnings

 Sincere and Capable 
Management

 Superior Relative 
Growth

 Stable Business 
Models

 Historical M & A 
Activity and Comps

 Strategic Value

 Discounted Cash Flow

 Company 
Fundamentals

 Sector Weight: 25%
maximum in any one 
sector

 50 – 75 Names

 Maximum 10% of port. 
 in market caps less 
 than $2 Billion

 Minimum market cap
 $1.5 Billion at purchase

Benefits: Manage Business Risk * Manage Valuation Risk * Manage Performance Risk * Increase Odds of Success 

Mid Cap Strategy Buy Discipline

Starting 
Universe

Sector
Factors

Company 
Attributes

Valuation 
Analysis

Portfolio
Construction



28

Sell

 Sell Stocks Above our Estimate of Fair Value

 Sell Mistakes

 Maximum 5% of Portfolio in Companies
over $20 Billion  

Trim

 Trim when Position Size at Market 
 > 5%

 Trim when Sector Weights Exceed 
 Rules

Reevaluate

 Reevaluate Holdings when 25% Below
- Cost

 Harvest Gains

 Control Losses

 Maintain Mid Cap Exposure

 Manage Company Specific Risk

Benefits

Mid Cap Strategy Sell Discipline



29

Meredith A. Ackel – Associate Client Service

Meredith joined Champlain in the summer of 2011. Her experience includes internships at Kelliher Samets Volk as a contact media associate and at a global
wealth management firm, during a semester in Australia, as a part of their event management team. Meredith graduated magna cum laude from Saint
Michael’s College with a Bachelor of Science in Business Administration. Meredith earned the Claritas Investment Certificate in 2013. Claritas and Claritas
Investment Certificate are Trademarks owned by CFA Institute.

Kelly S. Barnes – Associate Business, Finance, and Human Resources

Kelly brings more than 23 years of client service and systems experience to the Champlain team. Prior to joining Champlain in 2007, she was the
administrative director of Coburn Insurance Agency where she was responsible for project and team management, as well as computer and systems support.
Kelly graduated from LeMoyne College in Syracuse, New York with a Bachelor of Science in Business Administration.

Scott T. Brayman, CFA – Managing Partner & Chief Investment Officer

Scott has more than 29 years of investment management experience. He is a founding partner and leads the investment team at the firm. Prior to joining
Champlain, Scott was a senior vice president at NL Capital Management, Inc. and served as a portfolio manager with Sentinel Advisors, Inc. He was
responsible for managing small cap and core mid cap strategies. He was a portfolio manager and director of marketing for Argyle Capital Management in
Allentown, Pennsylvania, before joining NL Capital Management, Inc. Scott began his career as a credit analyst with the First National Bank of Maryland.

Scott graduated cum laude from the University of Delaware with a Bachelor of Arts in Business Administration. He earned his Chartered Financial Analyst
(CFA) designation in 1995 and is a member of the CFA Institute and the Vermont CFA Society.

Corey N. Bronner, CFA – Partner & Analyst

Corey has more than 8 years of financial services experience. Prior to joining Champlain in 2010, Corey was an analyst focusing primarily on the financial
services industry at Duff & Phelps Corporation. He was a credit analyst with the commercial lending group at Merchants Bank, a subsidiary of Merchant
Bancshares, Inc., before joining Duff & Phelps Corporation.

Corey graduated magna cum laude from the University of Vermont with a Bachelor of Science in Business Administration. Corey earned his Chartered
Financial Analyst (CFA) designation in 2011 and is a member of the CFA Institute and the Vermont CFA Society.

Daniel B. Butler, CFA – Partner & Analyst

Dan has more than 18 years of investment management experience. He is a founding partner and a member of the firm’s investment team specializing in
technology research. Prior to joining Champlain, Dan was a vice president and analyst at NL Capital Management, Inc. From 1998 to 2004, he was a senior
equity analyst for Principal Global Investors where he followed the technology sector for the firm’s small cap portfolio managers. Additionally, Dan has held
analyst positions at Raymond James Financial.

Dan graduated from University of Massachusetts with a Bachelor of Arts in Mathematics. He received his MBA from Indiana University. Dan earned his
Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) designation in 2001 and is a member of the CFA Institute and the Vermont CFA Society.

Team



30

Joseph M. Caligiuri – Associate Analyst

Joe joined Champlain in the spring of 2008 as an operations analyst. Joe moved to the investment team during the summer of 2010. His experience includes
internships at Sheaffer & Roland Consulting Engineers as a business operations analyst and Sopher Investment Management as a research assistant. Joe
graduated from Saint Michael’s College with a Bachelor of Arts in Philosophy. Joe is a CFA Level III candidate.

Will F. Clavelle – Associate Operations and Compliance

Will joined Champlain in the winter of 2014 as an associate operations and compliance. Prior to joining Champlain, Will was a Product Specialist at Janus
Capital Group. Will graduated from the University of Denver with a Bachelor of Science in International Business.

Joseph J. Farley - Senior Associate Analyst

Joe has more than 23 years of experience as a securities analyst, and has spent the past 12 years working in investment management. Prior to joining
Champlain, Joe was a founder and portfolio manager of Kelvingrove Partners, LLC, an investment management firm focused on technology, media, and
telecommunications. His investment management career began at Private Capital Management, in Naples FL, where he was the managing director of
investment research and a portfolio manager. Joe spent over 10 years as a securities analyst on Wall Street, and held senior investment research and
management roles at Morgan Stanley, Donaldson Lufkin & Jenrette, and UBS. Joe began his career as a market analyst with AT&T.

Joe earned Master and Bachelor of Arts degrees in Economics from the University at Albany, State University of New York.

Matthew S. Garcia, IACCP® – Partner & Compliance

Matthew has more than 7 years of financial services experience. Prior to joining Champlain in 2011, he was an associate in Goldman Sachs’ Global
Compliance division and previously was an analyst in that firm’s legal department. Matthew’s experience also includes internships with the offices of U.S.
Senator Hillary Rodham Clinton, Mayor Michael R. Bloomberg and the U.S. Department of the Interior. Matthew graduated from Cornell University with a
Bachelor of Arts in Government. He received his MBA from Harvard Business School. Matthew earned his Investment Adviser Certified Compliance
Professional® (IACCP®) designation in 2014.

Frost W. Gay – Associate Operations

Frost was hired by Champlain in the summer of 2013 as an associate in client service and moved to operations in spring 2014. His prior experience includes
an internship with the Vermont Democratic Party and a term spent abroad in Kenya. Frost graduated from Dartmouth College with a Bachelor of Arts in
Government. Frost earned the Claritas Investment Certificate in 2014. Claritas and Claritas Investment Certificate are Trademarks owned by CFA Institute.

Erik C. Giard-Chase, CFA – Senior Associate Analyst

Erik joined Champlain as an intern in the spring of 2008, and he was hired as a quantitative analyst in the spring of 2009. Prior to joining Champlain, Erik
was an intern at Wachovia Securities. Erik graduated cum laude from the University of Vermont with a Bachelor of Science in Mathematics. Erik earned his
Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) designation in 2013 and is a member of the CFA Institute and the Vermont CFA Society.

Team



31

Andrew J. Hanson – Associate Analyst

Andrew has more than 9 years of financial services experience. Prior to joining Champlain in 2010, Andrew managed IDC’s U.S. PC Tracker, covered network
and endpoint security, and supported the network, telecom, communications and channels research teams. Andrew graduated from Connecticut College with
a Bachelor of Arts in International Relations. Andrew is a CFA Level III candidate.

Van Harissis, CFA – Partner & Analyst

Van has more than 30 years of investment management experience. He is a founding partner and a member of the firm’s investment team specializing in
consumer research. Prior to joining Champlain, Van was a senior vice president at NL Capital Management, Inc. and served as a portfolio manager with
Sentinel Advisors, Inc. He was responsible for managing large cap core equity and balanced strategies. Van served as managing director and portfolio
manager at Phoenix Investment Partners, Ltd., before joining NL Capital Management, Inc.

Van graduated cum laude from the University of Rochester with a Bachelor of Arts in Economics. He received his MBA degree, graduating cum laude, at
Johnson Graduate School of Management, Cornell University. Van earned his Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) designation in 1989 and is a member of the
CFA Institute and the Vermont CFA Society.

Lauren C. Harris – Associate Investment Team Support

Lauren was hired at the end of 2014 to support Champlain’s Chief Investment Officer and brings ten years of administrative experience to the firm. Prior to
joining Champlain, Lauren was an Executive Assistant at various companies including: the Interactive Advertising Bureau, Ford Models, and Sony Music.
Lauren graduated from the University of Michigan in Ann Arbor with a Bachelor of Arts in Mass Communication.

Deborah R. Healey – Partner & Head Trader

Deborah has over 28 years of trading experience. She is a founding partner and the firm’s senior equity trader. Prior to joining Champlain, she was a vice
president and small cap equity trader at NL Capital Management, Inc. Prior to this, she was with Putnam Investments as a senior vice president and senior
equity trader where she was responsible for trading all equities within the financial, capital goods and conglomerates sectors. Before Putnam’s move to sector
trading, she handled all trading for several small cap managers. Deborah was an active participant in the design and implementation of Putnam’s internal
trading systems. She was a senior equity trader at Fidelity Investments before moving to Putnam. Deborah is a past president of the Boston Securities
Traders Association.

Deborah graduated from Dartmouth College with a Bachelor of Arts in Government.

Angie M. Holbrook, CFA – Senior Associate Client Service

Angie joined Champlain in 2015 to assist with client service and consultant relations. Prior to assuming her current role, Angie was senior vice president,
consultant relations at Pyramis Global Advisors, a Fidelity Investments company. In her 16 year tenure at Fidelity she also worked as a product manager
responsible for marketing, competitive analysis, and product management for Fidelity’s institutional fixed income products as well as an implementation
project manager and an account associate at Fidelity Management Trust Company.

Angie earned her Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration from the University of Vermont and her MBA degree from Boston College. Angie
earned her Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) designation in 2006 and is a member of the CFA Institute and the Boston and Chicago CFA Societies. She also
holds the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) Series 7 and 63 licenses.

Team



32

Russell E. Hoss, CFA – Senior Associate Portfolio Manager
Rusty has more than 13 years of investment management experience. He is a portfolio manager on the firm’s emerging markets investment team. Prior to
joining Champlain in the summer of 2015, Rusty was a founder and managing partner at New Sheridan Advisors LLC, a boutique emerging and frontier
markets investment specialist. Rusty also previously held positions as a research analyst at Alder Capital, a San Diego based hedge fund, and as a senior
research analyst & director of equity research at ROTH Capital Partners.

Rusty served for 5 years as a Cost Analyst after earning his Bachelor of Science degree in Behavioral Sciences from the United States Air Force Academy. He
received his MBA degree from Loyola Marymount University. Rusty earned his Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) designation in 2004 and is a member of the
CFA Institute and the Orange County CFA Society.

Richard W. Hoss – Senior Associate Analyst
Rick has more than 9 years of investment management experience. He is an analyst on the firm’s emerging markets investment team. Prior to joining
Champlain in the summer of 2015, Rick was a managing partner at New Sheridan Advisors LLC, a boutique emerging and frontier markets investment
specialist. Prior to New Sheridan Advisors, Rick was a senior research analyst at ROTH Capital Partners, where he led research coverage on the Industrials
sector.

Rick served for 6 years as an aircraft commander after earning his Bachelor of Science degree in Social Sciences from the United States Air Force Academy. 
He received his MBA degree from the University of Maryland. 

Finn R. McCoy – Partner & Trader

Finn has more than 8 years of financial services experience. Finn joined Champlain in the summer of 2006 as an operations analyst. Finn moved to the
trading desk in 2008. Finn’s prior experience includes internships with the offices of United States Senators Patrick Leahy and James Jeffords, as well as a
semester studying abroad in Buenos Aires, Argentina.

Finn graduated with honors with a Bachelor of Arts in Economics from the University of Vermont.

Mary E. Michel – Partner & Client Service

Mary has more than 27 years of financial services experience. She is a founding partner and is responsible for client service and consultant relations. Prior to
joining Champlain, she was a consultant for NL Capital Management, Inc. working as an institutional relationship manager. Prior to this, she was a vice
president at Funds Distributors, Inc. where she worked with Dresdner RCM Global Funds as a senior distribution strategist and relationship manager. Before
this, she was at Warburg Pincus Asset Management, Inc. where she co-managed the marketing, sales and key accounts for the financial advisor channel.

Mary graduated from Syracuse University with a Bachelor of Arts in Political Science. She received her MBA from the University of Connecticut. Mary earned
the Claritas Investment Certificate in 2013. Claritas and Claritas Investment Certificate are Trademarks owned by CFA Institute.

Team



33

Wendy K. Nunez – Partner & Chief Compliance Officer and Operations

Wendy has over 26 years of financial services experience. She is a founding partner and is responsible for compliance and operations at the firm. Prior to
joining Champlain, Wendy was a registered principal at Equity Services, Inc., where she managed the home office operations of the broker-dealer. Prior to
that, Wendy spent 14 years at Scudder Kemper Investments. In her most recent role at Scudder Kemper, Wendy was vice president of The Regulatory
Oversight Group; her group was responsible for all non-routine regulatory interactions, oversight of the Code of Ethics, as well as the compliance audit
function. Wendy also held management positions in distributor and advisor compliance and investment operations.

Wendy graduated from the University of Vermont with a Bachelor of Arts in Political Science. She received her MBA from Boston University.

Margaret C. O’Brien – Associate Client Service

Meg brings more than 10 years of client service experience to the firm. Prior to joining Champlain in 2010, Meg worked in operations management and
customer service with Destination Hotels and Resorts. She also held positions in the nonprofit and development field. Meg graduated from the University of
Colorado, Boulder with a Bachelor of Arts. Meg earned the Claritas Investment Certificate in 2013. Claritas and Claritas Investment Certificate are
Trademarks owned by CFA Institute.

Judith W. O’Connell – Managing Partner & Chief Operating Officer

Judy has more than 24 years of financial services experience. She is a founding partner and has primary responsibility for the firm’s day-to-day operations,
client service and business development. Prior to joining Champlain, she was a senior vice president at NL Capital Management, Inc. where she directed
client service, marketing and operations for the firm’s institutional business. Before this, she was the director of mutual funds/intermediary markets at
Dresdner RCM Capital Management in San Francisco, California, where she had overall responsibility for business management, operations, marketing, sales
and product development functions for the mutual funds. Early in her career, she held management positions within investment operations, compliance and
treasury at The Boston Company.

Judy graduated from the University of Massachusetts-Amherst with a Bachelor of Science in Finance.

David M. O’Neal, CFA – Partner & Analyst

David has more than 18 years of investment management experience. He is a founding partner and a member of the firm’s investment team specializing in
health care research. Prior to joining Champlain, David was vice president and health care equity analyst for the small cap and core mid cap strategies at NL
Capital Management, Inc. From 1997 to 2002, he was a senior research analyst for Midwest Research/First Tennessee Securities. Additionally, David has over
12 years experience in the health care market as a hospital manager and health care consultant.

David graduated magna cum laude from Vanderbilt University with a Bachelor of Arts in Economics and Mathematics. He received his MBA from the
University of Chicago. David earned his Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) designation in 2002 and is a member of the CFA Institute and the Vermont CFA
Society.

Team



34

Eric P. Ode – Partner & Business Management

Eric has more than 6 years of financial services experience. Eric first joined Champlain as a summer intern in 2012, and rejoined the firm in 2014. Prior to
joining Champlain in 2014, Eric was a Vice President at Great Hill Partners where he was responsible for originating and evaluating investment opportunities
in the business and financial services sectors. Previously, Eric was a Corporate Private Equity Associate at The Carlyle Group where he evaluated investment
opportunities and worked with portfolio companies in the Aerospace, Defense and Government Services sectors. Prior to his time at The Carlyle Group, Eric
worked at Credit Suisse as an Investment Banking Analyst in the Financial Sponsors group.

Eric received an AB in Economics from Harvard University and an MBA from The Wharton School at the University of Pennsylvania, where he was a Joseph
Wharton Fellow.

Kate R. Saraceno – Associate Client Service Support

Kate brings more than 16 years of administrative experience to her role supporting Champlain’s Chief Operating Officer. Prior to joining Champlain in 2014,
Kate spent eight years at McKinsey & Company in roles in administration, professional development, and communications. She also worked as the Executive
Assistant to the CEOs of two investment management firms in Boston. She is a graduate of Middlebury College with a Bachelor of Arts in Psychology.

Henry C. Sinkula – Associate Analyst

Henry joined Champlain in December 2013 as a Quantitative Analyst intern, and was hired as an Associate Quantitative Analyst in the spring of 2015. Prior 
to joining Champlain, Henry was an intern with the New Listings team within NASDAQ’s Global Corporate Client Group. Henry graduated from the University 
of Vermont with a Bachelor’s of Science in Finance and a Minor in Economics. Henry is a CFA Level I candidate. 

Lisa L. Trubiano, CFA – Senior Associate Client Service 

Lisa brings more than 29 years of financial services experience to the firm. Prior to joining Champlain in 2015, Lisa was a Vice President with Goldman Sachs
in their institutional management division responsible for positioning equity and fixed income strategies to a broad range of institutional investors. Prior to
Goldman, Lisa was a Senior Vice President at Dwight where she managed the consultant relations effort and was involved in new business development for
their fixed income strategies. Previously, she managed the Mid-Atlantic sales and relationship management team for The Boston Company, a global equity
firm. Lisa had a similar role at Putnam Investments in addition to managing the consultant relations effort in the eastern half of the country.

Lisa graduated from Babson College with an MBA, she received her Master’s in Educational Media from Boston University and her Bachelor of Science from
Ithaca College in Broadcasting and Film. Lisa earned her Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) designation in 1999. She is a member of the CFA institute, she
holds a board position with the Vermont CFA Society and is a member of the Boston Security Analysts Society.

Elizabeth J. Wykoff – Associate Office Administration

Elizabeth has more than 22 years of experience in office administration, client services, and administrative support. She is responsible for office
management. Prior to joining Champlain in 2008, Elizabeth served as assistant to the Chief Operating Officer and founder of Monitor Group, a strategic
consulting firm in Cambridge, Massachusetts.

Elizabeth attended Syracuse University.

Team



35

Jason L. Wyman, Ph.D. – Senior Associate Analyst

Jason has more than 7 years of investment management experience. He is a member of the firm’s investment team focusing on quantitative analysis. Prior
to joining Champlain in 2012, he was a vice president at Dwight Asset Management where he developed and oversaw the firm’s quantitative risk
management platform for forecasting portfolio volatility, projected tracking error and VAR.

Jason graduated summa cum laude from Middlebury College with a Bachelor of Arts in Physics. He earned his Ph.D. in Physics from the University of Chicago.

ShawnnaLea Y. Zemanek – Associate Client Service

ShawnnaLea brings more than 13 years of event management, marketing, office administration and client service experience to the firm. Prior to joining
Champlain in 2012, ShawnnaLea worked in hospitality and event management at Vermont resorts. She also worked in marketing and operations in the travel
industry and nonprofit and development field. ShawnnaLea graduated from Saint Michael’s College with a Bachelor of Arts in Journalism and Political Science.
She received her MBA from the University of Phoenix.

Team



36

Operational, Risk Management & Compliance Resources
 Advent/Axys – Portfolio accounting and performance system that interfaces with the order management system and

custodian bank systems to allow straight through processing and automated reconciliation, ensuring accuracy of client account
data. Champlain works closely with over 15 custodian banks, ensuring the accuracy of account information and the safekeeping
of client assets.

 Ashland Partners, LLP – Verification of GIPS compliance including composite construction and performance reporting.

 Assette – A leading provider of client reporting solutions. Assette client reporting and presentation software enables us to
easily combine data from Advent/Axys and FactSet to quickly produce customized reports and presentations.

 Broadridge ProxyEdge® - ProxyEdge is Broadridge's suite of electronic voting services that help simplify the management of
institutional proxies. The system manages the process of meeting notifications, voting, tracking, mailing, reporting, record
maintenance and even vote disclosure rules enacted by the SEC. Champlain uses ProxyEdge® to vote all of our proxies.

 Code:Red – A research management platform that aggregates various forms of research, data, articles, and other information
sources. It enables the investment team to better collaborate on research, major trends, industry news, and a variety of other
elements that support our portfolio management and stock selection process.

 Eze Software – An industry leading Order Management System. Eze Software enables us to monitor and analyze portfolios,
route orders, receive executions, manage guidelines and restrictions, and integrate directly with our internal systems and
external parties. Eze Software includes a front-end compliance module through which Champlain monitors account guidelines
and restrictions.

 FactSet – Desktop access to comprehensive, highly detailed financial data on all publicly traded U. S. companies. Extensive
screening capabilities and broad array of financial analysis tools including portfolio attribution.

 Investment Advisers Association – The IAA represents the interest of SEC-registered investment advisers through
advocacy, compliance consulting and education.

 MATLAB - A high-level programming language and interactive environment for numerical computation, data visualization, and
the development of proprietary custom software. Champlain uses it to automate internal reporting, translate data between
different software vendor systems, build tools used by the investment team and trading desk, and produce original market
research which informs the investment process.

 MSCI ESG Research – Provides in-depth research and analysis of the environmental, social and governance-related business
practices of thousands of companies worldwide; Champlain utilizes MSCI ESG Manager to facilitate the creation of restricted
lists for its socially responsible investor (SRI) clients.

 National Regulatory Service – An online compliance resource and tool that facilitates communication and training of
Champlain staff.

 Omgeo/Oasys and Alert – Oasys and Alert provide the ability to automatically report and affirm trades through DTC, and to
communicate current account delivery instructions to brokers.

 SatuitCRM – On-demand and on-premise vertical market sales force automation and client relationship management solution.

 Schwab Compliance Technologies, Inc. – Compliance automation software vendor; includes employee trading
preclearance, insider trading surveillance, policy affirmations, employee disclosures, gifts and entertainment reporting, and
political contribution preclearance and reporting.



37See next page for a description of the product, fees and methodology.  Past performance is not 
indicative of future results.

Mid Cap Composite Performance (as of 06.30.15)

Annualized Returns %

Gross Net Russell Midcap

1 Year 10.32 9.54 6.63

3 Year 19.43 18.57 19.26

5 Year 18.83 17.98 18.23

7 Year 12.64 11.84 10.51

10 Year 12.02 11.18 9.40

Since Inception
03.25.04

12.16 11.28 10.18

Annual Returns %

Gross Net Russell Midcap

YTD 2015 6.94 6.55 2.35

2014 9.19 8.43 13.22

2013 38.92 37.88 34.76

2012 13.05 12.23 17.28

2011 4.04 3.31 -1.55

2010 22.18 21.37 25.48

2009 28.91 28.04 40.48

2008 -25.71 -26.13 -41.46

2007 16.55 15.54 5.69

2006 10.30 9.21 15.58

2005 13.04 11.90 12.70



38

Mid Cap Composite Annual Disclosure (as of 06.30.15)

Year End
Total Firm 

Assets 
(millions)

Composite Assets Annual Performance Results

USD 
(millions)

Number 
of 

Accounts

Composite 
Gross

Composite 
Net

Russell 
Midcap

S&P 
MidCap 

400

Composite 
Dispersion

Composite 
3 Year

Standard 
Deviation

RMidcap
3 Year

Standard 
Deviation

S&P 
MidCap 

400
3 Year

Standard 
Deviation

2014 6,604 2,460 28 9.19% 8.43% 13.22% 9.77% 0.12% 10.77% 10.14% 11.13%

2013 6,032 1,873 27 38.92% 37.88% 34.76% 33.50% 0.23% 13.57% 14.03% 15.02%

2012 4,396 1,336 27 13.05% 12.23% 17.28% 17.88% 0.15% 14.88% 17.20% 17.90%

2011 4,219 1,236 25 4.04% 3.31% -1.55% -1.73% 0.44% 17.87% 21.55% 21.85%

2010 4,146 1,079 25 22.18% 21.37% 25.48% 26.64% 0.25% 21.85% 26.46% 25.80%

2009 3,188 625 17 28.91% 28.04% 40.48% 37.38% 1.28% 20.46% 24.21% 23.50%

2008 1,803 117 7 -25.71% -26.13% -41.46% -36.23% N.A. 16.86% 19.36% 19.02%

2007 1,368 44 3 16.55% 15.54% 5.69% 7.97% N.A. 7.62% 9.48% 10.37%

2006 587 0.60 1 10.30% 9.21% 15.58% 10.31% N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

2005 219 0.55 1 13.04% 11.90% 12.70% 12.55% N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

2004* 113 0.49 1 13.11% 12.20% 16.87% 13.61% N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

N.A. – Dispersion information is not statistically meaningful due to an insufficient number of portfolios in the composite for the entire year. Standard Deviation information is not presented as 36 monthly 
composite returns are not available to calculate the statistic.
*Results shown for the year 2004 represent partial period performance from March 26, 2004 through December 31, 2004.
Mid Cap Composite contains fully discretionary mid cap equity accounts and for comparison purposes is measured against the Russell Midcap and the S&P MidCap 400 indices. The Russell Midcap Index measures the performance of the mid cap segment
of the U.S. equity universe. The S&P MidCap 400 covers mid cap equities which is approximately 7% of the domestic equity market. The strategy invests in a broadly diversified portfolio of approximately 50 to 75 common stocks of medium sized
companies, and to a lesser extent small and large sized companies, which have attractive long-term fundamentals, superior appreciation potential and attractive valuations. The composition of Champlain’s portfolio may differ significantly from the
securities that comprise the index due to the firm’s active investment process, sector allocations and valuation analysis, and smaller number of holdings. Champlain’s Mid Cap investment program does not, and Champlain makes no attempt to, mirror
the performance of the indices in the aggregate and the volatility of Champlain’s Mid Cap investment program may be materially different from that of the referenced indices. Champlain’s Mid Cap investment strategy may involve above-average
portfolio turnover which could negatively impact the after-tax gain experienced by an investor.

Champlain Investment Partners, LLC claims compliance with the Global Investment Performance Standards (GIPS®) and has prepared and presented this report in compliance with the GIPS standards. Champlain Investment Partners, LLC has been
independently verified for the periods September 17, 2004 through March 31, 2015.

Verification assesses whether (1) the firm has complied with all the composite construction requirements of the GIPS standards on a firm-wide basis and (2) the firm’s policies and procedures are designed to calculate and present performance in
compliance with the GIPS standards. The mid cap composite has been examined for the periods September 17, 2004 through March 31, 2015. The verification and performance examination reports are available upon request.

Champlain Investment Partners, LLC is an independent investment adviser. The firm maintains a complete list and description of composites, which is available upon request.

Results are based on fully discretionary accounts under management, including those accounts no longer with the firm. Past performance is not indicative of future results.

The U.S. Dollar is the currency used to express performance. Returns are presented gross and net of management fees and include the reinvestment of all income. Net returns are calculated based on actual fees. Actual returns are reduced by
investment advisory fees including performance based fees and other expenses that may be incurred in the management of the account. The annual composite dispersion presented is an asset-weighted standard deviation calculated for the accounts in
the composite the entire year. Policies for valuing portfolios, calculating performance, and preparing compliant presentations are available upon request.

The investment management fee schedule for the composite is 0.85% on the first $50 million, 0.75% on the next $50 million, and 0.65% over $100 million. Actual investment advisory fees incurred by clients may vary. Champlain’s fees are described in
Part 2 of its Form ADV.

The Mid Cap Composite was created September 17, 2004. Performance presented prior to September 17, 2004 occurred while the Portfolio Manager was affiliated with a prior firm and the Portfolio Manager was the only individual responsible for
selecting the securities to buy and sell. Ashland Partners & Company LLP performed an examination of this track record; an Independent Accountant’s Report is available upon request.



39

(as of 06.30.15)

Consumer Discretionary

Advance Auto Parts, Inc.
Bed Bath & Beyond Inc.
Cabela's Incorporated
CST Brands, Inc.
John Wiley & Sons, Inc. Class A
Panera Bread Company Class A
Sally Beauty Holdings, Inc.
Tupperware Brands Corporation

Consumer Staples

Flowers Foods, Inc.
J. M. Smucker Company
McCormick & Company, Incorporated
Molson Coors Brewing Company Class B
TreeHouse Foods, Inc.

Energy

Core Laboratories NV
Denbury Resources Inc.
Frank's International NV

Financials

Allied World Assurance Company 
Holdings,AG
Arthur J. Gallagher & Co.
Commerce Bancshares, Inc.
Cullen/Frost Bankers, Inc.
Endurance Specialty Holdings Ltd.
Northern Trust Corporation
Prosperity Bancshares, Inc.(R)
Willis Group Holdings Plc

Health Care

Align Technology, Inc.
C. R. Bard, Inc.
Cepheid
Cooper Companies, Inc.
Edwards Lifesciences Corporation
Laboratory Corporation of America 
Holdings
Mettler-Toledo International Inc.
Sirona Dental Systems, Inc.
St. Jude Medical, Inc.
STERIS Corporation
Teleflex Incorporated
Waters Corporation

Industrials

Actuant Corporation Class A
CLARCOR Inc.
Donaldson Company, Inc.
Dover Corporation
Esterline Technologies Corporation
Fastenal Company
Parker-Hannifin Corporation
Rockwell Automation, Inc.

Information Technology

Altera Corporation
ANSYS, Inc.
Fortinet, Inc.
Guidewire Software, Inc.
Informatica Corporation
PTC Inc.
Red Hat, Inc.

SolarWinds, Inc.
Splunk Inc.
WEX Inc.
Workday, Inc. Class A
Xilinx, Inc.

Materials

Aptargroup, Inc.

Champlain Mid Cap CompositePortfolio Holdings -

Holdings are subject to change. References to specific issuers or securities are presented to
illustrate the application of our investment philosophy only and are not intended to be considered
recommendations by Champlain Investment Partners. The specific securities identified and
described in this presentation do not represent all of the securities purchased, sold or recommended
by Champlain, and it should not be assumed that investments in the securities identified were or
will be profitable. Upon request, Champlain will provide a list of all securities purchased over the
last year. This information is presented as supplemental to the performance disclosure page
included in this presentation.



June 30, 2015

Tucson Supplemental Retirement

System

Investment Measurement Service

Quarterly Review

The following report was prepared by Callan Associates Inc. ("CAI") using information from sources that include the following: fund trustee(s); fund

custodian(s); investment manager(s); CAI computer software; CAI investment manager and fund sponsor database; third party data vendors; and other outside

sources as directed by the client. CAI assumes no responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of the information provided, or methodologies employed, by

any information providers external to CAI. Reasonable care has been taken to assure the accuracy of the CAI database and computer software. Callan does

not provide advice regarding, nor shall Callan be responsible for, the purchase, sale, hedge or holding of individual securities, including, without limitation

securities of the client (i.e., company stock) or derivatives in the client’s accounts. In preparing the following report, CAI has not reviewed the risks of individual

security holdings or the conformity of individual security holdings with the client’s investment policies and guidelines, nor has it assumed any responsibility to do

so. Advice pertaining to the merits of individual securities and derivatives should be discussed with a third party securities expert. Copyright 2015 by Callan

Associates Inc.

Item B4



August 2015    Callan Associates Inc. 

Tucson Supplemental Retirement System 
Executive Summary for Period Ending June 30, 2015 

 
Asset Allocation 
 

 
 
Total Fund Performance 
 

Last Quarter Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 10 years
Total Fund Gross 0.76% 4.63% 12.86% 12.64% 7.07%
Total Fund Net 0.62% 4.17% 12.32% 12.07% 6.53%
Total Fund Benchmark* 0.14% 4.34% 11.27% 11.70% 6.82%

Fiscal Year Returns 
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Total Fund Gross 4.63% 19.64% 14.84% 2.40% 23.19%
Total Fund Net 4.17% 19.11% 14.21% 1.82% 22.52%
Total Fund Benchmark* 4.34% 16.97% 12.87% 3.04% 22.53%

Returns for Periods Ended June 30, 2015

 

 
 
Recent Developments 
 

 In August 2015, PIMCO announced they received a Wells notice from the SEC regarding 
the valuation of securities in the actively managed ETF vehicle of the PIMCO Total 
Return strategy (ticker: BOND). Specifically the Wells notice referenced the valuation of 
smaller sized positions in non-agency MBS purchased by the ETF during the period since 
inception on February 29, 2012 to June 30, 2012. 

The potential concern is that PIMCO was buying difficult-to-value non-agency MBS in 
small sizes (in “odd lots”) at cheap prices and then valuing these securities at higher 
prices for the purposes of calculating a NAV for the ETF and calculating performance.  

Note that a Wells notice represents a recommendation from SEC staff to commence civil 
enforcement action against PIMCO, not a verdict or finding of wrongdoing, or even 
technically an allegation of wrongdoing. It provides PIMCO a chance to respond to the 
issues that were brought up by the notice. 



August 2015    Callan Associates Inc. 

 In May 2015, Causeway Capital Management announced the departure of fundamental 
Portfolio Manager Kevin Durkin, effective August 31, 2015. Durkin has been with the 
team since 1999 at its predecessor firm Hotchkis and Wiley Capital Management. 
Following his departure, Ellen Lee will lead the strategy's energy research cluster while 
continuing her work in utilities. Lee joined the firm in 2007 as a research associate and 
was promoted to portfolio manager in January 2015. 

 
Organizational Issues 
 

 In May 2015, Aberdeen Asset Management PLC (Aberdeen) announced its plan to 
acquire FLAG Capital Management, a $6 billion private equity and real estate manager 
with offices in Stamford, Boston, and Hong Kong. With this acquisition, Aberdeen will 
manage approximately $21 billion in its alternatives platform. The transaction, subject to 
regulatory approval from the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission and the 
U.S. Department of Justice and the Federal Trade Commission, is expected to close in 
the third quarter of 2015. 

 In August 2015, Aberdeen Asset Management recently announced the acquisition of 
Arden Asset Management LLC. Arden is a hedge fund of funds manager that advises on 
a range of multi-manager vehicles, including a daily liquidity 40 Act mutual fund. The 
acquisition will bring combined hedge fund assets under management at Aberdeen to 
$11 billion with over 30 investment professionals. The Arden transaction comes on the 
heels of Aberdeen's acquisition of FLAG Capital Management, a private equity shop, in 
May 2015. The acquisitions are part of a larger effort to grow and broaden Aberdeen's 
global alternatives platform to better service clients. 

 

Active Manager Performance 

Fund Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years
PIMCO Stocks Plus 53 28 12
T. Rowe Price Large Cap Growth 47 7 [10]
Champlain Mid Cap 29 41 [47]
Pyramis Small Cap 10 13 11
Causeway International Value Equity 58 29 12
Aberdeen EAFE Plus 98 [99] [86]
PIMCO Fixed Income 98 11 17
J.P. Morgan Strategic Property Fund 49 1 14
LaSalle Income and Growth Fund 20 68 86
JP Morgan Income and Growth Fund 30 5 4

* Brackets indicate actual performance linked with manager composite

Peer Group Ranking

 
 

 

 Aberdeen EAFE Plus – This product invests in non-U.S. stocks Aberdeen believes are 
high quality and reasonably priced. The first full quarter for TSRS’s investment with 
Aberdeen was the second quarter of 2012 and over that period Aberdeen has returned 
5.85% per annum while the MSCI ACWI ex-U.S. benchmark returned 9.44%. This has 
been a noticeably difficult period of performance for Aberdeen though it is not 
inconsistent with their philosophy to protect in down markets at the expense of lower 
upside in rising equity markets. This is evident in Aberdeen’s low volatility of return 
versus peers and portfolio positioning in sectors and companies that have historically 



August 2015    Callan Associates Inc. 

exhibited more defensive characteristic such as consumer staples, industrials, and 
telecommunication. A period of less than three years is a short time-frame to examine an 
investment manager with a long-term view. Aberdeen’s performance is shown on pages 
61 & 62. 

 
 



August 2015    Callan Associates Inc. 

Tucson Supplemental Retirement System 
Statement of Pension Investment Policy and Objectives 
Quantitative Watchlist Criteria 
 
 One-Year Performance (measured on a quarterly basis) 

 
1. Fixed Income and Open-End Real Estate Portfolios 

– Underperform benchmark by 2.0% and bottom 25% in peer group for two 
consecutive quarters. 
 
None  
 

2. Passively Managed Portfolios 
– Underperform benchmark by 0.5% 

 
None 
 

3. Actively Managed Equity Portfolios 
– Underperform benchmark by 5.0% and bottom 25% in peer group for two 

consecutive quarters. 
 
None 
 

 Three-Year performance (annualized, measured on rolling quarterly basis) 
 
1. Actively Managed Portfolios 

– Underperform benchmark and bottom 60% in peer group for two consecutive 
quarters. 

 
Aberdeen EAFE Plus meets this criterion. As of 6/30/15, the three-year return for 
Aberdeen was 5.85% and ranked 99th percentile versus peer while the benchmark 
returned 9.44%. As of 3/31/15, the three-year return for Aberdeen was 4.72% and 
ranked 98th percentile versus peer while the benchmark returned 6.40%. 
 
LaSalle meets this criterion. As of 6/30/15, the three-year return for LaSalle was 
12.49% and ranked 68th percentile versus peers while the benchmark returned 
13.11%. As of 3/31/15, the three-year return for LaSalle was 4.78% and ranked 94th 
percentile versus peers while the benchmark returned 12.66%. This fund is in the 
process of liquidation. 

 
2. Passively Managed Portfolios 

– Underperform benchmark by 0.3% 
 

None 
 
*Steel River and Macquarie are infrastructure funds with no available peer group data. 
According to LaSalle, Income & Growth Fund IV’s expected termination date is 
10/1/2015; a final distribution of TSRS’s remaining assets will occur subsequent to the 
termination date.” 

 
 
 
 
 

Gordon Weightman, CFA   Paul Erlendson    
Vice President     Senior Vice President   

   



Table of Contents
June 30, 2015

Market Overview

Capital Markets Review 1

Total Fund

Actual Asset Allocation vs Target 24

Asset Allocation Across Investment Managers 25

Investment Manager Returns 26

Investment Manager Returns 30

Total Fund Attribution 34

Total Fund Performance 40

Domestic Equity

Domestic Equity 42

Alliance S&P 500 Index 44

PIMCO StocksPLUS 46

BlackRock Russell 1000 Value 48

T. Rowe Price Large Cap Growth 50

Champlain Mid Cap 52

Pyramis Small Cap 54

International Equity

International Equity 57

Causeway International Value Equity 59

Aberdeen EAFE Plus 61

Fixed Income

Fixed Income 64

BlackRock U.S. Debt Fund 66

PIMCO Fixed Income 68

Real Estate

Real Estate 71

JP Morgan Strategic Property Fund 73

JP Morgan Income and Growth Fund 75

Infrastructure

Infrastructure 78

Macquarie European Infrastructure 79

SteelRiver Infrastructure North America 80

Callan Research/Education 81

Disclosures 84



M
a

rk
e

t O
v
e

rv
ie

w

Market Overview

C
a

p
ita

l M
a

rk
e

ts
 R

e
v
ie

w

Capital Markets Review



 

Α Σελλερ�σ Μαρκετ   

ΠΡΙςΑΤΕ ΕΘΥΙΤΨ

Φυνδραισινγ, ϖεντυρε 

ινϖεστmεντ, ανδ ΙΠΟσ 

φορ βοτη βυψουτ ανδ ϖεν−

τυρε λεαπεδ ιν τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ. 

Buyout investment was lat and 
M&A exit igures for both buyout and 
ϖεντυρε ωερε mιξεδ. Ηιγη πριχεσ αρε 

mυτινγ πριϖατε Μ&Α ϖολυmεσ, βυτ αλλ 

οτηερ αχτιϖιτψ mεασυρεσ σοαρεδ.

 

Γρεεκ Γλοοm  

ΝΟΝ−Υ.Σ. ΕΘΥΙΤΨ

Νον−Υ.Σ. mαρκετσ mαν−

αγεδ το ενδ τηε θυαρτερ 

ωιτη α σλιγητ γαιν (ΜΣΧΙ 

ΑΧWΙ εξ ΥΣΑ Ινδεξ: +0.72%) 

δεσπιτε ηειγητενεδ χονχερνσ αβουτ 

Γρεεχε ανδ Χηινα. Βοτη τηε δεϖελ−

οπεδ ΜΣΧΙ Wορλδ εξ ΥΣΑ Ινδεξ 

(+0.48%) ανδ τηε ΜΣΧΙ Εmεργινγ 

Μαρκετσ Ινδεξ (+0.82%) εκεδ ουτ 

mεαγερ ρετυρνσ.

 

Μοmεντυm Wηιπλαση 

ΗΕDΓΕ ΦΥΝDΣ

Τηε Χρεδιτ Συισσε 

Ηεδγε Φυνδ Ινδεξ 

σλιππεδ 0.48%. Τηε 

mεδιαν mαναγερ ιν τηε Χαλλαν 

Ηεδγε Φυνδ−οφ−Φυνδσ Dαταβασε 

ινχηεδ αηεαδ 0.23%. Τηε θυαρτερ�σ 

mοστ νοταβλε ϖιχτιm ωασ Μαναγεδ 

Φυτυρεσ (−10.61%).

ΤDΦσ Wιν Θυαρτερ,  

Ασσετ Φλοωσ 

DΕΦΙΝΕD ΧΟΝΤΡΙΒΥΤΙΟΝ

Τηε Χαλλαν DΧ Ινδεξ� 

γαινεδ 2.15%, τραιλινγ 

τηε τψπιχαλ 2035 ταρ−

γετ δατε φυνδ (ΤDΦ), ωηιχη ροσε 

2.55%. DΧ πλαν βαλανχεσ γρεω βψ 

2.76%. Νεαρλψ 66 χεντσ οφ εϖερψ 

δολλαρ τηατ mοϖεδ ωιτηιν DΧ πλανσ 

lowed to TDFs. 

 

Μιξεδ Μεσσαγεσ 

ΡΕΑΛ ΕΣΤΑΤΕ

Τηε ΝΧΡΕΙΦ Προπερτψ 

Ινδεξ αδϖανχεδ 3.14% 

(1.26% ινχοmε ρετυρν; 

1.89% αππρεχιατιον ρετυρν). Τηε 

ΦΤΣΕ ΕΠΡΑ/ΝΑΡΕΙΤ Dεϖελοπεδ 

ΡΕΙΤ Ινδεξ (ΥΣD) δεχλινεδ 6.67% 

ανδ δοmεστιχ ΡΕΙΤσ τραχκεδ βψ τηε 

ΦΤΣΕ ΝΑΡΕΙΤ Εθυιτψ ΡΕΙΤσ Ινδεξ 

δροππεδ 9.95%.

Ρετυρνσ Τακε α  

Σεmεστερ Αβροαδ

ΦΥΝD ΣΠΟΝΣΟΡ

Ιν τηε Χαλλαν Φυνδ 

Σπονσορ Dαταβασε, χορ−

πορατε φυνδσ (−0.21%) 

ωερε τηε θυαρτερ�σ ωορστ περφορmερσ 

ωηιλε Ταφτ−Ηαρτλεψ πλανσ (+0.33%) 

ωερε τηε βεστ ατ τηε mεδιαν. Ταφτ−

Hartley funds beneited from a 
smaller exposure to ixed income 
ϖερσυσ τηειρ χορπορατε πεερσ.

Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Βροαδ Μαρκετ Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρνσ 

Σεχονδ Θυαρτερ 2015

Cash (90-Day T-Bills)

U.S. Equity (Russell 3000)

Non-U.S. Equity (MSCI ACWI ex USA)

Emerging Equity (MSCI Em. Mkts.)

U.S. Fixed (Barclays Aggregate)

Non-U.S. Fixed (Citi Non-U.S.)

Real Estate (NCREIF Property)

Hedge Funds (CS HFI)

Commodities (Bloomberg)

Sources: Barclays, Citigroup, Credit Suisse Hedge Index, Merrill Lynch, MSCI, NCREIF, 

Russell Investment Group, S&P Dow Jones

-1.68%

-1.54%

+3.14%

-0.48%

+0.01%

+4.65%

+0.14%

+0.72%

+0.82%

 

Υνδερωηελmινγ   

Υ.Σ. ΕΘΥΙΤΨ

Λαργε ανδ σmαλλ χαπ 

στοχκσ σηοωεδ σλιγητλψ 

ποσιτιϖε ρετυρνσ τηισ θυαρ−

τερ (Ρυσσελλ 1000 Ινδεξ: +0.1% 

ανδ Ρυσσελλ 2000 Ινδεξ: +0.4%) 

ωηιλε mιδ χαπ τραιλεδ χονσιδεραβλψ 

(Ρυσσελλ Μιδ−Χαπ Ινδεξ: −1.5%). 

Γροωτη mαινταινεδ ιτσ λεαδ οϖερ 

ϖαλυε ιν αλλ χαπιταλιζατιονσ.

 

Ρεϖερσιον το τηε Μεαν  

Υ.Σ. ΕΧΟΝΟΜΨ

Τηε Υ.Σ. ΓDΠ ρεσυmεδ 

mοmεντυm, ποστινγ α 

2.3% ινχρεασε. Χρεδιτ 

γοεσ το τηε ρισε ιν χονσυmερ 

σπενδινγ φυελεδ βψ ροβυστ γαινσ ιν 

εmπλοψmεντ ανδ ηουσεηολδ ωεαλτη. 

Inlation remains well below the 
Φεδ�σ 2% ταργετ.

6
Π Α Γ Ε

2
Π Α Γ Ε

19
Π Α Γ Ε

 

Ρατεσ Μοϖε Ηιγηερ 

Υ.Σ. ΦΙΞΕD ΙΝΧΟΜΕ

Τηε Υ.Σ. βονδ mαρκετσ 

εξπεριενχεδ α βαχκυπ 

ιν ιντερεστ ρατεσ ασ 

Τρεασυριεσ σολδ οφφ ανδ σπρεαδ 

σεχτορσ ωερε mιξεδ. Τηε ψιελδ 

χυρϖε στεεπενεδ. Τηε Βαρχλαψσ 

Αγγρεγατε Ινδεξ δεχλινεδ 1.68%. 

Τηε Βαρχλαψσ Χορπορατε Ηιγη 

Ψιελδ Ινδεξ was lat.

9
Π Α Γ Ε

4
Π Α Γ Ε

 

Dεαλ ορ Νο Dεαλ

ΝΟΝ−Υ.Σ. ΦΙΞΕD ΙΝΧΟΜΕ 

Τηε δεβτ στανδοφφ ιν 

Γρεεχε ανδ α βυλλ mαρ−

κετ ρεϖερσαλ ιν δεϖελοπεδ 

mαρκετσ ηιγηλιγητεδ τηε σοϖερειγν 

βονδ mαρκετ. Τηε υνηεδγεδ Χιτι 

Νον−Υ.Σ. Wορλδ Γοϖερνmεντ 

Βονδ Ινδεξ (WΓΒΙ) δεχλινεδ 

1.54%, ωηιλε τηε ηεδγεδ WΓΒΙ 

πλυνγεδ 3.20% δυε το α ωεακενινγ 

Υ.Σ. δολλαρ. 

15
Π Α Γ Ε

12
Π Α Γ Ε

20
Π Α Γ Ε

21
Π Α Γ Ε

17
Π Α Γ Ε

ΧΑΛΛΑΝ 
ΙΝςΕΣΤΜΕΝΤΣ 
ΙΝΣΤΙΤΥΤΕ Χαπιταλ 

Μαρκετ  
Ρεϖιεω



2

Ρεϖερσιον το τηε Μεαν 

Υ.Σ. ΕΧΟΝΟΜΨ |  ϑαψ Κλοεπφερ

After stalling in the irst part of 2015, the U.S. economic expan−

σιον ρεσυmεδ ιν τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ ωιτη α 2.3% ινχρεασε ιν 

GDP. Real GDP growth measurement for the irst quarter 
προϖεδ το βε α βυmπψ ριδε: τηε ινιτιαλ εστιmατε οφ +0.2% ωασ 

ρεϖισεδ το α 0.7% λοσσ, τηεν το α σλιγητερ δροπ οφ 0.2%, ανδ 

τηε mοστ ρεχεντ αννουνχεmεντ σωυνγ βαχκ το βλαχκ, αλβειτ α 

σχαντ +0.6%. Ηοωεϖερ ωε mεασυρε ιτ, τηε ωεακνεσσ ιν τηε 

irst quarter was attributed to a strong dollar hurting exports, 
ηαρση ωιντερ ωεατηερ ιντερφερινγ ωιτη γενεραλ εχονοmιχ αχτιϖ−

ιτψ, ανδ α σηαρπ δεχλινε ιν οιλ δριλλινγ δυε το πλυνγινγ οιλ πριχεσ. 

Λαβορ στοππαγεσ ιν ωεστερν πορτσ αδδεδ το τηε τρουβλεσ. Τηε 

ρεσυmπτιον ιν γροωτη ιν τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ χαmε φροm α ρισε 

ιν χονσυmπτιον σπενδινγ, φυελεδ βψ ροβυστ γαινσ ιν εmπλοψ−

ment and household wealth. Consumer conidence rose 
τηρουγη mυχη οφ τηε θυαρτερ, αλτηουγη τηε εϖεντσ ιν Γρεεχε 

and China in June likely sapped some of that conidence. The 
ηουσινγ mαρκετ ρεχοϖερψ χοντινυεδ το τακε σηαπε, προδδεδ 

βψ τηε σαmε εχονοmιχ νεωσ τηατ δροϖε χονσυmπτιον (ϕοβσ, 

household wealth, and consumer conidence). While some of 
τηε δατα σενδ mιξεδ mεσσαγεσ, γροωτη ιν τηε Υ.Σ. εχονοmψ 

ισ ρεϖερτινγ το ιτσ υνδερλψινγ 2.5%−3% λονγ−τερm αϖεραγε ρατε.

The job market posted solid gains during the irst half of 2015, 
averaging 195,000 per month in the irst quarter and 221,000 
περ mοντη ιν τηε σεχονδ. Τηε ψεαρ−οϖερ−ψεαρ γαιν ιν ϕοβσ 

τηρουγη ϑυνε ρεαχηεδ ϕυστ σηορτ οφ τηρεε mιλλιον, τηε λαργεστ 

γαιν φορ τηε ϑυλψ−ϑυνε περιοδ σινχε 2000. Τηε υνεmπλοψmεντ 

rate fell to 5.3% in June. While these data conirm that the 
irst-quarter GDP weakness was an anomaly, the Fed remains 
χονχερνεδ αβουτ κεψ χηαραχτεριστιχσ οφ τηε Υ.Σ. λαβορ mαρκετ. 

Μυχη οφ τηε ιmπροϖεmεντ ιν τηε υνεmπλοψmεντ ρατε ηασ βεεν 

τηε ρεσυλτ οφ δισχουραγεδ ωορκερσ λεαϖινγ τηε λαβορ φορχε. Τηε 

λαβορ φορχε παρτιχιπατιον ρατε φελλ το 62.6% ιν ϑυνε, α 38−ψεαρ 

λοω. Wαγε γροωτη ηασ βεεν ποσιτιϖε βυτ mοδεστ, ρισινγ 2% 

ψεαρ−οϖερ−ψεαρ τηρουγη ϑυνε, συγγεστινγ χοντινυεδ σλαχκ ιν 

τηε λαβορ mαρκετ δεσπιτε τηε ρεπορτεδ ϕοβ γαινσ.

Inlation remains well below the Fed’s 2% target. Headline CPI 
was lat in June compared to one year earlier due to sharply 
φαλλινγ ενεργψ πριχεσ ιν τηε λαττερ ηαλφ οφ 2014. Χορε ΧΠΙ, ωηιχη 

εξχλυδεσ φοοδ ανδ ενεργψ, ωασ υπ 1.8% ιν ϑυνε ψεαρ−οϖερ−ψεαρ, 

πυσηεδ υπ βψ ηεαλτη χαρε ανδ ηουσινγ χοστσ. Τηε σηαρπ δροπ 

ιν ενεργψ πριχεσ προϖιδεδ α ωινδφαλλ οφ σορτσ φορ χονσυmερσ, 

εναβλινγ τηεm το διρεχτ σπενδινγ το οτηερ χατεγοριεσ, συχη ασ 

χαρσ ανδ οτηερ δυραβλε γοοδσ.

02 0395 96 97 98 99 00 01 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15

-10%

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

Source: Bureau of  Economic Analysis

Θυαρτερλψ Ρεαλ ΓDΠ Γροωτη (20 Ψεαρσ)

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

PPI (All Commodities)CPI (All Urban Consumers)

02 039596 97 98 99 00 01 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 1415

Source: Bureau of  Labor Statistics

Inlation Year-Over-Year



3Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Υ.Σ. ΕΧΟΝΟΜΨ (Χοντινυεδ)

Household net worth reached $85 trillion in the irst quarter of 
2015, φυελεδ βψ ρισινγ ηοmε πριχεσ ανδ τηε στρονγ Υ.Σ. στοχκ 

market. Net worth is now 25% higher than its 2007 pre-inancial-
χρισισ πεακ. Τηισ ιmπροϖεmεντ ιν νετ ωορτη, χοmβινεδ ωιτη τηε 

σολιδ ϕοβ mαρκετ γαινσ, ηασ λεδ το α βυοψεδ λεϖελ οφ χονσυmερ 

conidence and resulted in broad consumer spending, strong 
αυτο σαλεσ, ανδ περκεδ υπ ιντερεστ ιν τηε ηουσινγ mαρκετ. Ηοmε 

πριχεσ αρε ρισινγ εϖερψωηερε, βυτ ατ ϖαρψινγ ρατεσ; γαινσ ηαϖε 

αϖεραγεδ 5% ψεαρ−οϖερ−ψεαρ οϖερ τηε παστ 12 mοντησ. Εξιστινγ 

ηοmε σαλεσ ροσε 3.2% ιν ϑυνε το α 5.49 mιλλιον−υνιτ αννυαλ ρατε, 

ωηιλε νεω ηοmε σαλεσ αρε ρυννινγ ατ α 545,000−υνιτ ρατε; βοτη 

ρατεσ αρε mυλτι−ψεαρ ηιγησ, βυτ συβσταντιαλλψ βελοω τηε πεακσ σετ 

πριορ το 2007. Ινϖεντοριεσ ρεmαιν τιγητ, δεσπιτε τηε ρισινγ πριχεσ. 

Ονε φαχτορ ισ τηε εξιστινγ συππλψ οφ ηοmεσ τηατ ρεmαιν υνδερ 

ωατερ ρελατιϖε το τηειρ mορτγαγε; ρεχεντ εστιmατεσ πλαχε τηισ 

inventory at ive million. 

Capital spending by sector was all over the map during the irst 
ηαλφ οφ 2015. Σπενδινγ ον βυιλδινγσ συδδενλψ συργεδ δυρινγ τηε 

σεχονδ θυαρτερ. Σπενδινγ ον Ρ&D ανδ σοφτωαρε χοντινυεσ το 

γροω ατ α σολιδ ρατε, ωηιλε σπενδινγ ον εθυιπmεντ ηασ σταλλεδ 

οϖερ τηε παστ φουρ θυαρτερσ. Τηεσε τηρεε σεχτορσ δροϖε βυσι−

νεσσ ινϖεστmεντ σπενδινγ φορ σεϖεραλ ψεαρσ αφτερ τηε ρεχεσσιον. 

Σπενδινγ ον mινινγ ανδ οιλ ωελλσ χολλαπσεδ, φορmερλψ ανοτηερ 

σουρχε οφ ρεχεντ ροβυστ ινϖεστmεντ γροωτη. Τακεν ασ α ωηολε, 

χαπιταλ σπενδινγ στυmβλεδ ιν τηε φουρτη θυαρτερ οφ 2014 ανδ 

suffered a weaker-than-expected irst half of 2015, most likely 
βεχαυσε εχονοmιχ γροωτη ωασ ιντερρυπτεδ.

U.S. exports of goods plunged in the irst quarter of 2015, 
σαππεδ βψ τηε συργινγ δολλαρ ανδ υνχερταιν εχονοmιχ γροωτη. 

Ηοωεϖερ, ιmπορτσ χοντινυεδ το ινχρεασε ανδ τηε χοmβινεδ εφφεχτ 

οφ νετ εξπορτσ (εξπορτσ mινυσ ιmπορτσ) συβτραχτεδ 1.9% φροm 

ΓDΠ γροωτη. Εξπορτσ ρεβουνδεδ ιν τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ, ασ τηε 

ιmπαχτ οφ τηε δολλαρ�σ συργε σταβιλιζεδ ανδ α mοδεστ ρεχοϖερψ 

τοοκ ηολδ ιν τηε ευρο ζονε.  Εξπορτσ ροσε βψ 5.3% ανδ ιmπορτ 

growth slipped from 7.1% in the irst quarter to 3.5% in the sec−

ονδ; ασ α ρεσυλτ, νετ εξπορτσ νο λονγερ δραγγεδ ον ΓDΠ γροωτη.

Τηε Λονγ−Τερm ςιεω  

2015

2νδ Θτρ

Περιοδσ ενδεδ Dεχεmβερ 31, 2014

Ινδεξ Ψεαρ 5 Ψρσ 10 Ψρσ 25 Ψρσ

Υ.Σ. Εθυιτψ

Ρυσσελλ 3000 0.14 12.56 15.63 7.94 9.78

Σ&Π 500 0.28 13.69 15.45 7.67 9.62

Ρυσσελλ 2000 0.42 4.89 15.55 7.77 9.75

Νον−Υ.Σ. Εθυιτψ

ΜΣΧΙ ΕΑΦΕ 0.62 −4.90 5.33 4.43 4.31

ΜΣΧΙ Εmεργινγ Μαρκετσ 0.82 −1.82 2.11 8.78 8.83

Σ&Π Εξ−Υ.Σ. Σmαλλ Χαπ 4.61 −3.42 8.52 6.84 5.48

Φιξεδ Ινχοmε

Βαρχλαψσ Αγγρεγατε −1.68 5.97 4.45 4.71 6.49

90−Dαψ Τ−Βιλλ 0.01 0.03 0.09 1.54 3.24

Βαρχλαψσ Λονγ Γ/Χ −7.22 19.31 9.81 7.36 8.49

Χιτι Νον−Υ.Σ. Γοϖτ −1.54 −2.68 0.85 2.64 6.21

Ρεαλ Εστατε

ΝΧΡΕΙΦ Προπερτψ 3.14 11.82 12.13 8.38 7.61

ΦΤΣΕ ΝΑΡΕΙΤ Εθυιτψ −9.95 30.14 16.88 8.31 11.25

Αλτερνατιϖεσ

ΧΣ Ηεδγε Φυνδ −0.48 4.13 5.88 5.82 −−

Χαmβριδγε ΠΕ∗ −− 22.88 17.40 14.02 15.56

Βλοοmβεργ Χοmmοδιτψ 4.66 −17.01 −5.53 −1.86 −−

Γολδ Σποτ Πριχε −0.96 −1.51 1.55 10.45 4.38

Inlation � ΧΠΙ−Υ 1.07 0.76 1.69 2.12 2.52

*Private equity data is time-weighted return for period ended December 31, 2014.

Sources: Barclays, Bloomberg, Citigroup, Credit Suisse, FTSE, MSCI, NCREIF, Russell 

Investment Group, Standard & Poor’s, Thomson/Cambridge.

Ρεχεντ Θυαρτερλψ Ινδιχατορσ

Εχονοmιχ Ινδιχατορσ 2Θ15 1Θ15 4Θ14 3Θ14 2Θ14 1Θ14 4Θ13 3Θ13

Εmπλοψmεντ Χοστ�Τοταλ Χοmπενσατιον Γροωτη 2.0% 2.6% 2.2% 2.2% 2.0% 1.8% 2.0% 1.9%

Νονφαρm Βυσινεσσ�Προδυχτιϖιτψ Γροωτη 1.0%∗ −3.1% −2.1% 3.9% 2.9% −4.7% 3.0% 3.4%

ΓDΠ Γροωτη 2.3% 0.6% 2.1% 4.3% 4.6% −0.9% 3.8% 3.0%

Μανυφαχτυρινγ Χαπαχιτψ Υτιλιζατιον 77.2% 77.3% 77.8% 77.5% 77.1% 76.2% 76.4% 76.0%

Χονσυmερ Σεντιmεντ Ινδεξ (1966=100)  94.2  95.5  89.8  83.0  82.8  80.9  76.9  81.6 

*Estimate

Sources: Bureau of  Economic Analysis, Bureau of  Labor Statistics, Federal Reserve, IHS Economics, Reuters/University of  Michigan 



4

Ρετυρνσ Τακε α Σεmεστερ Αβροαδ

ΦΥΝD ΣΠΟΝΣΟΡ |  Κεϖιν Ναγψ

Πυβλιχ mαρκετσ εξπεριενχεδ αν υπ−ανδ−δοων θυαρτερ, ωιτη 

equity indices exhibiting slight gains while ixed income was 
ιν τηε ρεδ. Νον−Υ.Σ. εθυιτψ mαρκετσ (ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ εξ ΥΣΑ 

Ινδεξ: +0.72%) ωερε αβλε το οϖερχοmε υνχερταιντψ ιν Γρεεχε 

ανδ α λαργε σελλ−οφφ ιν Χηινα το βεατ Υ.Σ. εθυιτψ (Ρυσσελλ 3000 

Ινδεξ: +0.14%) φορ τηε σεχονδ στραιγητ θυαρτερ. Βοτη Υ.Σ. ανδ 

non-U.S. ixed income markets suffered losses (Βαρχλαψσ 

Αγγρεγατε: −1.68%, Χιτι Νον−Υ.Σ. Wορλδ Γοϖερνmεντ Βονδ 

Ινδεξ−Υνηεδγεδ: −1.54%).

Ασ σεεν ιν τηε Χαλλαν Φυνδ Σπονσορ Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρνσ χηαρτ, 

περφορmανχε ωασ τεπιδ ατ βεστ. Χορπορατε φυνδσ ωερε τηε 

ωορστ περφορmερσ αχροσσ αλλ περχεντιλεσ σηοων, ωηιλε Ταφτ−

Ηαρτλεψ πλανσ (+0.33%) ωερε τηε βεστ ατ τηε mεδιαν. Τηε 10τη 

περχεντιλε�σ περφορmανχε δισπλαψεδ mοδερατε δισπερσιον, ωιτη 

Taft-Hartley plans (+0.96%) coming in irst place and endow−

mεντσ/φουνδατιονσ (+0.80%) σεχονδ. Dισπερσιον ιν τηε βοττοm 

δεχιλε ωασ ηιγηεστ, ωιτη ενδοωmεντσ/φουνδατιονσ (−0.32%) ιν 

τηε λεαδ ανδ χορπορατε πλανσ (−2.86%) βρινγινγ υπ τηε ρεαρ. 

Ιν τερmσ οφ ασσετ αλλοχατιον ανδ ιτσ ιmπαχτ ον περφορmανχε, 

Taft-Hartley funds beneited from a smaller exposure to ixed 
ινχοmε ωηεν χοmπαρεδ το τηειρ χορπορατε πεερσ. Τηεψ ωερε 

αλσο ηελπεδ βψ α στρονγ περφορmανχε φροm πριϖατε ρεαλ εστατε 

(ΝΧΡΕΙΦ Προπερτψ Ινδεξ: +3.14%). Χορπορατε φυνδσ ωερε ηυρτ 

by larger allocations to U.S. ixed income than the other fund 

Dαταβασε Μεδιαν ανδ Ινδεξ Ρετυρνσ∗ φορ Περιοδσ ενδεδ ϑυνε 30, 2015

Φυνδ Σπονσορ Θυαρτερ 2 Θυαρτερσ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ

Πυβλιχ Dαταβασε 0.10 2.43 3.20 10.30 10.41 6.57

Χορπορατε Dαταβασε −0.21 2.15 2.94 9.72 10.57 6.79

Ενδοωmεντσ/Φουνδατιονσ Dαταβασε 0.27 2.56 2.34 10.03 9.89 6.53

Ταφτ−Ηαρτλεψ Dαταβασε 0.33 2.64 4.10 10.74 10.81 6.28

Diversiied Manager Θυαρτερ 2 Θυαρτερσ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ

Ασσετ Αλλοχατορ Στψλε −0.25 1.46 3.89 9.98 10.51 6.77

Υ.Σ. Βαλανχεδ Dαταβασε −0.19 2.00 2.76 11.30 11.55 6.65

Γλοβαλ Βαλανχεδ Dαταβασε −0.89 1.44 −0.06 8.00 8.88 6.58

60% Ρυσσελλ 3000 + 40% Βαρχλαψσ Αγγ −0.59 1.12 5.10 11.23 11.98 7.08

60% ΜΣΧΙ Wορλδ + 40% Βαρχλαψσ Γλβλ Αγγ −0.29 0.33 −2.04 8.04 8.72 5.50

*Returns less than one year are not annualized.

Sources: Callan, Barclays, MSCI, Russell Investment Group

-3%

-2%

-1%

0%

1%

  Public Corporate Endow/Fndn Taft-Hartley
  Database Database Database Database

 10th Percentile  0.64 0.39 0.80 0.96

 25th Percentile  0.38 0.12 0.44 0.65

 Median  0.10 -0.21 0.27 0.33

 75th Percentile  -0.18 -0.89 0.02 -0.05

 90th Percentile  -0.58 -2.86 -0.32 -0.36

Source: Callan

Χαλλαν Φυνδ Σπονσορ Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρνσ



5Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

ΦΥΝD ΣΠΟΝΣΟΡ (Χοντινυεδ)

types. As in the irst quarter, corporate funds had the widest 
δισπερσιον βετωεεν τοπ ανδ βοττοm περχεντιλεσ, δυε το σοmε 

πλανσ εmπλοψινγ λιαβιλιτψ−δριϖεν ινϖεστmεντ (ΛDΙ) προγραmσ. 

Ταφτ−Ηαρτλεψ φυνδσ ωερε τηε τοπ περφορmερσ ιν αλλ νοτεδ τιmε 

περιοδσ εξχεπτ φορ τηε 10−ψεαρ περιοδ, ωηιχη ωεντ το χορπορατε 

φυνδσ. Αλλ φυνδ τψπεσ φορ τηατ λονγ−τερm τιmε περιοδ δισπλαψεδ 

ϖερψ σιmιλαρ περφορmανχε ιν τηε 6% το 7% ρανγε. 

Dεσπιτε τραιλινγ ιν τηε mοστ ρεχεντ θυαρτερ, τηε Υ.Σ.−φοχυσεδ 

60% Ρυσσελλ 3000 + 40% Βαρχλαψσ Αγγρεγατε (−0.59%) ηασ ουτ−

περφορmεδ τηε γλοβαλ 60% ΜΣΧΙ Wορλδ + 40% Βαρχλαψσ Γλοβαλ 

Αγγρεγατε βενχηmαρκ (−0.29%) φορ εϖερψ οτηερ τιmε περιοδ. 

Χαλλαν�σ Υ.Σ. Βαλανχεδ Dαταβασε γρουπ ηασ αλσο ουτπερφορmεδ 

τηε Γλοβαλ Βαλανχεδ Dαταβασε γρουπ ιν εϖερψ περιοδ σηοων. 

*Latest median quarter return.

Source: Callan

U.S. Fixed 

Non-U.S. Fixed

Global Balanced

Real Estate

Hedge Funds

Other Alternatives

Cash

U.S. Balanced

U.S. Equity

Non-U.S. Equity

Global Equity

1.3%
3.1%
3.0%

3.3%

Public

0.10%

35.7%

15.7%

28.4%

2.3%

1.8%

4.0%

1.2%

3.2%

3.5%

4.6%

2.0%

Endowment/

Foundation

0.27%

34.4%

17.4%

19.3%

3.2%

1.4%

0.9%

7.5%
1.8%

9.2%

1.5%

Taft-Hartley

0.33%
0.5%

Corporate

-0.21%

0.3%

1.2%

1.3% 1.3%

36.9%

27.0%

9.8%

2.5%

5.0%

10.2%

4.4%

13.8%

1.5%

30.0%

39.6%

2.7%
0.8%
0.7%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13

U.S. Fixed 

Non-U.S. Fixed

Global Balanced

Real Estate

Hedge Funds

Other Alternatives

Cash

U.S. Balanced

U.S. Equity

Non-U.S. Equity

Global Equity

14 15

Χαλλαν Φυνδ Σπονσορ Αϖεραγε Ασσετ Αλλοχατιον

Χαλλαν Πυβλιχ Φυνδ Dαταβασε Αϖεραγε Ασσετ Αλλοχατιον (10 Ψεαρσ)

Source: Callan



6

Source: Russell Investment Group

Υνδερωηελmινγ 

Υ.Σ. ΕΘΥΙΤΨ |  Λαυρεν Ματηιασ, ΧΦΑ 

Τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ γοτ οφφ το α προmισινγ σταρτ τηρουγη Απριλ ανδ 

Μαψ. Ιν ϑυνε, ηοωεϖερ, τηε Σ&Π 500 Ινδεξ δροππεδ αλmοστ 2%, 

ρεδυχινγ Υ.Σ. εθυιτψ ρεσυλτσ φορ τηε τηρεε−mοντη περιοδ το 0.28%. 

Βεφορε δεχλινινγ, mαρκετ ινδιχεσ ρεαχηεδ νεω πεακσ�mοστ 

νοταβλψ τηε ΝΑΣDΑΘ Χοmποσιτε συρπασσεδ τηε αλλ−τιmε ηιγη ιτ 

πρεϖιουσλψ σετ ιν Μαρχη 2000. 

Dεσπιτε υνδερωηελmινγ εθυιτψ ρεσυλτσ, τηε Υ.Σ. εχονοmψ δοεσ 

ηαϖε σοmε ταιλωινδσ. ϑυνε�σ υνεmπλοψmεντ ρατε δεχλινεδ το 

5.3%, ηουσινγ ιmπροϖεδ ασ mορε Αmεριχανσ τοοκ ουτ mορτ−

gages, and consumer conidence ticked higher. However, the 
Φεδ�σ χονχερνσ αβουτ εχονοmιχ γροωτη περσιστεδ, φυρτηερ δελαψ−

ινγ α ποτεντιαλ ινχρεασε ιν ιντερεστ ρατεσ. Υνδερλψινγ Υ.Σ. φυνδα−

mentals appear solid, with corporate proit margins near highs 
and leverage well below historical averages. This is relected in 
ϖαλυατιονσ ωιτη χυρρεντ Π/Ε ρατιοσ αχροσσ mαρκετ χαπιταλιζατιονσ 

αβοϖε 20−ψεαρ αϖεραγεσ. 

Λαργε ανδ σmαλλ χαπ στοχκσ σηοωεδ σλιγητλψ ποσιτιϖε ρετυρνσ τηισ 

θυαρτερ (Ρυσσελλ 1000 Ινδεξ: +0.1% ανδ Ρυσσελλ 2000 Ινδεξ: 

+0.4%) ωηιλε mιδ χαπ τραιλεδ χονσιδεραβλψ (Ρυσσελλ Μιδ−Χαπ 

Ινδεξ: −1.5%). Γροωτη mαινταινεδ ιτσ λεαδ οϖερ ϖαλυε ιν αλλ χαπι−

ταλιζατιονσ, βυτ mοστ δραmατιχαλλψ ιν σmαλλ χαπ (Ρυσσελλ 2000 

Γροωτη Ινδεξ: +2.0% ανδ Ρυσσελλ 2000 ςαλυε Ινδεξ: −1.2%). 

Σmαλλ χαπ γροωτη χοντινυεδ το βεατ σmαλλ χαπ ϖαλυε ιν αλλ αννυ−

αλιζεδ τιmε περιοδσ οφ λεσσ τηαν 10 ψεαρσ. Μιχρο χαπσ ανδ mεγα 

χαπσ βοτη αδϖανχεδ (Ρυσσελλ Μιχροχαπ Ινδεξ: +2.8% ανδ 

Ρυσσελλ Τοπ 50: +1.5%).

Σεχτορσ εξηιβιτεδ διϖεργεντ θυαρτερλψ ρεσυλτσ αχροσσ mαρκετ χαπι−

ταλιζατιονσ. Σmαλλ χαπ Ματεριαλσ δεχλινεδ σηαρπλψ ϖερσυσ α σλιγητ 

διπ ιν λαργε χαπ. Ηεαλτη Χαρε βοοστεδ βοτη λαργε ανδ σmαλλ mαρ−

κετ χαπσ βυτ ωασ mυχη στρονγερ ιν σmαλλ χαπ. Υτιλιτιεσ ωερε τηε 

ωορστ−περφορmινγ σεχτορ αχροσσ χαπιταλιζατιονσ ασ ιντερεστ−ρατε−

σενσιτιϖε σεχυριτιεσ δεχλινεδ. Ον α ποσιτιϖε νοτε, Μ&Α αχτιϖιτψ 

remained strong, with deal low increasing across most sectors.

Νοταβλψ, αχτιϖε mαναγεmεντ ισ ηαϖινγ τηε mοστ συχχεσσφυλ ψεαρ 

since the inancial crisis; almost half of active large cap man−

αγερσ ηαϖε ουτπερφορmεδ ιν 2015 τηυσ φαρ. Τηισ χοντραστσ ωιτη 

assets that continue to low to passive strategies, which have 
γροων το βε ονε−τηιρδ οφ Υ.Σ. εθυιτψ ΑΥΜ.

Russell 1000 Russell 2000

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

UtilitiesIndustrialsEnergyConsumer

Staples

MaterialsInformation

Technology

FinancialConsumer

Discretionary

TelecommHealth Care

3.2%

5.8%

1.7%

-0.4%

1.2%

0.4% 0.1%

1.8%

-0.5%

-5.0%

-1.7% -1.4%
-2.0%

-1.3%

-2.6% -2.2%

-6.2%

-7.0%

1.5%

-0.3%

Εχονοmιχ Σεχτορ Θυαρτερλψ Περφορmανχε 



7Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Υ.Σ. ΕΘΥΙΤΨ (Χοντινυεδ)

  Large Cap Large Cap Small Cap  Small Cap
  Growth Style Value Style  Growth Style Value Style

 10th Percentile  2.34 1.45 4.80 1.87

 25th Percentile  1.63 1.17 3.42 1.14

 Median  0.71 0.52 2.30 0.45

 75th Percentile  -0.01 -0.11 1.16 -0.97

 90th Percentile  -0.49 -0.72 0.01 -2.20

   R1000 Growth R1000 Value  R2000 Growth  R2000 Value

 Benchmark  0.12 0.11 1.98 -1.20

Sources: Callan, Russell Investment Group

-3%

0%

3%

6%

Χαλλαν Στψλε Γρουπ Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρνσ

02 0395 96 97 98 99 00 01

-30%

-20%

-10%

0%

10%

20%

30%

04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15

Russell 1000 Growth Russell 1000Russell 1000 Value

Source: Russell Investment Group

Ρολλινγ Ονε−Ψεαρ Ρελατιϖε Ρετυρνσ  (ϖσ. Ρυσσελλ 1000)

Υ.Σ. Εθυιτψ Ινδεξ Χηαραχτεριστιχσ ασ οφ ϑυνε 30, 2015

Σ&Π 500 Ρυσ 3000 Ρυσ 1000 Ρυσ Μιδχαπ Ρυσ 2500 Ρυσ 2000

Χαπ Ρανγε Μιν (∃mm)  1,735 24 354 354 24 24

Χαπ Ρανγε Μαξ (∃βν) 722.58 722.58 722.58 28.09 10.80 4.70

Νυmβερ οφ Ισσυεσ 502 3,004 1,029 829 2,494 1,975

% οφ Ρυσσελλ 3000 80% 100% 92% 28% 19% 8%

Wτδ Αϖγ Μκτ Χαπ (∃βν) 127.97 103.44 112.50 12.16 4.06 1.89

Πριχε/Βοοκ Ρατιο 2.7 2.6 2.7 2.5 2.2 2.1

Φορωαρδ Π/Ε Ρατιο 16.4 17.2 16.9 19.0 19.8 20.9

Dιϖιδενδ Ψιελδ 2.1% 1.9% 2.0% 1.6% 1.4% 1.3%

5−Ψρ Εαρνινγσ (φορεχαστεδ) 10.3% 11.2% 11.1% 12.9% 13.0% 13.5%

Sources: Russell Investment Group, Standard & Poor’s



8

Στψλε Μεδιαν ανδ Ινδεξ Ρετυρνσ∗ φορ Περιοδσ ενδεδ ϑυνε 30, 2015

Λαργε Χαπ Εθυιτψ Θυαρτερ 2 Θυαρτερσ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ

Λαργε Χαπ Χορε Στψλε 0.42 1.82 8.00 18.21 17.89 8.39

Λαργε Χαπ Γροωτη Στψλε 0.71 4.57 11.86 18.87 18.54 9.37

Λαργε Χαπ ςαλυε Στψλε 0.52 0.86 5.23 18.26 17.08 7.69

Αγγρεσσιϖε Γροωτη Στψλε 1.49 6.77 10.44 17.74 17.31 9.83

Χοντραριαν Στψλε 0.40 0.65 5.46 17.91 16.74 7.94

Ψιελδ−Οριεντεδ Στψλε −0.15 0.02 4.25 15.70 15.99 8.28

Ρυσσελλ 3000 0.14 1.94 7.29 17.73 17.54 8.15

Ρυσσελλ 1000 0.11 1.71 7.37 17.73 17.58 8.13

Ρυσσελλ 1000 Γροωτη 0.12 3.96 10.56 17.99 18.59 9.10

Ρυσσελλ 1000 ςαλυε 0.11 −0.61 4.13 17.34 16.50 7.05

Σ&Π Χοmποσιτε 1500 0.17 1.57 7.31 17.41 17.39 8.08

Σ&Π 500 0.28 1.23 7.42 17.31 17.34 7.89

ΝΨΣΕ −0.20 0.94 0.79 14.49 15.46 7.67

Dοω ϑονεσ Ινδυστριαλσ −0.29 0.03 7.21 13.77 15.41 8.32

Μιδ Χαπ Εθυιτψ Θυαρτερ 2 Θυαρτερσ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ

Μιδ Χαπ Χορε Στψλε −1.08 4.51 7.73 21.22 19.70 10.21

Μιδ Χαπ Γροωτη Στψλε 0.57 6.52 10.75 18.44 18.36 10.48

Μιδ Χαπ ςαλυε Στψλε −1.45 1.76 4.46 19.31 17.63 9.77

Ρυσσελλ Μιδχαπ −1.54 2.35 6.63 19.26 18.23 9.40

Σ&Π ΜιδΧαπ 400 −1.06 4.20 6.40 18.60 17.82 9.74

Σmαλλ Χαπ Εθυιτψ Θυαρτερ 2 Θυαρτερσ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ

Σmαλλ Χαπ Χορε Στψλε 0.55 5.53 7.98 20.57 19.28 9.55

Σmαλλ Χαπ Γροωτη Στψλε 2.30 8.37 11.25 19.92 19.56 10.35

Σmαλλ Χαπ ςαλυε Στψλε 0.45 3.09 4.44 18.61 17.48 8.99

Ρυσσελλ 2000 0.42 4.75 6.49 17.81 17.08 8.40

Σ&Π ΣmαλλΧαπ 600 0.19 4.16 6.72 18.81 18.44 9.27

ΝΑΣDΑΘ 2.03 5.90 14.44 20.94 20.26 10.42

Σmιδ Χαπ Εθυιτψ Θυαρτερ 2 Θυαρτερσ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ

Σmιδ Χαπ Βροαδ Στψλε 0.58 7.08 8.81 19.15 18.93 10.06

Σmιδ Χαπ Γροωτη Στψλε 1.82 8.64 10.75 19.12 19.75 10.14

Σmιδ Χαπ ςαλυε Στψλε −0.66 2.77 4.88 19.11 17.63 9.90

Ρυσσελλ 2500 −0.34 4.81 5.92 18.66 17.85 9.09

Σ&Π 1000 −0.68 4.20 6.51 18.68 18.02 9.58

Ρυσσελλ 3000 Σεχτορσ Θυαρτερ 2 Θυαρτερσ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ

Χονσυmερ Dισχρετιοναρψ 1.36 6.10 14.73 22.99 23.12 9.98

Χονσυmερ Σταπλεσ −1.65 −0.42 9.54 14.64 17.00 10.82

Ενεργψ −1.94 −4.13 −24.31 5.19 10.03 6.42

Φινανχιαλσ 1.08 0.40 9.09 19.28 14.17 1.40

Ηεαλτη Χαρε 3.38 11.45 26.47 28.19 24.58 12.03

Ινδυστριαλσ −2.53 −2.14 1.70 17.95 17.40 8.58

Ινφορmατιον Τεχηνολογψ 0.20 1.88 11.20 16.89 17.65 9.88

Ματεριαλσ −0.97 0.03 −2.31 13.20 14.59 9.38

Τελεχοmmυνιχατιονσ 1.63 3.56 1.69 7.56 14.16 7.32

Υτιλιτιεσ −6.31 −10.58 −3.88 8.54 12.65 7.02

*Returns less than one year are not annualized.

Sources: Callan, Dow Jones & Company, Russell Investment Group, Standard & Poor’s, The NASDAQ Stock Market

Υ.Σ. ΕΘΥΙΤΨ (Χοντινυεδ)



9Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Γρεεκ Γλοοm 

ΝΟΝ−Υ.Σ. ΕΘΥΙΤΨ |  Ιρινα Συσηχη

Νον−Υ.Σ. mαρκετσ mαναγεδ το εκε ουτ α σλιγητλψ ποσιτιϖε 

ρετυρν (ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ εξ ΥΣΑ Ινδεξ: +0.72%) δεσπιτε ηειγητ−

ενεδ χονχερνσ αβουτ Γρεεχε ανδ Χηινα. Εϖεν ωιτη α �Γρεξιτ� 

λοοmινγ, Χηινα τηρεατενεδ το στεαλ τηε σποτλιγητ�ιτσ Σηανγηαι 

Composite Index dropped nearly 20% in the inal weeks of the 
θυαρτερ. Βεφορε νοσεδιϖινγ, τηε Ινδεξ ωασ ατ α σεϖεν−ψεαρ ηιγη 

ανδ υπ ρουγηλψ 150% φροm ψεαρ−ενδ 2013.

Βοτη τηε δεϖελοπεδ ΜΣΧΙ Wορλδ εξ ΥΣΑ Ινδεξ (+0.48%) ανδ 

τηε ΜΣΧΙ Εmεργινγ Μαρκετσ Ινδεξ (+0.82%) δελιϖερεδ mεαγερ 

ρετυρνσ. Σmαλλ χαπ στοχκσ χοντινυεδ το χλιmβ αmιδ τηε mαχρο 

χηαοσ (ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ εξ ΥΣΑ Σmαλλ Χαπ Ινδεξ: +4.22%). Ιν 

ιντερνατιοναλ σεχτορσ, Ενεργψ (+2.59%) ωασ βοοστεδ βψ ρισινγ 

oil prices. Telecommunications (+3.58%) gained on signiicant 
Μ&Α αχτιϖιτψ. Ινφορmατιον Τεχηνολογψ (−2.56%) ωασ τηε ωεακεστ 

sector, dragged down by low earnings in the irst quarter. Global 
υνχερταιντψ, στυντεδ εαρνινγσ, ανδ ρισινγ ρατεσ υνδερmινεδ τηε 

ρεmαινινγ νον−Υ.Σ. σεχτορσ. 

Ευροπεαν στοχκσ φαιλεδ το ιmπρεσσ (ΜΣΧΙ Ευροπε Ινδεξ: 

+0.36%). Γρεεχε χοντινυεδ το δαmπεν ινϖεστορσ� σπιριτσ, 

ενδινγ τηε θυαρτερ ωιτη α mισσεδ �1.55 βιλλιον παψmεντ το 

τηε Ιντερνατιοναλ Μονεταρψ Φυνδ. Γερmανψ σλιππεδ 5.59%, 

ρεδ αχροσσ εϖερψ σεχτορ δυε το σλοωινγ ΓDΠ γροωτη. Ηεαλτη 

Χαρε ωασ α βιγ δετραχτορ (Ευροπεαν Ηεαλτη Χαρε: −1.19%). 

Ινφορmατιον Τεχηνολογψ (−2.44%) ανδ Ινδυστριαλσ (−1.60%) 

στοχκσ στρυγγλεδ.

Τηε MSCI Paciic Index (+1.14%) συρπασσεδ Ευροπε βψ 78 

βπσ, οωινγ mαινλψ το υπβεατ mαρκετσ ιν Ηονγ Κονγ (+5.56%) 

and Japan (+3.09%). Hong Kong experienced a lood of 
ινϖεστmεντ φροm Χηινα. ϑαπαν�σ ΓDΠ γρεω ατ αν αννυαλιζεδ 

3.9% in the irst quarter of 2015, and Japanese Financials 
were up 9.36% as banks beneitted from aggressive central 
βανκ πολιχιεσ. Νεω Ζεαλανδ (−13.08%) ανδ Αυστραλια (−6.19%) 

φελλ δεεπ ιντο τηε ρεδ ασ τηειρ mαϕορ εξπορτσ (δαιρψ ανδ mεταλσ, 

  Global Eq Non-U.S. Eq Emg Mkt Small Cap
  Style Style  Style Style

 10th Percentile  2.54 3.05 2.34 6.71

 25th Percentile  1.93 2.39 1.23 5.29

 Median  1.15 1.56 0.64 4.62

 75th Percentile  0.42 0.67 0.18 3.01

 90th Percentile  0.00 -0.12 -0.92 2.20

   MSCI MSCI MSCI  MSCI ACWI
  World ACWI ex USA Emg Mkts ex USA SC 

 Benchmark  0.31 0.72 0.82 4.22

Sources: Callan, MSCI 

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

Χαλλαν Στψλε Γρουπ Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρνσ

ρεσπεχτιϖελψ), ωερε ηεαϖιλψ αφφεχτεδ βψ τηε mουντινγ χρισισ ιν 

Χηινα�σ στοχκ mαρκετ. Σο φαρ ιν 2015, τηε κιωι ηασ φαλλεν 13.3% 

αγαινστ τηε Υ.Σ. δολλαρ. Φινανχιαλσ ιν Αυστραλια (−7.79%) ωερε 

ηαmmερεδ βψ σλυγγιση γροωτη ιν τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ. 

-40%

-30%

-20%

-10%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

02 039596 97 98 99 00 01 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15

*euro returns from 1Q99

Source: MSCI

German markJapanese yen U.K. sterling euro*

Μαϕορ Χυρρενχιεσ� Χυmυλατιϖε Ρετυρνσ (ϖσ. Υ.Σ. Dολλαρ)



10

ΝΟΝ−Υ.Σ. ΕΘΥΙΤΨ (Χοντινυεδ)

Αλτηουγη εmεργινγ mαρκετ Ενεργψ στοχκσ ροσε 8.62% δυε 

το χλιmβινγ οιλ πριχεσ, τηε ΜΣΧΙ Εmεργινγ Μαρκετσ Ινδεξ 

(+0.82%) ωασ ηινδερεδ βψ Ινφορmατιον Τεχηνολογψ (−3.84%). 

ΜΣΧΙ Εmεργινγ Μαρκετσ Ασια (−0.04%) ωασ χηοχκ φυλλ οφ 

νεγατιϖε στοριεσ. Ινδονεσια (−13.82%), Μαλαψσια (−7.88%), 

ανδ Τηαιλανδ (−3.30%) αλλ εξπεριενχεδ λετηαργιχ εχονοmιχ 

γροωτη. Τεχη στοχκσ ιmπεδεδ εθυιτψ mαρκετσ ιν Σουτη Κορεα 

ανδ Ταιωαν. Ιν Ινδια, συβσιδινγ γροωτη αλονγ ωιτη λοωερ−τηαν−

εξπεχτεδ ΙΤ σαλεσ mαδε φορ α ωεακ θυαρτερ (−3.61%). Χηινα 

mαναγεδ το γαιν 6.21% δυε το εϖεν λοωερ ιντερεστ ρατεσ ανδ 

λεσσ ρεστριχτιϖε ρεαλ εστατε πολιχιεσ. Ηοωεϖερ, Χηινα�σ mαρκετσ 

were volatile throughout the quarter and crashed in the inal 
τωο ωεεκσ. Ρυσσια (+7.70%) ανδ Βραζιλ (+7.02%) ωερε βριγητ 

σποτσ, βοτη βυοψεδ βψ χλιmβινγ χοmmοδιτψ πριχεσ. Βραζιλ�σ 

γοϖερνmεντ ισ προmισινγ βυδγετ χυτσ, ανδ Ρυσσια φυρτηερ χυτ 

ιντερεστ ρατεσ το 11.5%. Ιν Γρεεχε, εθυιτιεσ γαινεδ 5.35% φορ 

τηε θυαρτερ ιν σπιτε οφ τηε ονγοινγ δεβτ χρισισ, ωηιχη δαmαγεδ 

ρετυρνσ αχροσσ τηε γλοβε.

 EM EAFE

Quarter Year

ACWI ex USA

-8%

-4%

0%

4%

8%

12%

Health CareInformation
Technology

TelecomEnergy

Malaysia

Indonesia

Australia

New Zealand

United Arab
Emirates

Hungary

Hong Kong

Ireland

Source: MSCI

Source: MSCI

8.6%

2.3% 2.6%

0.2%

4.8%

3.6%

-3.8%

-1.1%

10.7%

1.0%

11.0%

-3.8%

-20.0%

-13.1%

-6.2%

-14.2%

-8.0%

-7.9%

-21.5%

-13.8%

-2.6%

-4.0%

12.4%

5.6%

-1.5%
-1.0%

8.5%

10.8%

W
o
rl
d
 e
x
 U
S
A

E
M

W
o
rl
d
 e
x
 U
S
A

E
M

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 B
e
s
t 
P
e
rf
o
rm
e
rs

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 W
o
rs
t 
P
e
rf
o
rm
e
rs

Best Performers Worst Performers

Θυαρτερλψ ανδ Αννυαλ Χουντρψ Περφορmανχε Σναπσηοτ

Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρνσ: Στρονγ ανδ Στρυγγλινγ Σεχτορσ 

Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρν Αττριβυτιον φορ ΕΑΦΕ (Υ.Σ. Dολλαρ)

Χουντρψ Τοταλ Λοχαλ Χυρρενχψ Wτγ

Αυστραλια −6.19% −6.75% 0.61% 6.87%

Αυστρια 3.18% −0.54% 3.74% 0.17%

Βελγιυm 1.04% −2.60% 3.74% 1.30%

Dενmαρκ 2.36% −1.48% 3.89% 1.66%

Φινλανδ −3.89% −7.36% 3.74% 0.82%

Φρανχε 0.31% −3.31% 3.74% 9.69%

Γερmανψ −5.59% −8.99% 3.74% 8.89%

Ηονγ Κονγ 5.56% 5.56% 0.01% 3.25%

Ιρελανδ 8.52% 4.60% 3.74% 0.37%

Ισραελ −1.50% −6.57% 5.42% 0.60%

Ιταλψ 2.49% −1.21% 3.74% 2.41%

ϑαπαν 3.09% 5.19% −1.99% 22.88%

Νετηερλανδσ 2.81% −0.90% 3.74% 2.77%

Νεω Ζεαλανδ −13.08% −3.62% −9.81% 0.13%

Νορωαψ 3.31% 0.86% 2.44% 0.64%

Πορτυγαλ 2.00% −1.68% 3.74% 0.15%

Σινγαπορε −0.06% −1.86% 1.87% 1.43%

Σπαιν −2.05% −5.58% 3.74% 3.51%

Σωεδεν −2.95% −6.63% 3.94% 2.93%

Σωιτζερλανδ 1.01% −2.82% 3.93% 9.23%

Υ.Κ. 2.99% −2.79% 5.94% 20.29%

Sources: MSCI, Russell Investment Group, Standard & Poor’s.



11Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Στψλε Μεδιαν ανδ Ινδεξ Ρετυρνσ∗ φορ Περιοδσ ενδεδ ϑυνε 30, 2015

Νον−Υ.Σ. Εθυιτψ Θυαρτερ 2 Θυαρτερσ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ

Νον−Υ.Σ. Εθυιτψ Στψλε 1.56 6.63 −1.66 12.62 10.47 6.45

ΜΣΧΙ ΕΑΦΕ 0.62 5.52 −4.22 11.97 9.54 5.12

ΜΣΧΙ ΕΑΦΕ (λοχαλ) −1.82 8.82 11.78 18.08 11.27 5.41

ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ εξ ΥΣΑ 0.72 4.35 −4.85 9.92 8.23 6.01

ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ εξ ΥΣΑ Γροωτη 0.74 5.67 −1.70 10.54 8.84 6.37

ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ εξ ΥΣΑ ςαλυε 0.71 2.97 −7.98 9.25 7.58 5.91

Γλοβαλ Εθυιτψ Θυαρτερ 2 Θυαρτερσ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ

Γλοβαλ Εθυιτψ Στψλε 1.15 4.24 3.60 15.39 13.79 7.63

ΜΣΧΙ Wορλδ 0.31 2.63 1.43 14.27 13.10 6.38

ΜΣΧΙ Wορλδ (λοχαλ) −0.69 4.14 8.41 17.01 13.79 6.36

ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ 0.52 2.97 1.23 13.61 12.52 6.96

Ρεγιοναλ Εθυιτψ Θυαρτερ 2 Θυαρτερσ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ

ΜΣΧΙ Ευροπε 0.36 3.82 −7.65 12.37 10.02 5.03

ΜΣΧΙ Ευροπε (λοχαλ) −3.91 7.25 6.99 15.16 10.37 5.49

ΜΣΧΙ ϑαπαν 3.09 13.62 8.31 13.30 8.80 4.23

ΜΣΧΙ ϑαπαν (λοχαλ) 5.19 15.96 30.83 30.66 16.09 5.27

MSCI Paciic ex Japan −2.48 0.58 −6.79 7.53 8.70 7.94

MSCI Paciic ex Japan (local) −2.99 4.75 6.96 14.39 9.59 7.45

Εmεργινγ/Φροντιερ Μαρκετσ Θυαρτερ 2 Θυαρτερσ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ

Εmεργινγ Μαρκετ Στψλε 0.64 2.35 −5.34 4.86 4.67 8.97

ΜΣΧΙ Εmεργινγ Μαρκετσ 0.82 3.12 −4.77 4.08 4.03 8.46

ΜΣΧΙ Εmεργινγ Μαρκετσ (λοχαλ) 0.82 5.80 6.63 9.01 7.30 10.06

ΜΣΧΙ Φροντιερ Μαρκετσ −0.05 −3.15 −13.93 12.96 7.29 0.42

Νον−Υ.Σ. Σmαλλ Χαπ Εθυιτψ Θυαρτερ 2 Θυαρτερσ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ

Νον−Υ.Σ. Σmαλλ Χαπ Στψλε 4.62 10.78 0.38 17.42 14.21 9.08

ΜΣΧΙ Wορλδ εξ ΥΣΑ Σmαλλ Χαπ 4.16 8.36 −3.96 13.60 11.10 6.30

ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ εξ ΥΣΑ Σmαλλ Χαπ 4.22 8.32 −3.07 12.32 9.72 7.38

ΜΣΧΙ Εmεργινγ Μαρκετ Σmαλλ Χαπ 4.50 8.25 0.34 7.98 5.04 10.10

*Returns less than one year are not annualized.

Sources: Callan, MSCI

ΝΟΝ−Υ.Σ. ΕΘΥΙΤΨ (Χοντινυεδ)

MSCI Pacific ex Japan

MSCI Europe

MSCI World ex USA

MSCI ACWI ex USA

MSCI Emerging Markets

MSCI Japan 3.09%

0.36%

0.82%

0.72%

0.48%

-2.48%

Source: MSCI

Ρολλινγ Ονε−ψεαρ Ρελατιϖε Ρετυρνσ (ϖσ. ΜΣΧΙ Wορλδ εξ ΥΣΑ)

02 0395 96 97 98 99 00 01

-40%

-30%

-20%

-10%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15

MSCI Pacific MSCI World ex USAMSCI Europe

Source: MSCI 

Ρεγιοναλ Θυαρτερλψ Περφορmανχε (Υ.Σ. Dολλαρ)



12

Ρατεσ Μοϖε Ηιγηερ 

Υ.Σ. ΦΙΞΕD ΙΝΧΟΜΕ |  Κεϖιν Μαχηιζ, ΧΦΑ, ΦΡΜ

Ιντερεστ ρατεσ mοϖεδ ηιγηερ ιν τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ γιϖεν 

upward pressure from global interest rates as delationary fears 
showed signs of relenting. The yield curve steepened after ive 
consecutive quarters of lattening. The Βαρχλαψσ Αγγρεγατε 

Ινδεξ φελλ 1.68%. 

Σηορτ−τερm ρατεσ ρεmαινεδ σταβλε, ασ τηε Φεδ χοντινυεδ το 

πεγ τηε φεδεραλ φυνδσ ανδ δισχουντ ρατεσ ατ 0.00%�0.25% ανδ 

0.75%, ρεσπεχτιϖελψ. Τηε 10−ψεαρ Υ.Σ. Τρεασυρψ ψιελδ ροσε 43 

βπσ. Ψιελδσ ον λονγερ−τερm βονδσ ινχρεασεδ εϖεν mορε (30−

ψεαρ Υ.Σ. Τρεασυρψ ψιελδ: +59 βπσ). 

The market’s expectation for the irst hike in the fed funds 
rate settled around the end of 2015. The breakeven inlation 
ρατε (τηε διφφερενχε βετωεεν νοmιναλ ανδ ρεαλ ψιελδσ) ον τηε 

10−ψεαρ Τρεασυρψ ινχρεασεδ 12 βπσ το 1.89% ασ ΤΙΠΣ ουτπερ−

φορmεδ νοmιναλ Τρεασυριεσ. 

   Interm Core Bond Core Plus Ext Maturity  High Yld
  Style Style Style Style Style

1��� ��������	� -�
�� -1
� -1
�1 -�
� 0.94

2�� ��������	� -�
2� -1
�� -1
2 -�
� 0.46

 �e��� -�
�1 -1
2� -1
21 -�
�1 0.24

�2�� ��������	� -�
�� -1
�� -1
2� -�
�1 -�
�3

���� ��������	� -�
�� -1
�� -1
�1 -�
�2 -�
8

      Barclays Barclays Barclays Barclays Barclays
  Interm Agg Agg Agg Long G/C High Yld

��������� -�
�� -1
�� -1
�� -�
 0.00

Sources: Barclays, Callan

-1��

-��

-��

-��

-�

��

�

Χαλλαν Στψλε Γρουπ Θυαρτερλψ ΡετυρνσΥ.Σ. Τρεασυρψ Ψιελδ Χυρϖεσ

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

U.S. 10-Year Treasury Yield 10-Year TIPS Yield Breakeven Inflation Rate

07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 150605

Source: Bloomberg

Ηιστοριχαλ 10−Ψεαρ Ψιελδσ 

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

Maturity (Years)

Source: Bloomberg

June 30, 2015 March 31, 2015 June 30, 2014

302520151050



13Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Υ.Σ. ΦΙΞΕD ΙΝΧΟΜΕ (Χοντινυεδ)

Ρελατιϖε το λικε−δυρατιον Τρεασυριεσ, νον−Τρεασυρψ σεχτορσ 

σαω σχαντ γαινσ (ΜΒΣ: +0.05%; ΑΒΣ: +0.21%) ορ νεγα−

τιϖε ρεσυλτσ. Ινϖεστmεντ−γραδε χορπορατε σπρεαδσ ωιδενεδ 

ωιτη Υτιλιτιεσ, Φινανχιαλσ, ανδ Ινδυστριαλσ υνδερπερφορmινγ 

Τρεασυριεσ βψ 1.41%, 0.61%, ανδ 0.94% ρεσπεχτιϖελψ.

Ηιγη ψιελδ χορπορατε βονδσ ωερε αmονγ τηε βεστ περφορmερσ 

in the U.S. ixed income market as some energy companies 
ρεβουνδεδ στρονγλψ. Τηε Βαρχλαψσ Χορπορατε Ηιγη Ψιελδ 

Ινδεξ ενδεδ τηε θυαρτερ υνχηανγεδ. Νεω ισσυε αχτιϖιτψ ισ ον 

παχε ωιτη τηε πρεϖιουσ τηρεε χαλενδαρ ψεαρσ. Ψεαρ−το−δατε, 

τηερε ωασ αππροξιmατελψ ∃191 βιλλιον ιν νεω ισσυανχε οφ ηιγη 

ψιελδ βονδσ.

Υ.Σ. Φιξεδ Ινχοmε Ινδεξ Χηαραχτεριστιχσ ασ οφ ϑυνε 30, 2015

Βαρχλαψσ Ινδιχεσ Ψιελδ το Wορστ Μοδ Αδϕ Dυρατιον Αϖγ Ματυριτψ % οφ Βαρχλαψσ Γ/Χ % οφ Βαρχλαψσ Αγγ

Βαρχλαψσ Αγγρεγατε 2.39 5.63 7.87 100.00%

Βαρχλαψσ Γοϖτ/Χρεδιτ 2.24 6.09 8.33 100.00% 69.31%

Ιντερmεδιατε 1.74 3.94 4.28 79.77% 55.29%

Λονγ−Τερm 4.20 14.58 24.32 20.23% 14.02%

Βαρχλαψσ Γοϖτ 1.47 5.44 6.68 56.76% 39.34%

Βαρχλαψσ Χρεδιτ 3.25 6.95 10.51 43.24% 29.97%

Βαρχλαψσ ΜΒΣ 2.78 4.61 7.06 28.11%

Βαρχλαψσ ΑΒΣ 1.45 2.46 2.63 0.58%

Βαρχλαψσ ΧΜΒΣ 2.49 4.61 5.14 1.94%

Βαρχλαψσ Χορπ Ηιγη Ψιελδ 6.57 4.36 6.41

Source: Barclays

Excess Return versus Like-Duration Treasuries

0.00%

-0.19%

-0.01%

-0.31%

0.21%

0.05%

-0.67%

0.69%

Absolute Return

Source: Barclays

-1.58%

-1.68%

-0.56%

-1.06%

0.17%

-0.74%

-2.88%

0.00%

Barclays Treasury

Barclays Aggregate

Barclays Agencies

Barclays MBS

Barclays CMBS

Barclays ABS

Barclays Credit

Barclays Corp. High Yield

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

U.S. Credit Bellwether 10-Year Swap

Barclays High YieldMBS

ABS

CMBS ERISA

07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 150605

Source: Barclays

Φιξεδ Ινχοmε Ινδεξ Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρνσ

Εφφεχτιϖε Ψιελδ Οϖερ Τρεασυριεσ



14

Στψλε Μεδιαν ανδ Ινδεξ Ρετυρνσ∗ φορ Περιοδσ ενδεδ ϑυνε 30, 2015

Βροαδ Φιξεδ Ινχοmε Θυαρτερ 2 Θυαρτερσ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ

Χορε Βονδ Στψλε −1.56 0.14 2.12 2.46 3.97 4.94

Χορε Βονδ Πλυσ Στψλε −1.51 0.37 1.92 3.23 4.97 5.42

Βαρχλαψσ Αγγρεγατε −1.68 −0.10 1.86 1.83 3.35 4.44

Βαρχλαψσ Γοϖτ/Χρεδιτ −2.10 −0.30 1.69 1.76 3.52 4.38

Βαρχλαψσ Γοϖτ −1.50 0.08 2.27 0.93 2.63 3.99

Βαρχλαψσ Χρεδιτ −2.88 −0.78 0.93 3.03 4.93 5.12

Χιτι Βροαδ Ινϖεστmεντ Γραδε −1.66 −0.06 1.87 1.83 3.31 4.53

Λονγ−Τερm Θυαρτερ 2 Θυαρτερσ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ

Εξτενδεδ Ματυριτψ Στψλε −7.61 −4.59 1.59 3.06 7.20 6.56

Βαρχλαψσ Λονγ Γοϖτ/Χρεδιτ −7.22 −4.11 2.32 2.61 6.79 6.18

Βαρχλαψσ Λονγ Γοϖτ −8.10 −4.52 6.20 1.25 6.23 6.12

Βαρχλαψσ Λονγ Χρεδιτ −7.26 −4.42 −0.37 3.44 7.04 6.02

Χιτι Πενσιον Dισχουντ Χυρϖε −11.07 −6.78 2.36 2.72 8.74 6.93

Ιντερmεδιατε−Τερm Θυαρτερ 2 Θυαρτερσ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ

Ιντερmεδιατε Στψλε −0.61 0.79 1.70 1.96 3.09 4.54

Βαρχλαψσ Ιντερmεδιατε Αγγρεγατε −0.67 0.64 1.89 1.74 2.89 4.22

Βαρχλαψσ Ιντερmεδιατε Γοϖτ/Χρεδιτ −0.62 0.82 1.68 1.60 2.79 4.02

Βαρχλαψσ Ιντερmεδιατε Γοϖτ −0.43 0.82 1.79 0.90 2.06 3.67

Βαρχλαψσ Ιντερmεδιατε Χρεδιτ −0.94 0.82 1.51 2.88 4.19 4.80

Σηορτ−Τερm Θυαρτερ 2 Θυαρτερσ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ

Dεφενσιϖε Στψλε 0.11 0.76 1.08 1.09 1.50 3.05

Αχτιϖε Dυρατιον Στψλε −0.85 0.64 1.70 1.97 3.39 4.57

Μονεψ Μαρκετ Φυνδσ (νετ οφ φεεσ) 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.01 1.32

ΜΛ Τρεασυρψ 1�3−Ψεαρ 0.15 0.67 0.88 0.66 0.82 2.52

90−Dαψ Τρεασυρψ Βιλλσ 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.06 0.08 1.42

Ηιγη Ψιελδ Θυαρτερ 2 Θυαρτερσ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ

Ηιγη Ψιελδ Στψλε 0.24 2.84 0.24 7.06 8.76 7.90

Βαρχλαψσ Χορπορατε Ηιγη Ψιελδ 0.00 2.53 −0.40 6.81 8.61 7.89

ΜΛ Ηιγη Ψιελδ Μαστερ −0.04 2.49 −0.53 6.74 8.38 7.67

Μορτγαγε/Ασσετ−Βαχκεδ Θυαρτερ 2 Θυαρτερσ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ

Μορτγαγε Στψλε −0.59 0.60 2.66 2.44 3.53 4.87

Βαρχλαψσ ΜΒΣ −0.74 0.31 2.28 1.92 2.89 4.56

Βαρχλαψσ ΑΒΣ 0.17 1.08 1.64 1.38 2.48 3.32

Βαρχλαψσ ΧΜΒΣ −1.06 0.69 1.91 3.28 5.53 5.12

Μυνιχιπαλ Θυαρτερ 2 Θυαρτερσ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ

Βαρχλαψσ Μυνι −0.89 0.11 3.00 3.10 4.50 4.45

Βαρχλαψσ Μυνι 1�10−Ψεαρ −0.51 0.32 1.74 2.10 3.22 3.89

Βαρχλαψσ Μυνι 3−Ψεαρ −0.02 0.39 0.57 1.17 1.71 2.97

ΤΙΠΣ Θυαρτερ 2 Θυαρτερσ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ

Βαρχλαψσ ΤΙΠΣ Φυλλ Dυρατιον −1.06 0.34 −1.73 −0.76 3.29 4.13

Βαρχλαψσ ΤΙΠΣ 1−10 Ψεαρ −0.15 1.06 −1.95 −0.54 2.36 3.70

*Returns of  less than one year are not annualized.

Sources: Barclays, Callan, Citigroup, Merrill Lynch

Υ.Σ. ΦΙΞΕD ΙΝΧΟΜΕ (Χοντινυεδ)



15Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

GermanyU.S. Treasury U.K. Canada Japan

07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 150605

Change in 10-Year Yields from 1Q15 to 2Q15 

43 bps

58 bps

45 bps

33 bps

6 bps

Source: Bloomberg

Germany

U.S. Treasury

U.K.

Canada

Japan

Dεαλ ορ Νο Dεαλ

ΝΟΝ−Υ.Σ. ΦΙΞΕD ΙΝΧΟΜΕ |  Κψλε Φεκετε

The developed ixed income markets were characterized by ris−

ινγ ιντερεστ ρατεσ, ρεϖερσινγ τηε δοωνωαρδ τρενδ οϖερ τηε παστ 

σεϖεραλ θυαρτερσ. Ιν α δραmατιχ ρεϖερσαλ, ψιελδ ον Γερmαν βυνδσ 

χλιmβεδ το 0.76% ιν ϑυνε, υπ φροm τηε αλλ−τιmε λοω οφ 0.05% ιν 

mιδ−Απριλ. Ρισινγ ιντερεστ ρατεσ ωερε σπυρρεδ βψ βριγητερ νεωσ 

ιν Ευροπε ασ βοτη ηιρινγ ανδ πριϖατε σεχτορ γροωτη αππροαχηεδ 

four-year highs. In Europe, a whiff of inlation in May (+0.2% 
mοντη−οϖερ−mοντη) προϖιδεδ σοmε εϖιδενχε τηατ τηε Ευροπεαν 

Χεντραλ Βανκ�σ ασσετ πυρχηασε προγραm ωασ ωορκινγ. 

Χονχερνσ αρουνδ Γρεεχε σπρεαδ νεγατιϖιτψ τηρουγηουτ τηε mαρ−

κετσ; Ιταλψ ανδ Σπαιν ωερε εσπεχιαλλψ ηαρδ−ηιτ. Υνηεδγεδ ρετυρνσ 

Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρν Αττριβυτιον φορ Νον−Υ.Σ. Γοϖ�τ Ινδιχεσ 

(Υ.Σ. Dολλαρ)

Χουντρψ Τοταλ Λοχαλ Χυρρενχψ Wτγ

Αυστραλια −2.18% −2.77% 0.61% 1.95%

Αυστρια −1.56% −5.11% 3.74% 1.89%

Βελγιυm −2.51% −6.02% 3.74% 2.98%

Χαναδα −0.01% −1.43% 1.45% 2.54%

Dενmαρκ −3.10% −6.73% 3.89% 0.81%

Φινλανδ −0.41% −4.00% 3.74% 0.68%

Φρανχε −1.63% −5.18% 3.74% 11.23%

Γερmανψ −0.94% −4.52% 3.74% 8.88%

Ιρελανδ −0.84% −4.42% 3.74% 0.92%

Ιταλψ −2.71% −6.22% 3.74% 11.23%

ϑαπαν −2.25% −0.26% −1.99% 32.73%

Μαλαψσια −1.22% 0.64% −1.84% 0.62%

Μεξιχο −2.48% 0.44% −2.91% 1.18%

Νετηερλανδσ −1.29% −4.85% 3.74% 3.04%

Νορωαψ 1.67% −0.74% 2.44% 0.34%

Πολανδ −2.02% −2.81% 0.81% 0.67%

Σινγαπορε 1.14% −0.72% 1.87% 0.45%

Σουτη Αφριχα −1.79% −1.61% −0.18% 0.64%

Σπαιν −2.49% −6.01% 3.74% 6.21%

Σωεδεν 0.34% −3.46% 3.94% 0.58%

Σωιτζερλανδ 3.55% −0.37% 3.93% 0.37%

Υ.Κ. 2.00% −3.72% 5.94% 10.07%

Source: Citigroup

ιν δεϖελοπεδ mαρκετσ ωερε γενεραλλψ νεγατιϖε ιν Υ.Σ. δολλαρ τερmσ 

(Χιτι Νον−Υ.Σ. Wορλδ Γοϖερνmεντ Βονδ Ινδεξ: −1.54%). Ον α 

ηεδγεδ βασισ, αλλ δεϖελοπεδ mαρκετσ δροππεδ ασ τηε Υ.Σ. δολλαρ 

λοστ γρουνδ ϖερσυσ mοστ δεϖελοπεδ mαρκετ χυρρενχιεσ (Χιτι Νον−

Υ.Σ. Wορλδ Γοϖερνmεντ Βονδ Ινδεξ:  −3.20%).

Εmεργινγ mαρκετ δολλαρ−δενοmινατεδ δεβτ ρετρεατεδ ασ τηε 

JPM EMBI Global Diversiied Index διππεδ 0.34% ιν σπιτε οφ 

στρονγ γαινσ ιν Υκραινε (+36.49%) ανδ ςενεζυελα (+12.73%). 

Υκραινε ισ νεγοτιατινγ ωιτη φορειγν βονδηολδερσ το ρεστρυχτυρε 

ιτσ δεβτ. Ιν σπιτε οφ τηε στρονγ θυαρτερ, ιτ ρεmαινσ δοων 4.04% 

ψεαρ−το−δατε ανδ 36.77% οϖερ τηε λαστ 12 mοντησ. Τηε λοχαλ 

10−Ψεαρ Γλοβαλ Γοϖερνmεντ Βονδ Ψιελδσ



16

ΝΟΝ−Υ.Σ. ΦΙΞΕD ΙΝΧΟΜΕ (Χοντινυεδ)

βονδ JPM GBI-EM Global Diversiied Index αλσο δεχλινεδ 

(−0.96%). Ρυσσια ωασ αγαιν τηε βεστ περφορmερ αmονγ εmεργ−

ινγ mαρκετσ, υπ νεαρλψ 12% φορ τηε θυαρτερ ανδ 29% ψεαρ−το−

δατε. Βραζιλ�σ (+6%) λοχαλ βονδσ χοντινυεδ το βουνχε βαχκ φροm 

α σελλ−οφφ εαρλιερ ιν τηε ψεαρ, ωηιλε Τυρκεψ ανδ Ινδονεσια φελλ 5% 

φορ τηε θυαρτερ. 

Γρεεχε mισσεδ α λαργε παψmεντ το τηε Ιντερνατιοναλ Μονεταρψ 

Φυνδ ον ϑυνε 30, ωηιχη ωειγηεδ ηεαϖιλψ ον ινϖεστορ σεντι−

mεντ. Νεγοτιατιονσ βετωεεν Γρεεχε ανδ ιτσ λενδερσ χοντινυεδ 

βυτ ρεmαινεδ υνχερταιν. Τραδινγ ον Γρεεκ βονδσ ηαλτεδ; ηοω−

εϖερ, ινδιχατιονσ φροm δεαλερσ εστιmατεδ τωο−ψεαρ Γρεεκ δεβτ 

ψιελδσ ατ αβουτ 50% ανδ 10−ψεαρ δεβτ ατ νεαρλψ 20%.

  Global Fixed Non-U.S. Fixed Emerging Emerging
  Style Style Debt Debt Local 

 10th Percentile  -0.95 -0.60 1.33 0.58

 25th Percentile  -1.40 -1.05 0.70 -0.16

 Median  -1.74 -1.52 0.07 -0.70

 75th Percentile  -2.46 -2.44 -0.27 -0.98

 90th Percentile  -3.19 -3.51 -0.76 -1.57

   Citi World Citi Non-U.S.  JPM EMBI JPM GBI-EM
  Gov  World Gov  Gl Div Gl Div

 Benchmark   -1.55 -1.54 -0.34 -0.96

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

Χαλλαν Στψλε Γρουπ Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρνσ

Στψλε Μεδιαν ανδ Ινδεξ Ρετυρνσ∗ φορ Περιοδσ ενδεδ ϑυνε 30, 2015

Γλοβαλ Φιξεδ Ινχοmε Θυαρτερ 2 Θυαρτερσ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ

Γλοβαλ Στψλε −1.74 −3.03 −6.49 −0.51 2.51 4.17

Χιτι Wορλδ Γοϖτ −1.55 −4.02 −9.02 −2.45 1.05 3.07

Χιτι Wορλδ Γοϖτ (Λοχαλ) −2.67 −0.61 3.67 3.36 3.56 3.54

Βαρχλαψσ Γλοβαλ Αγγρεγατε −1.18 −3.08 −7.09 −0.81 2.07 3.54

Νον−Υ.Σ. Φιξεδ Θυαρτερ 2 Θυαρτερσ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ

Νον−Υ.Σ. Στψλε −1.52 −5.47 −12.50 −2.19 1.70 3.52

Χιτι Νον−Υ.Σ. Wορλδ Γοϖτ −1.54 −5.83 −13.49 −3.88 0.33 2.63

Χιτι Νον−Υ.Σ. Wορλδ Γοϖτ (Λοχαλ) −3.20 −0.91 4.20 4.37 3.93 3.47

Ευροπεαν Φιξεδ Θυαρτερ 2 Θυαρτερσ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ

Χιτι Ευρο Γοϖτ Βονδ −1.87 −9.15 −15.07 2.27 3.25 3.49

Χιτι Ευρο Γοϖτ Βονδ (Λοχαλ) −5.41 −1.34 2.49 6.16 4.85 4.16

Εmεργινγ Μαρκετσ Φιξεδ Θυαρτερ 2 Θυαρτερσ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ

JPM EMBI Global Diversiied −0.34 1.67 0.51 4.30 6.77 7.45

JPM GBI-EM Global Diversiied −0.96 −4.88 −15.39 −3.78 0.94 5.91

*Returns less than one year are not annualized. 

Sources: Callan, Citigroup, JPMorgan Chase

Εmεργινγ Σπρεαδσ Οϖερ Dεϖελοπεδ (Βψ Ρεγιον)

0 bps

200 bps

400 bps

600 bps

10 11 12 13 14 15

Emerging Americas Emerging EMEA (Europe, Middle East, Africa)

Source: Barclays

Emerging Asia

Sources: Callan, Citigroup, JPMorgan Chase & Co.



17Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Μιξεδ Μεσσαγεσ

ΡΕΑΛ ΕΣΤΑΤΕ |  Μικε Πριττσ

It was a dificult second quarter for U.S. REIT indices as 
πρεσσυρε ωειγηεδ ηεαϖιλψ ον γλοβαλ πριχεσ ιν αντιχιπατιον οφ 

ινχρεασεδ γοϖερνmεντ βονδ ψιελδσ. Χοντινυεδ λοω οιλ πριχεσ 

χαυσεδ λινγερινγ χονχερνσ ιν Υ.Σ. οιλ−προδυχινγ συβ−mαρκετσ. 

Χρεδιτ mαρκετσ αππεαρεδ οπεν, αλτηουγη σλοωινγ το α δεγρεε. 

The Fed stated in its June FOMC minutes that inancing for 
χοmmερχιαλ ρεαλ εστατε ρεmαινεδ βροαδλψ αϖαιλαβλε, αλτηουγη 

τηε εξπανσιον οφ χοmmερχιαλ ρεαλ εστατε λοανσ ον βανκσ� 

βοοκσ σλοωεδ ιν Απριλ ανδ Μαψ. Σπρεαδσ ωιδενεδ ιν τηε χοm−

mερχιαλ mορτγαγε−βαχκεδ σεχυριτιεσ (ΧΜΒΣ) mαρκετ, ωηιχη 

χαν βε αττριβυτεδ το α λαχκ οφ λιθυιδιτψ ανδ ποτεντιαλ ιντερεστ 

ρατε ηικεσ. 

Τηε ΝΧΡΕΙΦ Προπερτψ Ινδεξ αδϖανχεδ 3.14% ανδ ρεχορδεδ 

α 1.26% ινχοmε ρετυρν ανδ α 1.89% αππρεχιατιον ρετυρν. Τηε 

NCREIF Property Index cash low return was 0.87% for the 
quarter and 3.43% for the trailing four quarters. During the irst 
θυαρτερ, τηερε ωερε 134 ασσετ τραδεσ, ρεπρεσεντινγ ∃7.1 βιλλιον 

οφ οϖεραλλ τρανσαχτιοναλ ϖολυmε. Τηισ ρεmαινσ αηεαδ οφ τηε ∃5.3 

βιλλιον 10−ψεαρ θυαρτερλψ τρανσαχτιον αϖεραγε. Τηε πεακ θυαρ−

τερλψ τρανσαχτιον ϖολυmε οϖερ τηε πριορ 10−ψεαρ περιοδ ωασ ∃8.7 

βιλλιον ιν τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ οφ 2007.

Πριχινγ γροωτη χοντινυεδ το χηαραχτεριζε ασσετ τραδεσ ασ εθυαλ−

ωειγητεδ τρανσαχτιοναλ χαπιταλιζατιον ρατεσ δροππεδ το 5.5%. 

This relects the lowest measure of the Index since the fourth 
θυαρτερ οφ 2007. Οϖερ τηε χουρσε οφ τηε πριορ χψχλε, θυαρτερλψ 

εθυαλ−ωειγητεδ τρανσαχτιοναλ χαπιταλιζατιον ρατεσ διππεδ το α 

λοω οφ 5.46% ιν τηε φουρτη θυαρτερ οφ 2007 ανδ εξπανδεδ το α 

πεακ οφ 8.46% ιν τηε τηιρδ θυαρτερ οφ 2009. Dυρινγ τηε σεχονδ 

θυαρτερ οφ 2015, αππραισαλ χαπιταλιζατιον ρατεσ σλιγητλψ ινχρεασεδ 

φροm 4.73% το 4.81%. Ασ mαρκετσ πεακεδ οϖερ τηε πριορ χψχλε, 

αππραισαλ χαπιταλιζατιον ρατεσ δεχλινεδ το α λοω οφ 4.89% ιν τηε 

τηιρδ θυαρτερ οφ 2008.

Ον α πρελιmιναρψ βασισ, τηε NCREIF Open End Diversiied 
Χορε Εθυιτψ Ινδεξ προδυχεδ α 3.82% τοταλ ρετυρν, χοmπρισινγ 

α 1.19% ινχοmε ρετυρν ανδ α 2.62% αππρεχιατιον ρετυρν. Ιν τηε 

λιστεδ ρεαλ εστατε mαρκετ, τηε ΦΤΣΕ ΕΠΡΑ/ΝΑΡΕΙΤ Dεϖελοπεδ 

ΡΕΙΤ Ινδεξ (ΥΣD) δεχλινεδ 6.67% ανδ δοmεστιχ ΡΕΙΤσ τραχκεδ 

βψ τηε ΦΤΣΕ ΝΑΡΕΙΤ Εθυιτψ ΡΕΙΤσ Ινδεξ δροππεδ 9.95%. 

Ιν τηε Υ.Σ., αλλ σεχτορσ δεχλινεδ. Σελφ−Στοραγε (−5.0%) λεδ σεχ−

τορ περφορmανχε, φολλοωεδ βψ Λοδγινγ (−6.2%), Ρεσιδεντιαλ 

(-6.4%), Ofice (-11.2%), Malls (-11.4%), Industrial (-12.6%), 
ανδ Ηεαλτηχαρε (−14.3%). Dοmεστιχ ΡΕΙΤσ ραισεδ ∃17.6 βιλλιον 

(τωο ινιτιαλ πυβλιχ οφφερινγσ, ∃436 mιλλιον; 28 σεχονδαρψ οφφερ−

ινγσ, ∃6.7 βιλλιον; τωο πρεφερρεδ εθυιτψ οφφερινγσ, ∃391 mιλλιον; 

ανδ 21 υνσεχυρεδ δεβτ οφφερινγσ, ∃10.2 βιλλιον).

Ιν χορε Ευροπε, φαλλινγ υνεmπλοψmεντ ρατεσ, αδδιτιοναλ ρουνδσ 

of European Central Bank stimulus, and a general inlow of 
funds have led to a compression of prime ofice market capital−
ιζατιον ρατεσ�βυτ σπρεαδσ ρεmαιν ωιδε οϖερ σοϖερειγν ψιελδσ. 

The central London ofice market continues to have high occu−

πανχψ ρατεσ συππορτεδ βψ στρονγ εmπλοψmεντ γροωτη ανδ τιγητ 

supply. Overall, European ofice vacancy rates have continued 
το δεχλινε, λεδ βψ χεντραλ Λονδον, mαϕορ Γερmαν χιτιεσ, ανδ 

σεχονδ−τιερ mαρκετσ.

Ρολλινγ Ονε−Ψεαρ Ρετυρνσ

-60%

-40%

-20%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

REIT Database Global REIT Database*Private Real Estate Database

02 0395 96 97 98 99 00 01 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15

*Global REIT returns from 3Q96

Source: Callan



18

ΡΕΑΛ ΕΣΤΑΤΕ (Χοντινυεδ)

Χαλλαν Dαταβασε Μεδιαν ανδ Ινδεξ Ρετυρνσ∗ φορ Περιοδσ ενδεδ ϑυνε 30, 2015

Πριϖατε Ρεαλ Εστατε Θυαρτερ 2 Θυαρτερσ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ

Ρεαλ Εστατε Dαταβασε (νετ οφ φεεσ) 3.04 6.19 13.75 12.80 13.83 5.57

ΝΧΡΕΙΦ Προπερτψ 3.14 6.83 12.98 11.63 12.72 8.16

ΝΦΙ−ΟDΧΕ (ϖαλυε ωτδ. νετ) 3.15 6.41 12.92 11.91 13.24 5.81

Πυβλιχ Ρεαλ Εστατε Θυαρτερ 2 Θυαρτερσ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ

ΡΕΙΤ Dαταβασε −9.53 −5.30 5.54 9.77 15.08 8.15

ΦΤΣΕ ΝΑΡΕΙΤ Εθυιτψ −9.95 −5.67 4.33 8.93 14.28 7.01

Γλοβαλ Ρεαλ Εστατε Θυαρτερ 2 Θυαρτερσ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ

Γλοβαλ ΡΕΙΤ Dαταβασε −6.37 −1.96 2.02 10.40 13.16 7.17

ΦΤΣΕ ΕΠΡΑ/ΝΑΡΕΙΤ Dεϖελοπεδ ΡΕΙΤ −6.67 −2.78 0.41 9.50 12.38 6.20

*Returns less than one year are not annualized.

All REIT returns are reported gross in USD. 

Sources: Callan, NAREIT, NCREIF, The FTSE Group. NCREIF statistics are the product of  direct queries and may fluctuate over time.

ΝΧΡΕΙΦ Τρανσαχτιον ανδ Αππραισαλ Χαπιταλιζατιον Ρατεσ ΝΧΡΕΙΦ Χαπιταλιζατιον Ρατεσ βψ Προπερτψ Τψπε

0%

3%

6%

9%

Appraisal Capitalization RatesTransaction Capitalization Rates

05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15

Source: NCREIF

Note: Transaction capitalization rate is equal-weighted.

0%

3%

6%

9%

IndustrialApartment RetailOffice

05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15

Source: NCREIF

Note: Capitalization rates are appraisal-based.

Ιν ϑαπαν τηε ψεν�σ δεπρεχιατιον λεδ το α ϖερψ αχτιϖε σεχονδ 

θυαρτερ φορ ρεαλ εστατε mαρκετσ, ωηιχη χαυσεδ φυρτηερ χαπι−

talization rate compression in irst-tier cities. Transaction 
ϖολυmεσ ιν βοτη Χηινα ανδ Αυστραλια ωερε mυτεδ ασ mαχρο 

χονχερνσ οϖερ Χηινεσε mαρκετ χορρεχτιονσ εσχαλατεδ. Α ωεακ 

Αυστραλιαν δολλαρ αττραχτεδ οϖερσεασ ινϖεστορσ, παρτιχυλαρλψ 

from within the Asia Paciic region.

CMBS issuance reached $27.5 billion in the irst quarter of 
τηε ψεαρ, αηεαδ οφ τηε ∃27.0 βιλλιον οφ ισσυανχε ϖολυmε φροm 

τηε θυαρτερ πριορ ανδ ∃20.5 βιλλιον ιν τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ οφ 

2014. Τοταλ ισσυανχε φορ τηε τραιλινγ 12 mοντησ ωασ ∃107.7 

βιλλιον, νεαρινγ ρολλινγ ονε−ψεαρ ισσυανχε ϖολυmεσ νοτ σεεν 

σινχε Μαψ 2008. Θυαρτερλψ ισσυανχε ϖολυmε βετωεεν 2005 

ανδ 2007 ρανγεδ φροm ∃33.0 βιλλιον το α ηιγη οφ ∃73.6 βιλλιον ιν 

τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ οφ 2007.



19Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Πριϖατε Εθυιτψ Περφορmανχε Dαταβασε (%) (Ποολεδ Ηοριζον ΙΡΡσ τηρουγη Dεχεmβερ 31, 2014∗)

Στρατεγψ 3 Μοντησ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ 20 Ψεαρσ

Αλλ ςεντυρε 11.8 23.9 18.7 16.5 10.4 5.3 28.0

Γροωτη Εθυιτψ 0.8 11.1 14.2 14.0 12.6 10.5 15.0

Αλλ Βυψουτσ 2.3 9.6 15.2 14.4 12.7 11.4 13.2

Μεζζανινε 1.9 11.0 12.3 11.9 10.6 8.0 10.3

Dιστρεσσεδ 0.2 7.5 14.5 12.5 10.7 11.3 11.6

Αλλ Πριϖατε Εθυιτψ 3.3 11.8 15.5 14.4 12.0 9.8 14.6

Σ&Π 500 4.9 13.7 20.4 15.5 7.7 4.2 9.9 

Private equity returns are net of  fees. 

Sources: Standard & Poor’s, Thomson/Cambridge 

*Most recent data available at time of  publication

Α Σελλερ�σ Μαρκετ  

ΠΡΙςΑΤΕ ΕΘΥΙΤΨ |  Γαρψ Ροβερτσον

Ιν φυνδραισινγ, Πριϖατε Εθυιτψ Αναλψστ ρεπορτσ τηατ νεω σεχονδ−

θυαρτερ χοmmιτmεντσ τοταλεδ ∃87.1 βιλλιον ωιτη 231 νεω παρτνερ−

ships formed, up 55% from the irst quarter’s $56.2 billion and 

147 παρτνερσηιπσ φορmεδ. Ιφ τηισ mοmεντυm χοντινυεσ, 2015 χουλδ 

χροσσ τηε ∃300 βιλλιον mαρκ. Τηε 10 παρτνερσηιπσ τηατ ραισεδ τηε 

most capital so far in 2015 account for 67% of the irst-half total; 

Βλαχκστονε ςΙΙ ωασ τηε λαργεστ ατ ∃17.5 βιλλιον. 

Αχχορδινγ το Βυψουτσ, τηε ινϖεστmεντ παχε βψ φυνδσ ιντο χοmπα−

νιεσ ιν τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ τοταλεδ 358 τρανσαχτιονσ, υπ σλιγητλψ 

from 333 deals in the irst quarter of 2015. The announced aggre−

gate dollar volume was $24.3 billion, down from $34.9 in the irst 

θυαρτερ. Νινε δεαλσ ωιτη αννουνχεδ ϖαλυεσ οφ ∃1 βιλλιον ορ mορε 

χλοσεδ ιν τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ, τηε λαργεστ βεινγ τηε ∃4.1 βιλλιον 

Λιφε Τιmε Φιτνεσσ ανδ ∃3.4 βιλλιον Ριϖερβεδ Τεχηνολογψ τακε−πρι−

ϖατε τρανσαχτιονσ. 

Αχχορδινγ το τηε Νατιοναλ ςεντυρε Χαπιταλ Ασσοχιατιον, σεχονδ−

θυαρτερ ινϖεστmεντσ ιν ϖεντυρε χαπιταλ χοmπανιεσ τοταλεδ ∃17.5 

billion in 1,189 rounds of inancing—the largest dollar volume 

σινχε τηε φουρτη θυαρτερ οφ 2000. Τηε δολλαρ ϖολυmε ανδ νυmβερ 

of rounds both increased compared to the irst quarter’s $13.5 

βιλλιον ανδ 1,048 ρουνδσ. Τηε λαργεστ ωασ α ∃1.5 βιλλιον εξπαν−

σιον ρουνδ βψ Αιρβνβ. 

Ρεγαρδινγ εξιτσ, Βυψουτσ ρεπορτσ τηατ 135 πριϖατε Μ&Α εξιτσ οφ βυψ−

ουτ−βαχκεδ χοmπανιεσ οχχυρρεδ δυρινγ τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ, ωιτη 49 

δεαλσ δισχλοσινγ ϖαλυεσ τοταλινγ ∃35.8 βιλλιον. Τηε Μ&Α εξιτ χουντ 

Φυνδσ Χλοσεδ ϑανυαρψ 1 το ϑυνε 30, 2015

Στρατεγψ Νο. οφ Φυνδσ Αmτ (∃mm) Περχεντ

ςεντυρε Χαπιταλ 151 21,523 15%

Βυψουτσ 139 93,821 65%

Συβορδινατεδ Dεβτ 17 3,814 3%

Dιστρεσσεδ Dεβτ 19 10,793 8%

Σεχονδαρψ ανδ Οτηερ 13 6,250 4%

Φυνδ−οφ−φυνδσ 39 7,103 5%

Τοταλσ 378 143,304 100%

Source: Private Equity Analyst

was about even with the irst quarter, which had 136 private exits but 

α σλιγητλψ ηιγηερ αννουνχεδ ϖαλυε οφ ∃36.9 βιλλιον. Βυψουτ−βαχκεδ 

IPOs jumped to 17 issues in the second quarter loating $6.6 billion, 

up from the six IPOs totaling $1.1 billion in the irst quarter.

ςεντυρε−βαχκεδ Μ&Α εξιτσ τοταλεδ 70 τρανσαχτιονσ, ωιτη 14 δισ−

χλοσινγ α τοταλ δολλαρ ϖολυmε οφ ∃4.1 βιλλιον. Τηε νυmβερ οφ εξιτσ 

declined from the irst quarter’s 94 company sales, but the 

αννουνχεδ δολλαρ ϖολυmε ινχρεασεδ φροm ∃2.2 βιλλιον. Τηερε ωερε 

27 VC-backed IPOs in the second quarter with a combined loat of 

$3.4 billion, 10 more than the irst quarter’s 17 IPOs and more than 

δουβλε τηε τοταλ ισσυανχε οφ ∃1.4 βιλλιον.

Πλεασε σεε ουρ υπχοmινγ ισσυε οφ Πριϖατε Μαρκετσ Τρενδσ φορ mορε 

ιν−δεπτη χοϖεραγε.

Note: Transaction count and dollar volume figures across all private equity measures 

are preliminary figures and are subject to update in subsequent versions of  Capital 

Market Review and other Callan publications.



20

Dαταβασε Μεδιαν ανδ Ινδεξ Ρετυρνσ∗ φορ Περιοδσ ενδεδ ϑυνε 30, 2015

Θυαρτερ 2 Θυαρτερσ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ

Ηεδγε Φυνδ−οφ−Φυνδσ Dαταβασε 0.23 2.45 3.57 7.08 5.61 4.78

ΧΣ Ηεδγε Φυνδ Ινδεξ −0.48 1.99 3.28 7.08 6.17 5.89

ΧΣ Εθυιτψ Μαρκετ Νευτραλ 2.12 −0.40 −1.07 3.21 3.31 −1.20

ΧΣ Χονϖερτιβλε Αρβιτραγε 2.49 2.97 −1.05 3.61 4.82 5.05

ΧΣ Φιξεδ Ινχοmε Αρβιτραγε 0.90 0.75 1.70 5.00 6.23 4.04

ΧΣ Μυλτι−Στρατεγψ 0.24 3.24 6.45 9.00 8.45 6.86

ΧΣ Dιστρεσσεδ −0.35 −0.10 −3.74 8.33 6.37 6.13

ΧΣ Ρισκ Αρβιτραγε 1.70 2.39 −2.04 2.71 2.57 3.96

ΧΣ Εϖεντ Dριϖεν Μυλτι−Στρατεγψ 0.73 2.89 −1.31 8.67 5.67 6.55

ΧΣ Λονγ/Σηορτ Εθυιτψ 1.66 3.53 6.01 10.84 7.82 6.69

ΧΣ Dεδιχατεδ Σηορτ Βιασ −4.83 −8.88 −8.12 −17.00 −15.71 −9.68

ΧΣ Γλοβαλ Μαχρο −1.80 2.59 4.79 4.84 5.99 7.68

ΧΣ Μαναγεδ Φυτυρεσ −10.61 −4.07 12.86 2.92 2.87 3.96

ΧΣ Εmεργινγ Μαρκετσ 1.42 2.80 4.52 7.07 5.58 6.61

*Returns less than one year are not annualized. Sources: Callan, Credit Suisse 

Μοmεντυm Wηιπλαση

ΗΕDΓΕ ΦΥΝDΣ |  ϑιm ΜχΚεε

Wηιλε Γρεεχε σκιδδεδ τοωαρδ δεφαυλτ ατ θυαρτερ�σ ενδ, τηε 

ρεστ οφ τηε ωορλδ�σ πολιχψ mακερσ δεσπερατελψ τριεδ το κεεπ 

τηειρ ρεσπεχτιϖε εχονοmιεσ ον α γροωτη τραχκ. Ασ Χηινα�σ 

νασχεντ στοχκ mαρκετ συργεδ ανδ ρολλεδ οϖερ, Πρεσιδεντ Ξι 

ϑινπινγ χοντινυεδ ηισ φορmιδαβλε χηαλλενγε το δοωνσηιφτ ιτσ 

ινϖεστmεντ−λεδ εχονοmψ το α χονσυmερ−ποωερεδ ονε. Φαχινγ 

tighter labor markets and greater consumer conidence at 
ηοmε, τηε Υ.Σ. Φεδεραλ Ρεσερϖε στεερεδ mαρκετσ ρεσολυτελψ 

τοωαρδ ρατε ηικεσ.  Αφτερ ρισινγ εαρλψ ιν τηε θυαρτερ, mαρκετσ 

backpedaled at the end, with most inishing nearly unchanged. 
Giving up irst-quarter gains, the 10-year Treasury fell 3.05%. 
Τηε Βαρχλαψσ Ηιγη Ψιελδ Ινδεξ (+0.00%) αβσορβεδ ωιδενινγ 

σπρεαδσ ωιτη ιτσ χαρρψ.  

Ιλλυστρατινγ ραω ηεδγε φυνδ περφορmανχε ωιτηουτ ιmπλεmεντα−

τιον χοστσ, τηε Χρεδιτ Συισσε Ηεδγε Φυνδ Ινδεξ (ΧΣ ΗΦΙ) 

σλιππεδ 0.48%. Ασ α προξψ το αχτιϖελψ mαναγεδ ηεδγε φυνδ 

πορτφολιοσ, τηε mεδιαν mαναγερ ιν τηε Χαλλαν Ηεδγε Φυνδ−οφ−

Φυνδσ Dαταβασε mοϖεδ αηεαδ 0.23%, νετ οφ αλλ φεεσ. Wιτηιν 

τηε ΧΣ ΗΦΙ, τηοσε χηασινγ mοmεντυm ωερε ηυρτ βαδλψ ωηιλε 

τηοσε φοχυσεδ ον φυνδαmενταλσ συρϖιϖεδ υνσχατηεδ, mορε ορ 

λεσσ. Τηε θυαρτερ�σ mοστ νοταβλε ϖιχτιm ωασ Μαναγεδ Φυτυρεσ 

(−10.61%). Τηε βεστ−περφορmινγ στρατεγιεσ φορ τηε θυαρτερ ωερε 

Χονϖερτιβλε Αρβ (+2.49%), Εθυιτψ Μαρκετ Νευτραλ (+2.12%), 

ανδ Ρισκ Αρβ (+1.70%). Dεσπιτε mεαγερ φυελ φροm mαρκετ βετα, 

Λονγ/Σηορτ Εθυιτψ γαινεδ 1.66%. 

Wιτηιν Χαλλαν�σ Ηεδγε Φυνδ−οφ−Φυνδσ Dαταβασε, mαρκετ εξπο−

συρεσ προϖιδεδ λιττλε τραχτιον ιν τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ. Νεϖερτηελεσσ, 

τηε mεδιαν Χαλλαν Λονγ/Σηορτ Εθυιτψ ΦΟΦ (+0.82%) εδγεδ ουτ 

τηε Χαλλαν Αβσολυτε Ρετυρν ΦΟΦ (+0.36%). 

  Absolute Return Core Diversified Long/Short Eq
  FOF Style FOF Style FOF Style

 10th Percentile 1.16 0.90 1.94

 25th Percentile 0.70 0.63 1.37

 Median 0.36 0.13 0.82

 75th Percentile -0.18 -0.34 0.01

 90th Percentile -0.66 -1.18 -0.54

 T-Bills + 5% 1.23 1.23 1.23

Sources: Callan, Merrill Lynch

-2%

-1%

0%

1%

2%

Χαλλαν Στψλε Γρουπ Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρνσ



21Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Τηε Χαλλαν DΧ Ινδεξ� ισ αν εθυαλλψ ωειγητεδ ινδεξ τραχκινγ τηε χαση 

lows and performance of nearly 90 plans, representing more than one mil−
lion DC participants and over $140 billion in assets. The Index is updated 
quarterly and is available on Callan’s website, as is the quarterly DC 
Observer newsletter.

Τηε Χαλλαν DΧ Ινδεξ� σταρτεδ τηε ψεαρ οφφ ον α ρεασοναβλψ 

sound note, gaining 2.15% for the irst quarter. Still, that per−
φορmανχε τραιλεδ τηε τψπιχαλ 2035 ταργετ δατε φυνδ (ΤDΦ), ωηιχη 

gained 2.55%. TDFs beneited from a much higher exposure 
το νον−Υ.Σ. εθυιτψ�ονε οφ τηε βεστ−περφορmινγ ασσετ χλασσεσ 

δυρινγ τηε περιοδ. Χορπορατε DΒ πλανσ περφορmεδ mορε ορ λεσσ 

ιν λινε ωιτη 2035 ΤDΦσ, βυτ ηαϖε ουτπερφορmεδ βοτη ΤDΦσ 

ανδ τηε DΧ Ινδεξ σινχε ινχεπτιον βψ αν αννυαλιζεδ mαργιν οφ 

1.01% ανδ 0.77%, ρεσπεχτιϖελψ.

DC plan balances grew by 2.76% in the irst quarter, driven 
primarily by market performance. Inlows added 60 bps to 
τοταλ γροωτη. Σινχε ινχεπτιον, πλαν σπονσορ ανδ παρτιχιπαντ 

contributions have had a signiicant impact on balances and 
αρε ρεσπονσιβλε φορ αππροξιmατελψ ονε−τηιρδ οφ τηε τοταλ γροωτη 

ιν βαλανχεσ (2.54% αννυαλιζεδ).

Νεαρλψ 66 χεντσ οφ εϖερψ δολλαρ τηατ mοϖεδ ωιτηιν DΧ πλανσ 

during the irst quarter lowed to TDFs. However, U.S. ixed 
ινχοmε ανδ Υ.Σ. λαργε χαπ αλσο mαδε ρεσπεχταβλε σηοωινγσ 

in terms of inlows—largely at the expense of stable value. 
Approximately 43% of outlows came from this asset class 
during the quarter. This follows ive successive quarters of 
stable value fund outlows. Still, overall turnover was modest 
at 0.32%, signiicantly below the historical average of 0.67%.

ΤDΦσ Wιν Θυαρτερ, Ασσετ Φλοωσ 

DΕΦΙΝΕD ΧΟΝΤΡΙΒΥΤΙΟΝ |  ϑαmεσ Ο�Χοννορ

Νετ Χαση Φλοω Αναλψσισ (Φιρστ Θυαρτερ 2015)∗ 

(Τοπ Τωο ανδ Βοττοm Τωο Ασσετ Γατηερερσ)

Ασσετ Χλασσ

Φλοωσ ασ % οφ

Τοταλ Νετ Φλοωσ

Ταργετ Dατε Φυνδσ 65.77%

Υ.Σ. Φιξεδ Ινχοmε 12.45%

Χοmπανψ Στοχκ −25.21%

Σταβλε ςαλυε −42.58%

Τοταλ Τυρνοϖερ 0.32%

1 Total Index “turnover” measures the percentage of  total invested assets (transfers 

only, excluding contributions and withdrawals) that moved between asset classes. 

Source: Callan DC Index

*Notes: DC Index inception date is January 2006. DB plan performance is gross of  

fees. Data provided here is the most recent available at time of  publication.

Ινϖεστmεντ Περφορmανχε∗

Γροωτη Σουρχεσ∗

A������ ���� !"#$ A������ %&�'&��(� )* +,�#.

�0

�0

40

60

80

/�0

To(�, )% t#$�3

2.15%

5.89%

!F�5( 7"��(�� ��/�A##"�,F9�$ :F#;� t#;�'(F&#

2.55%

6.66%

2.47%

5.65%

< =>? @BCDE < G>?HIJ KICD?L

M<

N<

O<

P<

Q<

RM<

2.54%

< To?SB KICD?L

2.76%

8.43%

@TIE? UHSI?>I NMRVWJJHSBTX>Y ZTJ[> \J[>]?TCJ

0.60%

5.89%

2.15%



T
o

ta
l F

u
n

d

Total Fund



Actual vs Target Asset Allocation
As of June 30, 2015

The top left chart shows the Fund’s asset allocation as of June 30, 2015. The top right chart shows the Fund’s target asset
allocation as outlined in the investment policy statement. The bottom chart ranks the fund’s asset allocation and the target
allocation versus the Public Fund Sponsor Database.

Actual Asset Allocation

Domestic Equity
51%

International Equity
13%

Fixed Income
22%

Real Estate
8%

Infrastructure
5%

Cash
0%

Target Asset Allocation

Domestic Equity
46%

International Equity
15%

Fixed Income
26%

Real Estate
8%

Infrastructure
5%

$000s Weight Percent $000s
Asset Class Actual Actual Target Difference Difference
Domestic Equity         374,186   50.9%   46.0%    4.9%          35,871
International Equity          98,860   13.4%   15.0% (1.6%) (11,460)
Fixed Income         162,948   22.2%   26.0% (3.8%) (28,274)
Real Estate          58,760    8.0%    8.0%    0.0% (77)
Infrastructure          40,220    5.5%    5.0%    0.5%           3,447
Cash             493    0.1%    0.0%    0.1%             493
Total         735,468  100.0%  100.0%

Asset Class Weights vs Public Fund Sponsor Database

W
e

ig
h

ts

(10%)

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Domestic Fixed Cash Real International
Equity Income Estate Equity

(12)

(26)

(75)
(62)

(91)(100)

(11)(12) (81)(71)

10th Percentile 52.04 42.47 4.26 13.84 25.44
25th Percentile 46.06 34.23 2.31 10.63 22.42

Median 37.51 27.37 1.14 7.99 18.62
75th Percentile 30.22 21.95 0.38 5.73 14.68
90th Percentile 21.34 15.91 0.07 3.74 11.63

Fund 50.88 22.16 0.07 13.46 13.44

Target 46.00 26.00 0.00 13.00 15.00

% Group Invested 98.78% 96.95% 71.34% 49.39% 98.17%

* Current Quarter Target = 36.0% S&P 500 Index, 26.0% Barclays Aggregate Index, 15.0% MSCI ACWI x US (Net), 10.0% Russell 2500 Index, 8.0%

NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gr and 5.0% CPI-W+4.0%.

 24
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Investment Manager Asset Allocation

The table below contrasts the distribution of assets across the Fund’s investment managers as of June 30, 2015, with the
distribution as of March 31, 2015. The change in asset distribution is broken down into the dollar change due to Net New
Investment and the dollar change due to Investment Return.

Asset Distribution Across Investment Managers

June 30, 2015 March 31, 2015

Market Value Weight Net New Inv. Inv. Return Market Value Weight
Domestic Equity $374,186,397 50.88% $(8,788,264) $4,118,047 $378,856,614 51.21%

Large Cap Equity $287,148,993 39.04% $(7,624,166) $1,318,479 $293,454,680 39.66%
Alliance S&P Index 86,801,529 11.80% (1,511,435) 275,202 88,037,763 11.90%
PIMCO StocksPLUS 42,899,182 5.83% 0 (1,455) 42,900,637 5.80%
BlackRock Russell 1000 Value 78,627,940 10.69% (1,007,897) 156,685 79,479,152 10.74%
T. Rowe Price Large Cap Growth 78,820,342 10.72% (5,104,834) 888,048 83,037,127 11.22%

Small/Mid Cap Equity $87,037,404 11.83% $(1,164,098) $2,799,567 $85,401,935 11.54%
Champlain Mid Cap 43,140,326 5.87% (87,598) 1,164,060 42,063,864 5.69%
Pyramis Small Cap 43,897,078 5.97% (1,076,499) 1,635,507 43,338,071 5.86%

International Equity $98,860,320 13.44% $(182,417) $17,842 $99,024,895 13.38%
Causeway International Value Equity 57,595,871 7.83% (96,832) 603,400 57,089,303 7.72%
Aberdeen EAFE Plus 41,264,449 5.61% (85,585) (585,558) 41,935,592 5.67%

Fixed Income $162,947,612 22.16% $280,255 $(2,820,512) $165,487,869 22.37%
BlackRock U.S. Debt Fund 61,449,037 8.36% (8,594) (1,037,069) 62,494,700 8.45%
PIMCO Fixed Income 101,498,576 13.80% 288,850 (1,783,443) 102,993,169 13.92%

Real Estate $58,760,226 7.99% $(798,152) $2,347,394 $57,210,984 7.73%
JP Morgan Strategic Property Fund 42,272,631 5.75% (98,504) 1,509,330 40,861,805 5.52%
LaSalle Income and Growth Fund* 62,000 0.01% (648,156) 12,163 697,994 0.09%
JP Morgan Income and Growth Fund 16,425,595 2.23% (51,491) 825,901 15,651,185 2.12%

Infrastructure $40,220,260 5.47% $(501,638) $2,031,355 $38,690,544 5.23%
Macquarie European Infrastructure 20,839,504 2.83% (366,044) 1,321,846 19,883,702 2.69%
SteelRiver Infrastructure 19,380,756 2.64% (135,594) 709,509 18,806,842 2.54%

Cash Composite $493,410 0.07% $(109,519) $() $602,929 0.08%
Cash 493,410 0.07% (109,519) () 602,929 0.08%

Total Plan $735,468,225 100.0% $(10,099,735) $5,694,126 $739,873,834 100.0%

*Note(s):  According to LaSalle, Income & Growth Fund IV's expected termination date is 10/1/2015;

a final distribution of TSRS's remaining assets will occur subsequent to the termination date.

 25
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods ended June 30,
2015. Negative returns are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The first
set of returns for each asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

Returns for Periods Ended June 30, 2015

Last Last Last
Last Last  3  5  10

Quarter Year Years Years Years
Gross of Fees

Domestic Equity 1.05% 9.01% 19.42% 18.62% 8.07%
  Total Domestic Equity Target (1) 0.14% 7.15% 17.64% 17.50% 8.20%

Large Cap Equity 0.40% 7.96% 18.88% 18.08% 7.39%
  S&P 500 Index 0.28% 7.42% 17.31% 17.34% 7.89%

Alliance S&P Index 0.28% 7.43% 17.25% 17.26% 7.94%

PIMCO StocksPLUS (0.00%) 7.57% 19.56% 19.74% -

  S&P 500 Index 0.28% 7.42% 17.31% 17.34% 7.89%

BlackRock Russell 1000 Value Index 0.18% 4.34% 17.46% 16.61% 7.20%

  Russell 1000 Value Index 0.11% 4.13% 17.34% 16.50% 7.05%

T. Rowe Price Large Cap Growth 0.94% 12.35% 21.55% 20.60% 10.47%

  Russell 1000 Growth Index 0.12% 10.56% 17.99% 18.59% 9.10%

Small/Mid Cap Equity U.S. Equity 3.28% 12.68% 21.17% 20.46% 10.53%
  Russell 2500 Index (0.34%) 5.92% 18.66% 17.85% 9.09%

Champlain Mid Cap 2.77% 10.27% 19.58% 18.62% 11.92%

  Russell MidCap Index (1.54%) 6.63% 19.26% 18.23% 9.40%

Pyramis Small Cap 3.80% 15.07% 22.65% 21.92% 11.80%

  Russell 2000 Index 0.42% 6.49% 17.81% 17.08% 8.40%

International Equity 0.01% (5.79%) 10.21% 8.43% 5.47%
  MSCI ACWI x US (Net) 0.53% (5.26%) 9.44% 7.76% 5.54%

Causeway International Value Equity 1.05% (2.38%) 13.83% 12.28% 6.92%

  MSCI EAFE Index 0.62% (4.22%) 11.97% 9.54% 5.12%

Aberdeen EAFE Plus (1.40%) (10.16%) 5.85% 8.39% 7.65%

  MSCI ACWI x US (Net) 0.53% (5.26%) 9.44% 7.76% 5.54%

Fixed Income (1.70%) 0.78% 3.38% 4.61% 5.54%
  Barclays Aggregate Index (1.68%) 1.86% 1.83% 3.35% 4.44%

BlackRock U.S. Debt Fund (1.66%) 1.99% 1.98% 3.49% 4.56%

  Barclays Aggregate Index (1.68%) 1.86% 1.83% 3.35% 4.44%

PIMCO Fixed Income (1.73%) 0.05% 4.23% 5.56% 6.23%

  Custom Index (2) (1.22%) 0.75% 3.83% 4.99% 5.68%

(1) The Total Domestic Equity target is currently composed of 78% S&P 500 and 22% Russell

2500 Index.

(2) The custom index is currently composed of 25% Barclays Mortgage, 25% Barclays Credit, 25%

Barclays High Yield, and 25% JP Morgan EMBI Global. Prior to 2/1/2012, the custom index was

composed of 70% Barclays Mortgage, 15% Barclays Credit, and 15% Barclays High Yield.

 26
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods ended June 30,
2015. Negative returns are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The first
set of returns for each asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

Returns for Periods Ended June 30, 2015

Last Last Last
Last Last  3  5  10

Quarter Year Years Years Years

Gross of Fees

Real Estate 4.14% 13.92% 14.39% 14.58% 6.52%
  NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gr 3.82% 14.43% 13.11% 14.41% 6.85%

JP Morgan Strategic Property Fund 3.70% 13.37% 13.84% 14.47% 7.69%
  NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gr 3.82% 14.43% 13.11% 14.41% 6.85%

JP Morgan Income and Growth Fund 5.28% 16.19% 17.64% 20.79% -
  NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gr 3.82% 14.43% 13.11% 14.41% 6.85%

Infrastructure 5.29% (2.75%) 5.32% 7.46% -
  CPI + 4% 2.14% 3.62% 5.14% 5.80% 6.10%

Macquarie European Infrastructure 6.71% (9.64%) 5.47% 7.96% -
SteelRiver Infrastructure 3.79% 5.97% 5.22% 7.01% -
  CPI + 4% 2.14% 3.62% 5.14% 5.80% 6.10%

Cash Composite 0.00% 0.00% 0.02% 0.07% 1.56%

Total Fund 0.76% 4.63% 12.86% 12.64% 7.07%
Total Fund Benchmark* 0.14% 4.34% 11.27% 11.70% 6.82%

* Current Quarter Target = 36.0% S&P 500 Index, 26.0% Barclays Aggregate Index, 15.0% MSCI ACWI x US (Net), 10.0%
Russell 2500 Index, 8.0% NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gr and 5.0% CPI-W+4.0%.
Note(s):  According to LaSalle, Income & Growth Fund IV's expected termination date is 10/1/2015;
a final distribution of TSRS's remaining assets will occur subsequent to the termination date.

 27
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods ended June 30,
2015. Negative returns are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The first
set of returns for each asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

FY 2015 FY 2014 FY 2013 FY 2012 FY 2011
Gross of Fees

Domestic Equity 9.01% 26.67% 23.35% 2.92% 33.98%
  Total Domestic Equity Target (1) 7.15% 24.84% 21.70% 3.77% 32.56%

Large Cap Equity 7.96% 27.15% 22.41% 3.48% 32.04%
  S&P 500 Index 7.42% 24.61% 20.60% 5.45% 30.69%

Alliance S&P Index 7.43% 24.50% 20.51% 5.48% 30.36%

PIMCO StocksPLUS 7.57% 27.61% 24.51% 5.80% 36.12%

  S&P 500 Index 7.42% 24.61% 20.60% 5.45% 30.69%

BlackRock Russell 1000 Value Index 4.34% 23.88% 25.36% 3.07% 29.08%

  Russell 1000 Value Index 4.13% 23.81% 25.32% 3.01% 28.94%

T. Rowe Price Large Cap Growth 12.35% 32.80% 20.37% 5.19% 35.07%

  Russell 1000 Growth Index 10.56% 26.92% 17.07% 5.76% 35.01%

Small/Mid Cap Equity U.S. Equity 12.68% 24.97% 26.35% 0.64% 41.67%
  Russell 2500 Index 5.92% 25.58% 25.61% (2.29%) 39.28%

Champlain Mid Cap 10.27% 26.20% 22.88% 0.78% 36.29%

  Russell MidCap Index 6.63% 26.85% 25.41% (1.65%) 38.47%

Pyramis Small Cap 15.07% 23.59% 29.74% 0.44% 45.35%

  Russell 2000 Index 6.49% 23.64% 24.21% (2.08%) 37.41%

International Equity (5.79%) 21.26% 17.18% (14.49%) 30.95%
  MSCI ACWI x US (Net) (5.26%) 21.75% 13.63% (14.57%) 29.73%

Causeway International Value Equity (2.38%) 23.76% 22.07% (10.83%) 35.68%

  MSCI EAFE Index (4.22%) 23.57% 18.62% (13.83%) 30.36%

Aberdeen EAFE Plus (10.16%) 18.20% 11.69% (4.27%) 31.73%

  MSCI ACWI x US (Net) (5.26%) 21.75% 13.63% (14.57%) 29.73%

Fixed Income 0.78% 7.64% 1.84% 8.32% 4.66%
  Barclays Aggregate Index 1.86% 4.37% (0.69%) 7.47% 3.90%

BlackRock U.S. Debt Fund 1.99% 4.49% (0.48%) 7.55% 4.04%

  Barclays Aggregate Index 1.86% 4.37% (0.69%) 7.47% 3.90%

PIMCO Fixed Income 0.05% 9.60% 3.27% 9.56% 5.64%

  Custom Index (2) 0.75% 8.48% 2.41% 7.63% 5.86%

(1) The Total Domestic Equity target is currently composed of 78% S&P 500 and 22% Russell

2500 Index.

(2) The custom index is currently composed of 25% Barclays Mortgage, 25% Barclays Credit, 25%

Barclays High Yield, and 25% JP Morgan EMBI Global. Prior to 2/1/2012, the custom index was

composed of 70% Barclays Mortgage, 15% Barclays Credit, and 15% Barclays High Yield.

 28
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods ended June 30,
2015. Negative returns are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The first
set of returns for each asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

FY 2015 FY 2014 FY 2013 FY 2012 FY 2011

Gross of Fees

Real Estate 13.92% 13.27% 16.00% 11.63% 18.18%
  NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gr 14.43% 12.75% 12.17% 12.42% 20.48%

JP Morgan Strategic Property Fund 13.37% 14.08% 14.08% 12.00% 18.91%
  NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gr 14.43% 12.75% 12.17% 12.42% 20.48%

JP Morgan Income and Growth Fund 16.19% 11.66% 25.49% 18.15% 33.69%
  NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gr 14.43% 12.75% 12.17% 12.42% 20.48%

Infrastructure (2.75%) 16.31% 3.27% 5.68% 16.10%
  CPI + 4% 3.62% 6.05% 5.76% 5.58% 8.06%

Macquarie European Infrastructure (9.64%) 14.63% 13.28% 0.54% 24.31%
SteelRiver Infrastructure 5.97% 18.46% (7.19%) 13.03% 6.57%
  CPI + 4% 3.62% 6.05% 5.76% 5.58% 8.06%

Cash Composite 0.00% 0.00% 0.05% 0.03% 0.25%

Total Fund 4.63% 19.64% 14.84% 2.40% 23.19%
Total Fund Benchmark* 4.34% 16.97% 12.87% 3.04% 22.53%

* Current Quarter Target = 36.0% S&P 500 Index, 26.0% Barclays Aggregate Index, 15.0% MSCI ACWI x US (Net), 10.0%
Russell 2500 Index, 8.0% NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gr and 5.0% CPI-W+4.0%.
Note(s):  According to LaSalle, Income & Growth Fund IV's expected termination date is 10/1/2015;
a final distribution of TSRS's remaining assets will occur subsequent to the termination date.

 29
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods ended June 30,
2015. Negative returns are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The first
set of returns for each asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

Returns for Periods Ended June 30, 2015

Last Last Last
Last Last  3  5  10

Quarter Year Years Years Years
Net of Fees

Domestic Equity 0.98% 8.72% 19.05% 18.21% 7.67%
  Total Domestic Equity Target (1) 0.14% 7.15% 17.64% 17.50% 8.19%

Large Cap Equity 0.36% 7.83% 18.71% 17.85% 7.12%
  S&P 500 Index 0.28% 7.42% 17.31% 17.34% 7.89%

Alliance S&P Index 0.27% 7.40% 17.21% 17.21% 7.90%

PIMCO StocksPLUS (0.00%) 7.57% 19.34% 19.54% -

  S&P 500 Index 0.28% 7.42% 17.31% 17.34% 7.89%

BlackRock Russell 1000 Value Index 0.17% 4.30% 17.42% 16.59% 7.19%

  Russell 1000 Value Index 0.11% 4.13% 17.34% 16.50% 7.05%

T. Rowe Price Large Cap Growth 0.82% 11.93% 21.01% 20.04% 9.93%

  Russell 1000 Growth Index 0.12% 10.56% 17.99% 18.59% 9.10%

Small/Mid Cap Equity U.S. Equity 3.09% 11.80% 20.23% 19.52% 9.68%
  Russell 2500 Index (0.34%) 5.92% 18.66% 17.85% 9.09%

Champlain Mid Cap 2.56% 9.33% 18.59% 17.63% 10.99%

  Russell MidCap Index (1.54%) 6.63% 19.26% 18.23% 9.40%

Pyramis Small Cap 3.62% 14.24% 21.76% 21.03% 10.98%

  Russell 2000 Index 0.42% 6.49% 17.81% 17.08% 8.40%

International Equity (0.16%) (6.46%) 9.43% 7.63% 4.65%
  MSCI ACWI x US (Net) 0.53% (5.26%) 9.44% 7.76% 5.54%

Causeway International Value Equity 0.90% (3.01%) 13.09% 11.55% 6.22%

  MSCI EAFE Index 0.62% (4.22%) 11.97% 9.54% 5.12%

Aberdeen EAFE Plus (1.60%) (10.90%) 5.01% 7.53% 6.80%

  MSCI ACWI x US (Net) 0.53% (5.26%) 9.44% 7.76% 5.54%

Fixed Income (1.78%) 0.46% 3.05% 4.30% 5.27%
  Barclays Aggregate Index (1.68%) 1.86% 1.83% 3.35% 4.44%

BlackRock U.S. Debt Fund (1.66%) 1.97% 1.95% 3.47% 4.55%

  Barclays Aggregate Index (1.68%) 1.86% 1.83% 3.35% 4.44%

PIMCO Fixed Income (1.85%) (0.43%) 3.73% 5.10% 5.82%

  Custom Index (2) (1.22%) 0.75% 3.83% 4.99% 5.68%

(1) The Total Domestic Equity target is currently composed of 78% S&P 500 and 22% Russell

2500 Index.

(2) The custom index is currently composed of 25% Barclays Mortgage, 25% Barclays Credit, 25%

Barclays High Yield, and 25% JP Morgan EMBI Global. Prior to 2/1/2012, the custom index was

composed of 70% Barclays Mortgage, 15% Barclays Credit, and 15% Barclays High Yield.

 30
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods ended June 30,
2015. Negative returns are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The first
set of returns for each asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

Returns for Periods Ended June 30, 2015

Last Last Last
Last Last  3  5  10

Quarter Year Years Years Years

Net of Fees

Real Estate 3.87% 12.74% 13.14% 13.29% 5.29%
  NFI-ODCE Equal Weight Net 3.70% 13.64% 11.93% 13.28% 5.63%

JP Morgan Strategic Property Fund 3.45% 12.28% 12.74% 13.35% 6.63%
  NFI-ODCE Equal Weight Net 3.70% 13.64% 11.93% 13.28% 5.63%

JP Morgan Income and Growth Fund 4.95% 14.74% 15.93% 18.99% -
  NFI-ODCE Equal Weight Net 3.70% 13.64% 11.93% 13.28% 5.63%

Infrastructure 4.50% (3.82%) 3.99% 5.81% -
  CPI + 4% 2.14% 3.62% 5.14% 5.80% 6.10%

Macquarie European Infrastructure 5.76% (10.56%) 4.44% 6.48% -
SteelRiver Infrastructure 3.16% 4.67% 3.51% 5.14% -
  CPI + 4% 2.14% 3.62% 5.14% 5.80% 6.10%

Cash Composite 0.00% (0.00%) 0.02% 0.06% 1.56%

Total Fund 0.62% 4.17% 12.32% 12.07% 6.53%
Total Fund Benchmark* 0.14% 4.34% 11.27% 11.70% 6.82%

* Current Quarter Target = 36.0% S&P 500 Index, 26.0% Barclays Aggregate Index, 15.0% MSCI ACWI x US (Net), 10.0%
Russell 2500 Index, 8.0% NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gr and 5.0% CPI-W+4.0%.

Note(s):  According to LaSalle, Income & Growth Fund IV's expected termination date is 10/1/2015;

a final distribution of TSRS's remaining assets will occur subsequent to the termination date.

 31
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods ended June 30,
2015. Negative returns are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The first
set of returns for each asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

FY 2015 FY 2014 FY 2013 FY 2012 FY 2011
Net of Fees

Domestic Equity 8.72% 26.30% 22.90% 2.50% 33.44%
  Total Domestic Equity Target (1) 7.15% 24.84% 21.70% 3.77% 32.56%

Large Cap Equity 7.83% 26.95% 22.21% 3.21% 31.66%
  S&P 500 Index 7.42% 24.61% 20.60% 5.45% 30.69%

Alliance S&P Index 7.40% 24.45% 20.46% 5.43% 30.30%

PIMCO StocksPLUS 7.57% 27.61% 23.83% 5.56% 36.04%

  S&P 500 Index 7.42% 24.61% 20.60% 5.45% 30.69%

BlackRock Russell 1000 Value Index 4.30% 23.83% 25.35% 3.07% 29.08%

  Russell 1000 Value Index 4.13% 23.81% 25.32% 3.01% 28.94%

T. Rowe Price Large Cap Growth 11.93% 32.16% 19.79% 4.67% 34.41%

  Russell 1000 Growth Index 10.56% 26.92% 17.07% 5.76% 35.01%

Small/Mid Cap Equity U.S. Equity 11.80% 24.00% 25.36% (0.16%) 40.57%
  Russell 2500 Index 5.92% 25.58% 25.61% (2.29%) 39.28%

Champlain Mid Cap 9.33% 25.16% 21.86% (0.08%) 35.17%

  Russell MidCap Index 6.63% 26.85% 25.41% (1.65%) 38.47%

Pyramis Small Cap 14.24% 22.70% 28.79% (0.31%) 44.30%

  Russell 2000 Index 6.49% 23.64% 24.21% (2.08%) 37.41%

International Equity (6.46%) 20.41% 16.34% (15.16%) 29.90%
  MSCI ACWI x US (Net) (5.26%) 21.75% 13.63% (14.57%) 29.73%

Causeway International Value Equity (3.01%) 22.98% 21.27% (11.43%) 34.80%

  MSCI EAFE Index (4.22%) 23.57% 18.62% (13.83%) 30.36%

Aberdeen EAFE Plus (10.90%) 17.28% 10.80% (5.04%) 30.75%

  MSCI ACWI x US (Net) (5.26%) 21.75% 13.63% (14.57%) 29.73%

Fixed Income 0.46% 7.30% 1.51% 8.03% 4.42%
  Barclays Aggregate Index 1.86% 4.37% (0.69%) 7.47% 3.90%

BlackRock U.S. Debt Fund 1.97% 4.43% (0.49%) 7.55% 4.04%

  Barclays Aggregate Index 1.86% 4.37% (0.69%) 7.47% 3.90%

PIMCO Fixed Income (0.43%) 9.07% 2.77% 9.15% 5.28%

  Custom Index (2) 0.75% 8.48% 2.41% 7.63% 5.86%

(1) The Total Domestic Equity target is currently composed of 78% S&P 500 and 22% Russell

2500 Index.

(2) The custom index is currently composed of 25% Barclays Mortgage, 25% Barclays Credit, 25%

Barclays High Yield, and 25% JP Morgan EMBI Global. Prior to 2/1/2012, the custom index was

composed of 70% Barclays Mortgage, 15% Barclays Credit, and 15% Barclays High Yield.

 32
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods ended June 30,
2015. Negative returns are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The first
set of returns for each asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

FY 2015 FY 2014 FY 2013 FY 2012 FY 2011

Net of Fees

Real Estate 12.74% 12.03% 14.67% 10.34% 16.77%
  NFI-ODCE Equal Weight Net 13.64% 11.37% 10.80% 11.46% 19.33%

JP Morgan Strategic Property Fund 12.28% 12.98% 12.95% 10.90% 17.75%
  NFI-ODCE Equal Weight Net 13.64% 11.37% 10.80% 11.46% 19.33%

JP Morgan Income and Growth Fund 14.74% 9.93% 23.54% 16.49% 31.44%
  NFI-ODCE Equal Weight Net 13.64% 11.37% 10.80% 11.46% 19.33%

Infrastructure (3.82%) 15.32% 1.39% 3.61% 13.84%
  CPI + 4% 3.62% 6.05% 5.76% 5.58% 8.06%

Macquarie European Infrastructure (10.56%) 14.11% 11.61% (1.44%) 21.91%
SteelRiver Infrastructure 4.67% 16.80% (9.28%) 10.85% 4.48%
  CPI + 4% 3.62% 6.05% 5.76% 5.58% 8.06%

Cash Composite (0.00%) 0.00% 0.05% 0.03% 0.25%

Total Fund 4.17% 19.11% 14.21% 1.82% 22.52%
Total Fund Benchmark* 4.34% 16.97% 12.87% 3.04% 22.53%

* Current Quarter Target = 36.0% S&P 500 Index, 26.0% Barclays Aggregate Index, 15.0% MSCI ACWI x US (Net), 10.0%
Russell 2500 Index, 8.0% NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gr and 5.0% CPI-W+4.0%.
*Note(s):  According to LaSalle, Income & Growth Fund IV's expected termination date is 10/1/2015;
a final distribution of TSRS's remaining assets will occur subsequent to the termination date.

 33
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Quarterly Style Attribution - June 30, 2015

The following analysis approaches Total Fund Attribution from the perspective of relative return. Relative return attribution
separates and quantifies the sources of total fund excess return relative to its target. This excess return is separated into two
relative attribution effects: Style Allocation Effect and Manager Selection Effect. The Style Allocation Effect represents the
excess return due to the actual total fund style allocation differing from the target style allocation. Manager Selection Effect
represents the total fund impact of the individual managers excess returns relative to their benchmarks.

Style Class Under or Overweighting

(6%) (4%) (2%) 0% 2% 4% 6%

Large Cap Equity 3.48%

Small/Mid Cap Equity 1.54%

Fixed Income (3.70%)

Real Estate (0.28%)

Infrastructure 0.25%

International Equity (1.30%)

Large Cap Equity

Small/Mid Cap Equity

Fixed Income

Real Estate

Infrastructure

International Equity

Total

Actual vs Target Returns

(4%) (2%) 0% 2% 4% 6% 8%

0.40%

0.28%

3.28%

(0.34%)

(1.70%)

(1.68%)

4.14%

3.82%

5.29%

2.14%

0.01%

0.53%

0.76%

0.14%

Actual Target

Relative Attribution by Style Class

(0.4%) (0.2%) 0.0% 0.2% 0.4% 0.6% 0.8%

Manager Effect Style Allocation Total

Relative Attribution Effects for Quarter ended June 30, 2015

Effective Effective Total
Actual Target Actual Target Manager Style Relative

Style Class Weight Weight Return Return Effect Allocation Return
Large Cap Equity 39% 36% 0.40% 0.28% 0.05% 0.01% 0.05%
Small/Mid Cap Equity 12% 10% 3.28% (0.34%) 0.41% (0.01%) 0.41%
Fixed Income 22% 26% (1.70%) (1.68%) (0.01%) 0.07% 0.06%
Real Estate 8% 8% 4.14% 3.82% 0.03% (0.01%) 0.02%
Infrastructure 5% 5% 5.29% 2.14% 0.16% 0.01% 0.17%
International Equity 14% 15% 0.01% 0.53% (0.07%) (0.02%) (0.09%)

Total = + +0.76% 0.14% 0.58% 0.04% 0.62%

* Current Quarter Target = 36.0% S&P 500 Index, 26.0% Barclays Aggregate Index, 15.0% MSCI ACWI x US (Net), 10.0% Russell 2500 Index, 8.0%

NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gr and 5.0% CPI-W+4.0%.

 34
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Cumulative Style Relative Attribution - June 30, 2015

The charts below accumulate the Total Fund Attribution Analysis (shown earlier) over multiple periods to examine the
cumulative sources of excess total fund performance relative to target. These cumulative results quantify the longer-term
sources of total fund excess return relative to target by style class. These relative attribution effects separate the cumulative
sources of total fund excess return into Style Allocation Effect and Manager Selection Effect.

One Year Relative Attribution Effects

(1.0%) (0.5%) 0.0% 0.5% 1.0% 1.5%

Large Cap Equity

Small/Mid Cap Equity

Fixed Income

Real Estate

Infrastructure

International Equity

Total

Manager Effect Style Allocation Total

Cumulative Relative Attribution Effects

(0.8%)

(0.6%)

(0.4%)

(0.2%)

0.0%

0.2%

0.4%

2014 2015

Manager Effect

Style Allocation

Total

One Year Relative Attribution Effects

Effective Effective Total
Actual Target Actual Target Manager Style Relative

Style Class Weight Weight Return Return Effect Allocation Return
Large Cap Equity 39% 36% 7.96% 7.42% 0.20% 0.06% 0.27%
Small/Mid Cap Equity 11% 10% 12.68% 5.92% 0.73% 0.01% 0.73%
Fixed Income 22% 26% 0.78% 1.86% (0.25%) 0.05% (0.21%)
Real Estate 8% 8% 13.92% 14.43% (0.03%) (0.05%) (0.08%)
Infrastructure 6% 5% (2.75%) 3.62% (0.38%) (0.02%) (0.40%)
International Equity 14% 15% (5.79%) (5.26%) (0.08%) 0.05% (0.02%)

Total = + +4.63% 4.34% 0.19% 0.10% 0.29%

* Current Quarter Target = 36.0% S&P 500 Index, 26.0% Barclays Aggregate Index, 15.0% MSCI ACWI x US (Net), 10.0% Russell 2500 Index, 8.0%

NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gr and 5.0% CPI-W+4.0%.

 35
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Cumulative Style Relative Attribution - June 30, 2015

The charts below accumulate the Total Fund Attribution Analysis (shown earlier) over multiple periods to examine the
cumulative sources of excess total fund performance relative to target. These cumulative results quantify the longer-term
sources of total fund excess return relative to target by style class. These relative attribution effects separate the cumulative
sources of total fund excess return into Style Allocation Effect and Manager Selection Effect.

Five Year Annualized Relative Attribution Effects

(0.4%) (0.2%) 0.0% 0.2% 0.4% 0.6% 0.8% 1.0% 1.2%

Large Cap Equity

Small/Mid Cap Equity

Fixed Income

Real Estate

Infrastructure

International Equity

Total

Manager Effect Style Allocation Total

Cumulative Relative Attribution Effects

(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Manager Effect

Style Allocation

Total

Five Year Annualized Relative Attribution Effects

Effective Effective Total
Actual Target Actual Target Manager Style Relative

Style Class Weight Weight Return Return Effect Allocation Return
Large Cap Equity 37% 36% 18.08% 17.34% 0.27% 0.04% 0.31%
Small/Mid Cap Equity 11% 10% 20.46% 17.85% 0.27% 0.02% 0.29%
Fixed Income 25% 26% 4.61% 3.62% 0.25% 0.02% 0.27%
Real Estate 7% 8% 14.58% 14.41% 0.02% (0.06%) (0.04%)
Infrastructure 6% 5% 7.46% 5.80% 0.09% (0.07%) 0.02%
International Equity 14% 15% 8.43% 7.76% 0.10% (0.01%) 0.09%

Total = + +12.64% 11.70% 1.00% (0.06%) 0.94%

* Current Quarter Target = 36.0% S&P 500 Index, 26.0% Barclays Aggregate Index, 15.0% MSCI ACWI x US (Net), 10.0% Russell 2500 Index, 8.0%

NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gr and 5.0% CPI-W+4.0%.

 36
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Cumulative Performance Relative to Target

The first chart below illustrates the cumulative performance of the Total Fund relative to the cumulative performance of the
Fund’s Target Asset Mix. The Target Mix is assumed to be rebalanced each quarter with no transaction costs. The second
chart below shows the return and the risk of the Total Fund and the Target Mix, contrasted with the returns and risks of the
funds in the Public Fund Sponsor Database.

Cumulative Returns Actual vs Target

C
u

m
u
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

0%

100%

200%

300%

400%

500%

600%

700%

800%

900%

1000%

88 89 90 91 92 93 94 95 96 97 98 99 00 01 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15

Total Fund

Total Fund Target

Twenty-Six and Three-Quarter Year Annualized Risk vs Return

5% 6% 7% 8% 9% 10% 11% 12% 13%
2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

9%

10%

11%

Total Fund

Total Fund Target

Standard Deviation

R
e
tu

rn
s

Squares represent membership of the Public Fund Sponsor Database

* Current Quarter Target = 36.0% S&P 500 Index, 26.0% Barclays Aggregate Index, 15.0% MSCI ACWI x US (Net), 10.0% Russell 2500 Index, 8.0%

NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gr and 5.0% CPI-W+4.0%.

 37
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Total Fund Ranking

The first two charts show the ranking of the Total Fund’s performance relative to that of the Public Fund Sponsor Database
for periods ended June 30, 2015. The first chart is a standard unadjusted ranking. In the second chart each fund in the
database is adjusted to have the same historical asset allocation as that of the Total Fund.

Public Fund Sponsor Database
R

e
tu

rn
s

0%

5%

10%

15%

Last Last Last Last
Year 3 Years 5 Years 7 Years

(8)(14)

(4)

(30)

(4)

(15)

(26)(33)

10th Percentile 4.57 12.03 11.93 7.64
25th Percentile 3.94 11.46 11.35 7.05

Median 3.21 10.30 10.42 6.44
75th Percentile 2.10 9.08 9.17 5.81
90th Percentile 1.01 7.46 8.13 5.01

Total Fund 4.63 12.86 12.64 6.95

Policy Target 4.34 11.27 11.70 6.79

Asset Allocation Adjusted Ranking

R
e

tu
rn

s

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

Last Last Last Last
Year 3 Years 5 Years 7 Years

(75)(81)

(16)

(93)

(24)

(82)

(61)(73)

10th Percentile 6.03 13.12 13.16 7.81
25th Percentile 5.62 12.70 12.64 7.50

Median 5.09 12.24 12.24 7.08
75th Percentile 4.61 11.84 11.83 6.72
90th Percentile 3.87 11.46 11.37 6.32

Total Fund 4.63 12.86 12.64 6.95

Policy Target 4.34 11.27 11.70 6.79

* Current Quarter Target = 36.0% S&P 500 Index, 26.0% Barclays Aggregate Index, 15.0% MSCI ACWI x US (Net), 10.0% Russell 2500 Index, 8.0%

NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gr and 5.0% CPI-W+4.0%.

 38
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Asset Class Rankings

The charts below show the rankings of each asset class component of the Total Fund relative to appropriate comparative
databases. In the upper right corner of each graph is the weighted average of the rankings across the different asset classes.
The weights of the fund’s actual asset allocation are used to make this calculation. The weighted average ranking can be
viewed as a measure of the fund’s overall success in picking managers and structuring asset classes.

Total Asset Class Performance
One Year Ended June 30, 2015

R
e

tu
rn

s

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

Pub Pln- Public Fund - Intl Public Fund - Public Fund - Real
Dom Equity Equity  Dom Fixed Estate

(6)

(59)

(94)(91)

(84)
(38)

(18)

(58)

10th Percentile 8.67 (0.24) 2.53 14.71
25th Percentile 7.90 (2.10) 2.07 13.71

Median 7.33 (3.49) 1.62 11.28
75th Percentile 6.71 (4.32) 1.11 8.01
90th Percentile 5.21 (5.19) 0.01 4.27

Asset Class Composite 9.01 (5.79) 0.78 13.92

Composite Benchmark 7.15 (5.26) 1.86 10.05

Weighted
Ranking

38

Total Asset Class Performance
Five Years Ended June 30, 2015

R
e

tu
rn

s

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

Pub Pln- Public Fund - Intl Public Fund - Public Fund - Real
Dom Equity Equity  Dom Fixed Estate

(4)
(45)

(64)
(75)

(40)
(68)

(35)

(100)

10th Percentile 18.27 11.17 6.09 16.15
25th Percentile 17.84 10.09 5.07 14.74

Median 17.41 9.20 4.35 13.74
75th Percentile 16.84 7.81 3.16 12.21
90th Percentile 16.06 6.33 2.49 11.64

Asset Class Composite 18.62 8.43 4.61 14.58

Composite Benchmark 17.49 7.76 3.62 10.94

Weighted
Ranking

25

* Current Quarter Target = 36.0% S&P 500 Index, 26.0% Barclays Aggregate Index, 15.0% MSCI ACWI x US (Net), 10.0% Russell 2500 Index, 8.0%

NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gr and 5.0% CPI-W+4.0%.

 39
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Total Fund
Period Ended June 30, 2015

Investment Philosophy
The total fund return stream starts the third quarter of 1988.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Total Fund’s portfolio posted a 0.76% return for the quarter placing it in the 7 percentile of the Public Fund Sponsor
Database group for the quarter and in the 8 percentile for the last year.

Total Fund’s portfolio outperformed the Total Fund Benchmark by 0.62% for the quarter and outperformed the Total
Fund Benchmark for the year by 0.29%.

Performance vs Public Fund Sponsor Database (Gross)

(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 10 Years Last 26-3/4
Year Years

(7)
(48)

(8)(14)

(4)

(30)

(4)

(15)

(20)(36)

(70)
(43)

10th Percentile 0.64 4.57 12.03 11.93 7.35 9.47
25th Percentile 0.39 3.94 11.46 11.35 6.98 9.11

Median 0.10 3.21 10.30 10.42 6.57 8.63
75th Percentile (0.18) 2.10 9.08 9.17 6.07 8.46
90th Percentile (0.58) 1.01 7.46 8.13 5.53 8.18

Total Fund 0.76 4.63 12.86 12.64 7.07 8.48

Total Fund
Benchmark 0.14 4.34 11.27 11.70 6.82 8.82

Relative Return vs Total Fund Benchmark

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Total Fund

Public Fund Sponsor Database (Gross)
Annualized Five Year Risk vs Return

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14
0%

5%

10%

15%

Total Fund

Total Fund Benchmark

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 40
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



D
o

m
e

s
tic

 E
q

u
ity

Domestic Equity



Domestic Equity
Period Ended June 30, 2015

Investment Philosophy
The Total Domestic Equity target is currently composed of 78% S&P 500 Index and 22% Russell 2500 Index.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Domestic Equity’s portfolio posted a 1.05% return for the quarter placing it in the 2 percentile of the Pub Pln- Domestic
Equity group for the quarter and in the 6 percentile for the last year.

Domestic Equity’s portfolio outperformed the Total Domestic Equity Target by 0.91% for the quarter and outperformed
the Total Domestic Equity Target for the year by 1.86%.

Performance vs Pub Pln- Domestic Equity (Gross)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

Last Quarter Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 10 Years

(2)
(64)

(6)

(59)

(3)

(62)
(4)

(45)

(58)(50)

10th Percentile 0.72 8.67 18.81 18.27 8.92
25th Percentile 0.51 7.90 18.32 17.84 8.59

Median 0.27 7.33 17.84 17.41 8.19
75th Percentile 0.03 6.71 17.28 16.84 7.84
90th Percentile (0.24) 5.21 16.66 16.06 7.21

Domestic Equity 1.05 9.01 19.42 18.62 8.07

Total Domestic
Equity Target 0.14 7.15 17.64 17.50 8.19

Relative Returns vs
Total Domestic Equity Target

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(2.0%)

(1.5%)

(1.0%)

(0.5%)

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Domestic Equity

Pub Pln- Domestic Equity (Gross)
Annualized Five Year Risk vs Return

8 10 12 14 16 18 20 22 24
6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

20%

22%

24%

Domestic Equity

Total Domestic Equity Target

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 42
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Domestic Equity
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs Pub Pln- Domestic Equity (Gross)

(60%)

(40%)

(20%)

0%

20%

40%

60%

12/14- 6/15 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

870
4320

869

437

7029

2859
8468

7640

4563
9113

10th Percentile 3.44 12.79 37.22 17.42 2.34 21.49 34.69 (35.14) 8.11 16.29
25th Percentile 3.01 11.91 35.51 16.80 1.36 19.60 32.44 (36.36) 6.44 15.49

Median 2.40 11.31 34.39 16.07 0.33 17.92 29.50 (37.42) 5.18 14.60
75th Percentile 1.93 10.05 33.11 15.14 (1.19) 16.90 27.32 (39.33) 3.89 13.48
90th Percentile 1.41 8.42 31.95 14.16 (2.61) 15.71 25.64 (41.20) 2.96 12.58

Domestic Equity 3.66 11.46 37.46 18.44 (0.99) 19.45 26.46 (39.36) 5.48 12.46

Total Domestic
Equity Target 2.02 12.25 33.37 16.43 1.16 17.56 28.20 (36.92) 4.60 15.95

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs Total Domestic Equity Target

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(3%)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Domestic Equity Pub Pln- Dom Equity

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs Total Domestic Equity Target
Rankings Against Pub Pln- Domestic Equity (Gross)
Five Years Ended June 30, 2015

(5)

0

5

10

15

20

25

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

(28)

(28)

10th Percentile 0.64 18.15
25th Percentile 0.14 17.55

Median (0.54) 16.81
75th Percentile (1.22) 16.11
90th Percentile (1.89) 15.37

Domestic Equity 0.03 17.44

(1.5)

(1.0)

(0.5)

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

(28)

(29)

(3)

10th Percentile 0.41 1.33 0.41
25th Percentile 0.10 1.29 0.20

Median (0.38) 1.24 (0.03)
75th Percentile (0.73) 1.18 (0.25)
90th Percentile (1.01) 1.12 (0.53)

Domestic Equity 0.02 1.29 0.60

 43
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Alliance S&P Index
Period Ended June 30, 2015

Investment Philosophy
Alliance uses a stratified sampling methodology and purchases a majority of the index stocks to replicate the Standard and
Poor’s 500. The product was funded during the third quarter of 1988.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Alliance S&P Index’s portfolio posted a 0.28% return for the quarter placing it in the 57 percentile of the CAI Large Cap
Core Style group for the quarter and in the 57 percentile for the last year.

Alliance S&P Index’s portfolio underperformed the S&P 500 Index by 0.00% for the quarter and outperformed the S&P
500 Index for the year by 0.01%.

Performance vs CAI Large Cap Core Style (Gross)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 10 Years Last 26-1/2
Year Years

(57)(57)

(57)(57)

(84)(83) (74)(73)

(73)(74)

(82)(82)

10th Percentile 1.50 11.38 20.15 18.96 9.59 11.92
25th Percentile 0.76 9.64 19.29 18.47 8.87 11.84

Median 0.42 8.00 18.21 17.89 8.39 11.46
75th Percentile (0.21) 6.51 17.86 17.15 7.88 10.49
90th Percentile (0.62) 5.39 16.93 15.92 7.73 9.98

Alliance S&P Index 0.28 7.43 17.25 17.26 7.94 10.24

S&P 500 Index 0.28 7.42 17.31 17.34 7.89 10.24

Relative Return vs S&P 500 Index

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(0.14%)

(0.12%)

(0.10%)

(0.08%)

(0.06%)

(0.04%)

(0.02%)

0.00%

0.02%

0.04%

0.06%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Alliance S&P Index

CAI Large Cap Core Style (Gross)
Annualized Five Year Risk vs Return

10 11 12 13 14 15 16
14%

15%

16%

17%

18%

19%

20%

21%

Alliance S&P Index

S&P 500 Index

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 44
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Alliance S&P Index
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Large Cap Core Style (Gross)

(50%)
(40%)
(30%)
(20%)
(10%)

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%

12/14- 6/15 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

6868

5150

7776

4948

3736

3643

5050

6365

5960
5151

10th Percentile 4.32 16.01 37.61 18.81 6.19 18.65 34.98 (31.85) 11.45 18.03
25th Percentile 2.66 15.42 36.03 17.06 4.37 16.40 32.58 (34.26) 8.46 17.16

Median 1.82 13.66 34.34 15.89 1.46 14.40 26.51 (36.36) 6.42 15.86
75th Percentile 0.83 12.78 32.61 14.42 (1.56) 13.55 22.96 (37.90) 3.87 14.39
90th Percentile 0.19 11.14 31.15 11.41 (3.63) 10.96 21.05 (40.00) 1.70 12.41

Alliance
S&P Index 1.24 13.65 32.31 15.95 2.03 15.41 26.26 (36.73) 5.63 15.82

S&P 500 Index 1.23 13.69 32.39 16.00 2.11 15.06 26.47 (37.00) 5.49 15.79

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs S&P 500 Index

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Alliance S&P Index CAI Large Cap Core Style

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs S&P 500 Index
Rankings Against CAI Large Cap Core Style (Gross)
Five Years Ended June 30, 2015

(10)

(5)

0

5

10

15

20

25

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

(56)

(56)

10th Percentile 1.32 18.90
25th Percentile 0.76 18.11

Median 0.31 17.59
75th Percentile (0.55) 16.60
90th Percentile (3.15) 14.10

Alliance
S&P Index (0.01) 17.25

(1.5)

(1.0)

(0.5)

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

(76)

(54)

(100)

10th Percentile 0.67 1.46 0.84
25th Percentile 0.42 1.40 0.52

Median 0.16 1.37 0.20
75th Percentile (0.21) 1.27 (0.06)
90th Percentile (1.14) 1.10 (0.38)

Alliance S&P Index (0.22) 1.36 (0.95)

 45
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



PIMCO StocksPLUS
Period Ended June 30, 2015

Investment Philosophy
PIMCO’s StocksPLUS investment philosophy is based on the principal that stock index futures and swaps, when used as a
non-leveraged vehicle for obtaining long-term equity exposure, offer an attractive means for enhancing equity market
returns. The strategy seeks a longer time horizon of their investors relative to that of typical money market investors. This
long time horizon allows PIMCO to use their fixed income and associated risk management skill set to seek out attractive
yields relative to money market financing rates on a portion of the high quality fixed-income securities they use to back the
futures contracts. Since they only require sufficient liquidity to meet a worst case margin outflow caused by a stock market
decline, a portion of their fixed-income portfolio can be invested in somewhat less liquid, higher yielding securities. In
addition, they generally take advantage of the typical upward slope of the short end of the yield curve by extending their
duration to six months in most market environments and sometimes up to one year. PIMCO also feels that it is appropriate
in most market environments to capture both the credit yield premium provided by holding a portion of the fixed-income
portfolio in low duration corporate securities and the volatility yield premium provided by holding high quality mortgage
securities. The product was funded during the first quarter of 2006.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
PIMCO StocksPLUS’s portfolio posted a (0.00)% return for the quarter placing it in the 73 percentile of the CAI Large
Capitalization Style group for the quarter and in the 53 percentile for the last year.

PIMCO StocksPLUS’s portfolio underperformed the S&P 500 Index by 0.28% for the quarter and outperformed the S&P
500 Index for the year by 0.14%.

Performance vs CAI Large Capitalization Style (Gross)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

Last Quarter Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 9-1/4 Years

(73)(66)

(53)(54)

(28)
(76)

(12)
(61)

(10)
(64)

10th Percentile 1.95 13.38 20.81 19.85 9.60
25th Percentile 1.19 11.47 19.93 18.79 8.75

Median 0.52 7.90 18.39 17.76 7.88
75th Percentile (0.05) 5.71 17.36 16.64 6.99
90th Percentile (0.61) 4.03 16.00 15.74 6.01

PIMCO StocksPLUS (0.00) 7.57 19.56 19.74 9.60

S&P 500 Index 0.28 7.42 17.31 17.34 7.42

Relative Return vs S&P 500 Index

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(4%)

(3%)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

PIMCO StocksPLUS

CAI Large Capitalization Style (Gross)
Annualized Five Year Risk vs Return

10 12 14 16 18 20
10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

20%

22%

24%

PIMCO StocksPLUS

S&P 500 Index

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 46
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



PIMCO StocksPLUS
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Large Capitalization Style (Gross)

(60%)

(40%)

(20%)

0%

20%

40%

60%

12/14- 6/15 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

(62)(68)

(17)(31)

(52)(76)
(1)

(55)

(43)(30)

(6)
(48)

(8)

(53)

(80)(52)

(50)(54)

10th Percentile 6.52 15.58 39.88 20.10 5.06 19.66 40.53 (33.01) 19.67
25th Percentile 4.46 14.09 37.01 17.78 2.56 17.19 34.14 (34.87) 12.04

Median 1.94 12.73 34.63 16.19 0.34 14.91 26.85 (36.77) 6.17
75th Percentile 0.83 11.27 32.45 14.26 (2.70) 13.23 21.94 (39.91) 1.96
90th Percentile (0.07) 9.22 30.89 12.63 (4.54) 11.84 18.92 (43.92) (2.70)

PIMCO StocksPLUS 1.51 14.97 34.59 22.68 1.07 20.60 43.04 (41.18) 6.19

S&P 500 Index 1.23 13.69 32.39 16.00 2.11 15.06 26.47 (37.00) 5.49

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs S&P 500 Index

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(6%)

(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

PIMCO StocksPLUS CAI Large Cap Style

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs S&P 500 Index
Rankings Against CAI Large Capitalization Style (Gross)
Five Years Ended June 30, 2015

(10)

(5)

0

5

10

15

20

25

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

(39)

(38)

10th Percentile 1.52 18.87
25th Percentile 0.68 17.98

Median (0.46) 16.64
75th Percentile (1.74) 15.43
90th Percentile (3.01) 14.20

PIMCO
StocksPLUS (0.07) 17.19

(1.5)

(1.0)

(0.5)

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

(40)

(30)

(4)

10th Percentile 0.43 1.42 0.55
25th Percentile 0.26 1.38 0.35

Median (0.18) 1.27 0.10
75th Percentile (0.51) 1.18 (0.16)
90th Percentile (0.82) 1.08 (0.44)

PIMCO StocksPLUS (0.04) 1.34 0.84

 47
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



BlackRock Russell 1000 Value
Period Ended June 30, 2015

Investment Philosophy
The objective of the Russell 1000 Value Index Fund is to track the performance of its benchmark, the Russell 1000 Value
Index.  They seek to deliver a high quality and cost-effective index-based solution to institutional investors. The product
was funded during the second quarter of 2001.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
BlackRock Russell 1000 Value’s portfolio posted a 0.18% return for the quarter placing it in the 71 percentile of the CAI
Large Cap Value Style group for the quarter and in the 68 percentile for the last year.

BlackRock Russell 1000 Value’s portfolio outperformed the Russell 1000 Value Index by 0.07% for the quarter and
outperformed the Russell 1000 Value Index for the year by 0.21%.

Performance vs CAI Large Cap Value Style (Gross)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 10 Years Last 14 Years
Year

(71)(72)

(68)(73)

(63)(68)
(63)(67)

(66)(73) (70)(72)

10th Percentile 1.45 6.97 20.74 18.74 9.39 8.52
25th Percentile 1.17 6.45 19.89 17.93 8.51 8.10

Median 0.52 5.23 18.26 17.08 7.69 7.37
75th Percentile (0.11) 4.03 16.93 16.13 6.98 6.60
90th Percentile (0.72) 1.96 15.48 14.95 6.06 5.77

BlackRock
Russell 1000 Value 0.18 4.34 17.46 16.61 7.20 6.75

Russell 1000
Value Index 0.11 4.13 17.34 16.50 7.05 6.64

Relative Return vs Russell 1000 Value Index

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(0.04%)

(0.02%)

0.00%

0.02%

0.04%

0.06%

0.08%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

BlackRock Russell 1000 Value

CAI Large Cap Value Style (Gross)
Annualized Five Year Risk vs Return

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18
11%

12%

13%

14%

15%

16%

17%

18%

19%

20%

21%

BlackRock Russell 1000 Value

Russell 1000 Value Index

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 48
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



BlackRock Russell 1000 Value
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Large Cap Value Style (Gross)

(60%)

(40%)

(20%)

0%

20%

40%

60%

12/14- 6/15 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

8183

3031

7171

3535

5353

2628 7075

5961

6061

1818

10th Percentile 1.99 15.03 40.19 21.13 4.62 18.13 34.50 (32.84) 6.97 23.59
25th Percentile 1.51 13.73 36.85 19.12 2.42 16.01 26.82 (34.74) 4.19 21.18

Median 0.86 12.54 34.59 16.78 0.61 14.27 22.37 (35.88) 1.12 19.15
75th Percentile (0.01) 11.36 32.38 15.08 (2.48) 12.55 19.65 (38.61) (1.81) 16.95
90th Percentile (1.26) 8.98 30.80 12.71 (5.19) 11.75 15.46 (44.92) (6.22) 14.63

BlackRock
Russell 1000 Value (0.50) 13.56 32.57 17.60 0.49 15.73 20.15 (36.74) (0.00) 22.28

Russell 1000
Value Index (0.61) 13.45 32.53 17.51 0.39 15.51 19.69 (36.85) (0.17) 22.25

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs Russell 1000 Value Index

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(1.5%)

(1.0%)

(0.5%)

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

BlackRock Russell 1000 Value CAI Large Cap Value Style

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs Russell 1000 Value Index
Rankings Against CAI Large Cap Value Style (Gross)
Five Years Ended June 30, 2015

(5)

0

5

10

15

20

25

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

(55)

(54)

10th Percentile 1.54 18.19
25th Percentile 1.11 17.58

Median 0.33 16.75
75th Percentile (0.77) 15.56
90th Percentile (1.91) 14.35

BlackRock
Russell 1000 Value 0.11 16.54

(1.0)

(0.5)

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

(1)

(52)

(1)

10th Percentile 0.85 1.33 0.71
25th Percentile 0.43 1.28 0.50

Median 0.21 1.23 0.23
75th Percentile (0.27) 1.14 (0.10)
90th Percentile (0.63) 1.04 (0.52)

BlackRock
Russell 1000 Value 2.26 1.23 1.79

 49
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



T. Rowe Price Large Cap Growth
Period Ended June 30, 2015

Investment Philosophy
The Large-Cap Growth Strategy is a fundamentally driven, active approach to large company growth investing.  The
investment philosophy is centered around the manager’s belief that long-term growth in earnings and cash flow drive
stockholder returns. The product was funded during the first quarter of 2012. Performance prior is that of the composite.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
T. Rowe Price Large Cap Growth’s portfolio posted a 0.94% return for the quarter placing it in the 39 percentile of the
CAI Large Cap Growth Style group for the quarter and in the 47 percentile for the last year.

T. Rowe Price Large Cap Growth’s portfolio outperformed the Russell 1000 Growth Index by 0.82% for the quarter and
outperformed the Russell 1000 Growth Index for the year by 1.79%.

Performance vs CAI Large Cap Growth Style (Gross)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 3-1/4 Last 5 Years Last 10 Years
Year Years

(39)
(73)

(47)

(71)

(7)

(65)
(10)

(52)

(10)

(49)

(14)
(57)

10th Percentile 2.34 16.23 21.06 17.25 20.58 10.81
25th Percentile 1.63 13.34 20.15 16.62 19.78 10.09

Median 0.70 11.86 18.87 15.14 18.54 9.37
75th Percentile (0.01) 10.05 17.29 14.11 17.24 8.49
90th Percentile (0.49) 8.10 16.34 13.19 16.30 7.83

T. Rowe Price
Large Cap Growth 0.94 12.35 21.55 17.26 20.60 10.47

Russell 1000
Growth Index 0.12 10.56 17.99 15.04 18.59 9.10

Relative Return vs Russell 1000 Growth Index

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

T. Rowe Price Large Cap Growth

CAI Large Cap Growth Style (Gross)
Annualized Five Year Risk vs Return

10 12 14 16 18 20
14%

15%

16%

17%

18%

19%

20%

21%

22%

23%

Russell 1000 Growth Index

T. Rowe Price Large Cap Growth

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 50
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



T. Rowe Price Large Cap Growth
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Large Cap Growth Style (Gross)

(60%)

(40%)

(20%)

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

12/14- 6/15 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

2267 8629

1
74

1259
5520

5053

4

38

6040

8070 4625

10th Percentile 8.39 15.27 41.28 19.23 4.31 23.44 47.80 (33.82) 23.57 10.47
25th Percentile 6.43 13.65 37.59 17.30 2.12 19.04 41.11 (36.57) 20.07 9.05

Median 4.57 11.83 35.60 16.14 (0.28) 16.77 34.39 (39.49) 16.01 6.70
75th Percentile 3.30 10.23 33.15 14.05 (3.30) 13.37 29.79 (42.96) 11.13 4.71
90th Percentile 2.33 8.44 30.57 12.87 (4.87) 12.24 25.86 (46.98) 7.46 2.00

T. Rowe Price
Large Cap Growth 6.63 9.27 45.54 18.63 (1.19) 16.79 54.25 (40.39) 9.42 6.88

Russell 1000
Growth Index 3.96 13.05 33.48 15.26 2.64 16.71 37.21 (38.44) 11.81 9.07

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs Russell 1000 Growth Index

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(6%)

(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

T. Rowe Price Large Cap Growth CAI Lrg Cap Growth Style

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs Russell 1000 Growth Index
Rankings Against CAI Large Cap Growth Style (Gross)
Five Years Ended June 30, 2015

(10)

(5)

0

5

10

15

20

25

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

(46)

(46)

10th Percentile 0.68 19.23
25th Percentile 0.29 18.80

Median (1.18) 17.30
75th Percentile (2.60) 15.91
90th Percentile (3.71) 14.75

T. Rowe Price
Large Cap Growth (0.76) 17.73

(2)

(1)

0

1

2

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

(41)

(43)

(17)

10th Percentile 0.23 1.43 0.54
25th Percentile 0.09 1.39 0.32

Median (0.35) 1.27 (0.01)
75th Percentile (1.04) 1.18 (0.39)
90th Percentile (1.37) 1.10 (0.83)

T. Rowe Price
Large Cap Growth (0.20) 1.31 0.40

 51
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Champlain Mid Cap
Period Ended June 30, 2015

Investment Philosophy
Champlain Investment Partners believes buying the shares of superior businesses with credible and sincere managements
at a discount to fair or intrinsic value gives investors several potential paths to wealth creation. First, the market may bid the
shares to a premium over fair value. Second, management may grow the fair value over time at a faster rate than market
appreciation. Third, the company may be bought by a larger company or private market investor. They are willing to sell
over-priced stocks and harvest gains, reducing valuation risk. The product was funded during the third quarter of 2010.
Performance prior is that of the composite.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Champlain Mid Cap’s portfolio posted a 2.77% return for the quarter placing it in the 4 percentile of the CAI Mid
Capitalization Style group for the quarter and in the 29 percentile for the last year.

Champlain Mid Cap’s portfolio outperformed the Russell MidCap Index by 4.31% for the quarter and outperformed the
Russell MidCap Index for the year by 3.63%.

Performance vs CAI Mid Capitalization Style (Gross)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 4-3/4 Last 5 Years Last 10 Years
Year Years

(4)

(77)

(29)

(59)

(41)(50)

(29)
(52)

(47)(56)

(8)

(74)

10th Percentile 1.99 13.99 21.96 18.58 20.69 11.63
25th Percentile 0.65 10.92 20.72 17.62 19.72 10.71

Median (0.47) 7.82 19.23 16.36 18.42 9.99
75th Percentile (1.49) 5.19 17.16 14.87 17.01 9.35
90th Percentile (1.86) 2.05 15.85 13.07 14.97 8.44

Champlain Mid Cap 2.77 10.27 19.58 17.38 18.62 11.92

Russell MidCap Index (1.54) 6.63 19.26 16.18 18.23 9.40

Relative Return vs Russell MidCap Index

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(6%)

(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Champlain Mid Cap

CAI Mid Capitalization Style (Gross)
Annualized Five Year Risk vs Return

8 10 12 14 16 18 20 22 24
8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

20%

22%

24%

Champlain Mid Cap

Russell MidCap Index

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 52
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Champlain Mid Cap
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Mid Capitalization Style (Gross)

(60%)

(40%)

(20%)

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

12/14- 6/15 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

2170
5523

2463

7641
1046

8051 85
39

2
56

29
66 6832

10th Percentile 9.06 14.77 43.76 21.34 3.90 30.19 50.98 (33.80) 23.76 18.29
25th Percentile 6.55 13.03 39.39 18.82 0.68 28.53 44.55 (36.42) 19.41 15.98

Median 4.73 9.88 35.84 16.26 (1.92) 25.49 36.99 (40.60) 10.13 13.40
75th Percentile 2.00 6.71 33.70 13.33 (5.57) 22.01 31.76 (44.60) 3.52 8.35
90th Percentile 0.26 4.29 31.61 9.94 (7.82) 20.32 26.52 (47.94) (0.99) 5.59

Champlain
Mid Cap 6.99 9.17 39.44 13.05 3.53 21.21 28.91 (25.71) 16.57 10.30

Russell
MidCap Index 2.35 13.22 34.76 17.28 (1.55) 25.48 40.48 (41.46) 5.60 15.26

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs Russell MidCap Index

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(6%)

(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Champlain Mid Cap CAI Mid Cap Style

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs Russell MidCap Index
Rankings Against CAI Mid Capitalization Style (Gross)
Five Years Ended June 30, 2015

(10)

(5)

0

5

10

15

20

25

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

(14)

(13)

10th Percentile 2.48 21.12
25th Percentile 1.21 19.48

Median (0.51) 17.55
75th Percentile (1.99) 15.98
90th Percentile (2.90) 14.81

Champlain
Mid Cap 2.03 20.66

(1.5)

(1.0)

(0.5)

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

(12)

(10)

(45)

10th Percentile 0.65 1.30 0.57
25th Percentile 0.30 1.22 0.28

Median (0.15) 1.11 0.04
75th Percentile (0.45) 1.01 (0.30)
90th Percentile (0.76) 0.91 (0.63)

Champlain Mid Cap 0.61 1.31 0.09

 53
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Pyramis Small Cap
Period Ended June 30, 2015

Investment Philosophy
Pyramis believes that pricing anomalies exist within the marketplace. The firm’s objective is to exploit these inefficiencies
and add value over the Russell 2000 Index using fundamental research to identify potential investment opportunities. The
Pyramis Small Cap Core strategy seeks to build a balanced portfolio where returns will be driven by stock selection and not
by systemic biases or exposures to market factors. The product was funded during the third quarter of 1998.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Pyramis Small Cap’s portfolio posted a 3.80% return for the quarter placing it in the 10 percentile of the CAI Small
Capitalization Style group for the quarter and in the 10 percentile for the last year.

Pyramis Small Cap’s portfolio outperformed the Russell 2000 Index by 3.38% for the quarter and outperformed the
Russell 2000 Index for the year by 8.59%.

Performance vs CAI Small Capitalization Style (Gross)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 10 Years Last 16-3/4
Year Years

(10)

(64)

(10)

(63)

(13)

(69)

(11)

(75)

(10)

(82)

(47)

(92)

10th Percentile 3.82 15.01 23.12 22.24 11.86 13.95
25th Percentile 2.30 11.65 21.41 20.30 11.02 12.74

Median 0.86 7.77 19.41 18.89 9.56 11.73
75th Percentile 0.05 4.51 16.90 17.06 8.69 10.44
90th Percentile (1.53) 0.75 15.23 15.35 7.24 9.15

Pyramis Small Cap 3.80 15.07 22.65 21.92 11.80 11.87

Russell 2000 Index 0.42 6.49 17.81 17.08 8.40 9.10

Relative Return vs Russell 2000 Index

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(3%)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Pyramis Small Cap

CAI Small Capitalization Style (Gross)
Annualized Five Year Risk vs Return

10 15 20 25 30
10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

20%

22%

24%

26%

28%

30%

Pyramis Small Cap

Russell 2000 Index

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 54
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Pyramis Small Cap
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Small Capitalization Style (Gross)

(60%)

(40%)

(20%)

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

12/14- 6/15 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

1360 5158

4369
5

51

5867

11
64

16

69

73
29

35
60

4926

10th Percentile 10.44 10.36 52.61 22.77 5.11 35.51 49.83 (29.60) 20.21 21.82
25th Percentile 8.04 8.18 46.90 19.49 1.82 31.51 44.51 (33.01) 10.32 18.62

Median 5.54 5.65 42.33 16.47 (1.75) 28.25 33.93 (37.46) 1.39 14.59
75th Percentile 3.46 2.28 37.61 13.28 (5.70) 24.96 25.06 (42.30) (5.47) 11.58
90th Percentile 1.79 (2.43) 34.67 10.51 (8.62) 22.04 17.68 (46.47) (11.41) 7.13

Pyramis
Small Cap 10.05 5.54 43.26 23.54 (2.91) 34.34 47.54 (42.02) 5.40 14.77

Russell
2000 Index 4.75 4.89 38.82 16.35 (4.18) 26.85 27.17 (33.79) (1.57) 18.37

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs Russell 2000 Index

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Pyramis Small Cap CAI Small Cap Style

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs Russell 2000 Index
Rankings Against CAI Small Capitalization Style (Gross)
Five Years Ended June 30, 2015

(5)

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

(19)

(25)

10th Percentile 4.65 22.89
25th Percentile 3.23 20.40

Median 1.73 19.02
75th Percentile (0.07) 16.89
90th Percentile (1.32) 15.25

Pyramis
Small Cap 3.33 20.46

(1)

0

1

2

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

(11) (19)
(4)

10th Percentile 1.26 1.23 1.16
25th Percentile 0.79 1.11 0.73

Median 0.42 1.03 0.33
75th Percentile (0.01) 0.92 (0.00)
90th Percentile (0.27) 0.82 (0.34)

Pyramis Small Cap 1.19 1.14 1.39

 55
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



In
te

rn
a

tio
n

a
l E

q
u

ity

International Equity



International Equity
Period Ended June 30, 2015

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
International Equity’s portfolio posted a 0.01% return for the quarter placing it in the 96 percentile of the Pub Pln-
International Equity group for the quarter and in the 94 percentile for the last year.

International Equity’s portfolio underperformed the MSCI ACWI x US (Net) by 0.51% for the quarter and
underperformed the MSCI ACWI x US (Net) for the year by 0.53%.

Performance vs Pub Pln- International Equity (Gross)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

Last Quarter Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 10 Years

(96)
(89)

(94)
(90)

(64)
(70)

(63)
(75)

(80)(78)

10th Percentile 1.64 (0.42) 13.37 11.12 7.78
25th Percentile 1.07 (2.27) 12.25 10.07 7.07

Median 0.82 (3.66) 10.94 9.17 6.40
75th Percentile 0.70 (4.32) 9.29 7.75 5.63
90th Percentile 0.35 (5.27) 5.90 6.17 4.10

International
Equity 0.01 (5.79) 10.21 8.43 5.47

MSCI ACWI
x US (Net) 0.53 (5.26) 9.44 7.76 5.54

Relative Return vs MSCI ACWI x US (Net)

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(4%)

(3%)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

International Equity

Pub Pln- International Equity (Gross)
Annualized Five Year Risk vs Return

12 14 16 18 20 22
0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

International Equity

MSCI ACWI x US (Net)

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 57
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



International Equity
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs Pub Pln- International Equity (Gross)

(80%)

(60%)

(40%)

(20%)

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

12/14- 6/15 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

8664
6972

4471 581

8757

5565

84
28

4068

5730
854

10th Percentile 6.80 0.40 23.18 21.11 (9.74) 15.98 53.61 (39.13) 20.58 30.20
25th Percentile 5.83 (1.54) 20.77 20.08 (11.79) 14.13 41.95 (41.56) 17.09 27.93

Median 4.80 (3.10) 18.93 18.82 (13.16) 12.20 36.72 (43.98) 14.91 26.74
75th Percentile 3.83 (4.21) 13.63 17.31 (14.45) 9.84 32.14 (46.08) 11.60 25.54
90th Percentile 2.36 (5.09) 4.28 16.13 (17.32) 8.59 28.17 (49.82) 9.69 23.55

International
Equity 2.77 (3.78) 19.30 22.05 (16.34) 12.02 30.89 (43.07) 14.37 30.86

MSCI ACWI
x US (Net) 4.03 (3.87) 15.29 16.83 (13.71) 11.15 41.45 (45.53) 16.65 26.65

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs MSCI ACWI x US (Net)

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(6%)

(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

International Equity Pub Pln- Intl Equity

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs MSCI ACWI x US (Net)
Rankings Against Pub Pln- International Equity (Gross)
Five Years Ended June 30, 2015

(4)

(2)

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

(66)

(70)

10th Percentile 3.33 11.47
25th Percentile 2.46 10.30

Median 1.42 9.14
75th Percentile 0.27 7.91
90th Percentile (1.51) 6.00

International
Equity 0.50 8.09

(1.0)

(0.5)

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

(69)
(67)

(67)

10th Percentile 1.79 0.73 1.65
25th Percentile 1.30 0.66 1.09

Median 0.69 0.58 0.62
75th Percentile 0.09 0.50 (0.00)
90th Percentile (0.51) 0.37 (0.51)

International Equity 0.17 0.51 0.22

 58
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Causeway International Value Equity
Period Ended June 30, 2015

Investment Philosophy
Causeway Capital Management’s International Value Equity team focuses on active investment management with a
value-driven, bottom-up approach to stock selection. The team believes in managing equity portfolios using a disciplined
approach with the goal of producing favorable long-term returns coupled with reduced downside volatility. Although the firm
possesses dedicated emerging market capabilities which are quantitative in nature, research for this strategy is
fundamentally focused. The product was funded during the first quarter of 2005.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Causeway International Value Equity’s portfolio posted a 1.05% return for the quarter placing it in the 62 percentile of
the CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style group for the quarter and in the 58 percentile for the last year.

Causeway International Value Equity’s portfolio outperformed the MSCI EAFE Index by 0.44% for the quarter and
outperformed the MSCI EAFE Index for the year by 1.85%.

Performance vs CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

Last Quarter Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 10-1/4 Years

(62)(77)

(58)

(73)

(29)

(66) (12)

(70)

(33)

(90)

10th Percentile 3.05 1.03 15.31 12.41 8.37
25th Percentile 2.39 (0.36) 14.17 11.39 7.55

Median 1.55 (1.66) 12.62 10.47 6.20
75th Percentile 0.67 (4.32) 11.44 9.12 5.54
90th Percentile (0.12) (6.53) 9.62 7.87 4.92

Causeway International
Value Equity 1.05 (2.38) 13.83 12.28 6.73

MSCI EAFE Index 0.62 (4.22) 11.97 9.54 4.89

Relative Return vs MSCI EAFE Index

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(4%)

(3%)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Causeway International Value Equity

CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)
Annualized Five Year Risk vs Return

8 10 12 14 16 18 20 22 24
4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

Causeway International Value Equity

MSCI EAFE Index

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 59
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Causeway International Value Equity
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)

(80%)

(60%)

(40%)

(20%)

0%

20%

40%

60%

12/14- 6/15 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

7975
5660

1552 9
69

3357

2878

3155

4854

7261

3648

10th Percentile 9.20 (0.67) 28.72 23.54 (6.48) 16.72 46.43 (36.19) 22.09 31.47
25th Percentile 7.95 (2.59) 26.08 21.12 (9.56) 14.53 39.21 (39.68) 17.70 29.21

Median 6.63 (4.12) 23.32 18.99 (11.40) 10.84 32.89 (43.02) 13.15 26.02
75th Percentile 5.49 (5.97) 19.49 16.61 (14.02) 8.27 27.71 (46.67) 9.54 23.87
90th Percentile 3.61 (7.74) 14.73 14.45 (16.87) 5.97 24.60 (49.33) 6.21 20.66

Causeway International
Value Equity 5.08 (4.70) 27.47 24.10 (10.24) 14.06 37.35 (42.83) 9.82 28.40

MSCI
EAFE Index 5.52 (4.90) 22.78 17.32 (12.14) 7.75 31.78 (43.38) 11.17 26.34

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs MSCI EAFE Index

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Causeway International Value Equity CAI Non-U.S. Eq. Style

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs MSCI EAFE Index
Rankings Against CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)
Five Years Ended June 30, 2015

(4)
(2)

0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14
16

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

(23)

(31)

10th Percentile 3.07 12.95
25th Percentile 2.02 11.64

Median 0.96 10.48
75th Percentile 0.14 9.51
90th Percentile (1.68) 7.62

Causeway International
Value Equity 2.11 11.44

(1.0)

(0.5)

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

(37)
(34) (23)

10th Percentile 1.11 0.83 1.00
25th Percentile 0.72 0.75 0.61

Median 0.31 0.67 0.24
75th Percentile 0.06 0.61 (0.09)
90th Percentile (0.45) 0.49 (0.38)

Causeway International
Value Equity 0.55 0.73 0.64

 60
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Aberdeen EAFE Plus
Period Ended June 30, 2015

Investment Philosophy
Aberdeen believes that given the inefficiency of markets, superior long-term returns are achieved by identifying high quality
stocks, buying them at reasonable/cheap prices, and ultimately investing in those securities for the long term. Absolute
return is held to be of the utmost importance. The strategy is benchmark aware, but not benchmark driven. This benchmark
stance is born from their belief that indices do not provide meaningful guidance to the prospects of a company or its
inherent worth.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Aberdeen EAFE Plus’s portfolio posted a (1.40)% return for
the quarter placing it in the 97 percentile of the CAI
Non-U.S. Equity Style group for the quarter and in the 98
percentile for the last year.

Aberdeen EAFE Plus’s portfolio underperformed the MSCI
ACWI x US (Net) by 1.92% for the quarter and
underperformed the MSCI ACWI x US (Net) for the year by
4.90%.

Quarterly Asset Growth

Beginning Market Value $41,935,592

Net New Investment $-85,585

Investment Gains/(Losses) $-585,558

Ending Market Value $41,264,449

Percent Cash: 0.0%

Performance vs CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

Last Quarter Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 10 Years

(97)
(78)

(98)

(85)

(99)

(91)
(86)(92) (24)

(79)

10th Percentile 3.05 1.03 15.31 12.41 8.51
25th Percentile 2.39 (0.36) 14.17 11.39 7.64

Median 1.55 (1.66) 12.62 10.47 6.45
75th Percentile 0.67 (4.32) 11.44 9.12 5.70
90th Percentile (0.12) (6.53) 9.62 7.87 5.13

Aberdeen
EAFE Plus (1.40) (10.16) 5.85 8.39 7.65

MSCI ACWI
x US (Net) 0.53 (5.26) 9.44 7.76 5.54

Portfolio Characteristics as
a Percentage of the MSCI ACWI x US (Net)

0% 50% 100% 150% 200%

Forecast Earnings Growth

6.1
10.5

9.7

Yield

3.4
2.4

2.8

Price/Book

1.8
1.8

1.7

Forecast Price/Earnings

16.3
15.2

14.3

Wght Median Market Cap

40.9
28.5
28.8

Aberdeen EAFE Plus CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style

MSCI ACWI x US (Net)

CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)
Annualized Three Year Risk vs Return

6 8 10 12 14 16
2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

20%

Aberdeen EAFE Plus

MSCI ACWI x US (Net)

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 61
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Aberdeen EAFE Plus
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)

(80%)

(60%)

(40%)

(20%)

0%

20%

40%

60%

12/14- 6/15 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

9986 2546
9888 8074

3
72

2048

1520

2570

3831
2845

10th Percentile 9.20 (0.67) 28.72 23.54 (6.48) 16.72 46.43 (36.19) 22.09 31.47
25th Percentile 7.95 (2.59) 26.08 21.12 (9.56) 14.53 39.21 (39.68) 17.70 29.21

Median 6.63 (4.12) 23.32 18.99 (11.40) 10.84 32.89 (43.02) 13.15 26.02
75th Percentile 5.49 (5.97) 19.49 16.61 (14.02) 8.27 27.71 (46.67) 9.54 23.87
90th Percentile 3.61 (7.74) 14.73 14.45 (16.87) 5.97 24.60 (49.33) 6.21 20.66

Aberdeen
EAFE Plus (0.29) (2.53) 9.79 15.94 (3.72) 15.02 43.55 (39.68) 15.54 29.00

MSCI ACWI
x US (Net) 4.03 (3.87) 15.29 16.83 (13.71) 11.15 41.45 (45.53) 16.65 26.65

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs MSCI ACWI x US (Net)

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Aberdeen EAFE Plus CAI Non-U.S. Eq. Style

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs MSCI ACWI x US (Net)
Rankings Against CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)
Five Years Ended June 30, 2015

0

5

10

15

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

(76)

(58)

10th Percentile 4.90 13.26
25th Percentile 3.84 11.90

Median 2.74 10.73
75th Percentile 1.94 9.68
90th Percentile 0.27 7.82

Aberdeen
EAFE Plus 1.88 10.23

0.0
0.2
0.4
0.6
0.8
1.0
1.2
1.4
1.6
1.8
2.0

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

(79)
(66)

(86)

10th Percentile 1.65 0.83 1.46
25th Percentile 1.31 0.75 1.13

Median 0.81 0.67 0.69
75th Percentile 0.55 0.61 0.32
90th Percentile 0.08 0.49 0.03

Aberdeen EAFE Plus 0.47 0.63 0.12

 62
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



F
ix

e
d

 In
c
o

m
e

Fixed Income



Fixed Income
Period Ended June 30, 2015

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Fixed Income’s portfolio posted a (1.70)% return for the quarter placing it in the 42 percentile of the Corp Pln- Domestic
Fixed group for the quarter and in the 87 percentile for the last year.

Fixed Income’s portfolio underperformed the Barclays Aggregate Index by 0.02% for the quarter and underperformed
the Barclays Aggregate Index for the year by 1.08%.

Performance vs Corp Pln- Domestic Fixed (Gross)

(10%)

(8%)

(6%)

(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

Last Quarter Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 10 Years

(42)(42)

(87)

(59)

(37)

(91)

(63)

(95)

(60)

(93)

10th Percentile (0.63) 3.97 4.65 7.94 7.80
25th Percentile (1.16) 2.94 3.78 7.10 6.85

Median (3.66) 2.05 3.05 5.36 5.78
75th Percentile (6.33) 1.33 2.35 4.20 5.04
90th Percentile (7.53) 0.55 1.86 3.58 4.58

Fixed Income (1.70) 0.78 3.38 4.61 5.54

Barclays
Aggregate Index (1.68) 1.86 1.83 3.35 4.44

Relative Return vs Barclays Aggregate Index

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(3%)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Fixed Income

Corp Pln- Domestic Fixed (Gross)
Annualized Five Year Risk vs Return

0 5 10 15 20 25 30
0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

Fixed Income

Barclays Aggregate Index

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 64
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Fixed Income
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs Corp Pln- Domestic Fixed (Gross)

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

12/14- 6/15 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

1844

7068

2344

34

95 7958 8591

28

84

68

26
2542 967

10th Percentile 0.90 19.94 0.28 12.52 22.24 12.37 19.95 12.07 9.08 5.95
25th Percentile 0.50 17.63 (0.93) 10.70 18.44 11.29 16.22 5.31 7.79 5.33

Median (1.20) 9.82 (2.64) 8.95 9.28 9.65 11.72 1.41 6.67 4.70
75th Percentile (3.31) 5.42 (6.90) 6.77 6.35 7.98 7.67 (3.84) 5.68 4.22
90th Percentile (4.46) 3.92 (8.67) 5.16 4.92 6.57 3.87 (8.39) 4.27 3.44

Fixed Income 0.68 5.77 (0.81) 10.15 6.05 7.04 15.41 (2.32) 7.77 6.09

Barclays
Aggregate Index (0.10) 5.97 (2.02) 4.21 7.84 6.54 5.93 5.24 6.97 4.33

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs Barclays Aggregate Index

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Fixed Income Corp Pln- Dom Fixed

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs Barclays Aggregate Index
Rankings Against Corp Pln- Domestic Fixed (Gross)
Five Years Ended June 30, 2015

(6)

(4)

(2)

0

2

4

6

8

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

(22)

(26)

10th Percentile 2.12 6.25
25th Percentile 1.35 4.93

Median 0.41 3.52
75th Percentile (1.88) 2.51
90th Percentile (2.94) 2.19

Fixed Income 1.50 4.91

(1.5)

(1.0)

(0.5)

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

(33)

(28)

(40)

10th Percentile 1.48 1.65 1.07
25th Percentile 1.00 1.36 0.78

Median 0.23 1.08 0.56
75th Percentile (0.63) 0.77 0.38
90th Percentile (0.90) 0.67 0.17

Fixed Income 0.77 1.33 0.63

 65
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



BlackRock U.S. Debt Fund
Period Ended June 30, 2015

Investment Philosophy
The product was funded during the fourth quarter of 2011. Performance prior is that of the composite.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
BlackRock U.S. Debt Fund’s portfolio posted a (1.66)% return for the quarter placing it in the 70 percentile of the CAI
Core Bond Fixed-Inc Style group for the quarter and in the 60 percentile for the last year.

BlackRock U.S. Debt Fund’s portfolio outperformed the Barclays Aggregate Index by 0.02% for the quarter and
outperformed the Barclays Aggregate Index for the year by 0.14%.

Performance vs CAI Core Bond Fixed-Inc Style (Gross)

(3%)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

Last Quarter Last Last 3-1/2 Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 10 Years
Year Years

(70)(74)

(60)(74)

(93)(94)
(86)(93)

(91)(94)

(88)(89)

10th Percentile (1.26) 2.65 3.96 3.27 4.87 5.68
25th Percentile (1.48) 2.35 3.44 2.81 4.42 5.35

Median (1.56) 2.12 3.04 2.46 3.97 4.94
75th Percentile (1.70) 1.85 2.67 2.08 3.70 4.79
90th Percentile (1.78) 1.45 2.45 1.95 3.54 4.34

BlackRock
U.S. Debt Fund (1.66) 1.99 2.40 1.98 3.49 4.56

Barclays
Aggregate Index (1.68) 1.86 2.25 1.83 3.35 4.44

Relative Return vs Barclays Aggregate Index

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(0.10%)

0.00%

0.10%

0.20%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

BlackRock U.S. Debt Fund

CAI Core Bond Fixed-Inc Style (Gross)
Annualized Five Year Risk vs Return

2.2 2.4 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.2 3.4 3.6 3.8
2.5%

3.0%

3.5%

4.0%

4.5%

5.0%

5.5%

6.0%

BlackRock U.S. Debt Fund

Barclays Aggregate Index

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 66
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



BlackRock U.S. Debt Fund
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Core Bond Fixed-Inc Style (Gross)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

12/14- 6/15 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

8385

4770

7783

9697
5261 8590 9696 2222

2022
7680

10th Percentile 0.57 7.21 (0.66) 8.11 8.78 9.35 17.43 6.50 7.39 5.38
25th Percentile 0.37 6.66 (1.12) 7.37 8.25 8.39 13.23 4.78 6.93 4.90

Median 0.14 6.22 (1.47) 6.15 7.89 7.49 10.67 0.96 6.46 4.58
75th Percentile (0.01) 5.88 (1.90) 5.40 7.24 6.86 8.65 (2.45) 5.61 4.42
90th Percentile (0.17) 5.35 (2.33) 4.74 6.43 6.57 7.10 (6.08) 4.30 4.22

BlackRock
U.S. Debt Fund (0.06) 6.24 (1.92) 4.34 7.89 6.75 6.02 5.42 7.07 4.41

Barclays
Aggregate Index (0.10) 5.97 (2.02) 4.21 7.84 6.54 5.93 5.24 6.97 4.33

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs Barclays Aggregate Index

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

BlackRock U.S. Debt Fund CAI Core Bond Style

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs Barclays Aggregate Index
Rankings Against CAI Core Bond Fixed-Inc Style (Gross)
Five Years Ended June 30, 2015

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

(86)

(86)

10th Percentile 1.75 5.31
25th Percentile 1.38 4.80

Median 0.80 4.14
75th Percentile 0.47 3.76
90th Percentile 0.03 3.30

BlackRock
U.S. Debt Fund 0.14 3.41

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

(18)

(85)

(7)

10th Percentile 1.80 1.59 1.59
25th Percentile 1.59 1.48 1.38

Median 1.12 1.34 0.86
75th Percentile 0.89 1.21 0.60
90th Percentile 0.05 1.06 0.19

BlackRock
U.S. Debt Fund 1.69 1.12 1.70

 67
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



PIMCO Fixed Income
Period Ended June 30, 2015

Investment Philosophy
PIMCO emphasizes adding value by rotating through the major sectors of the domestic and international bond markets.
They also seek to enhance returns through duration management. The product was funded during the third quarter of
2002. The custom index is currently composed of 25% Barclays Mortgage, 25% Barclays Credit, 25% Barclays High Yield,
and 25% JP Morgan EMBI Global. Prior to 2/1/2012, the custom index was composed of 70% Barclays Mortgage, 15%
Barclays Credit, and 15% Barclays High Yield.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
PIMCO Fixed Income’s portfolio posted a (1.73)% return for the quarter placing it in the 91 percentile of the CAI Core
Bond Plus Style group for the quarter and in the 98 percentile for the last year.

PIMCO Fixed Income’s portfolio underperformed the Custom Index by 0.51% for the quarter and underperformed the
Custom Index for the year by 0.70%.

Performance vs CAI Core Bond Plus Style (Gross)

(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 10 Years Last 12-3/4
Year Years

B(84)
A(91)

(22)

B(53)

A(98)
(92)

A(11)

B(99)

(25)

A(17)

B(100)

(49)

A(24)

B(93)

(39)

A(18)

B(95)

(52)

10th Percentile (1.01) 2.37 4.28 5.92 6.95 7.15
25th Percentile (1.25) 2.22 3.81 5.42 6.13 6.25

Median (1.51) 1.92 3.23 4.97 5.42 5.91
75th Percentile (1.59) 1.55 2.83 4.48 5.09 5.40
90th Percentile (1.71) 0.99 2.55 4.23 4.68 4.97

PIMCO Fixed Income A (1.73) 0.05 4.23 5.56 6.23 6.66
Barclays

Aggregate Index B (1.68) 1.86 1.83 3.35 4.44 4.47

Custom Index (1.22) 0.75 3.83 4.99 5.68 5.84

Relative Return vs Custom Index

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(1.0%)

(0.5%)

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

PIMCO Fixed Income

CAI Core Bond Plus Style (Gross)
Annualized Five Year Risk vs Return

2.5 3.0 3.5 4.0 4.5
3.0%

3.5%

4.0%

4.5%

5.0%

5.5%

6.0%

6.5%

7.0%

7.5%

Barclays Aggregate Index

Custom Index

PIMCO Fixed Income

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 68
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



PIMCO Fixed Income
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Core Bond Plus Style (Gross)

(20%)

(10%)

0%

10%

20%

30%

12/14- 6/15 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

A(4)
B(95)

14

B(60)
A(85)

42
A(23)
B(96)78

A(1)

B(100)
17 B(39)

A(80)78
A(72)
B(100)93

A(34)

B(99)

64

B(5)

A(63)

27

A(8)
B(23)48 A(2)

B(92)
18

10th Percentile 0.80 7.35 1.11 11.56 8.23 11.79 24.21 4.01 7.84 6.28
25th Percentile 0.65 6.84 (0.25) 9.75 8.08 10.72 20.69 1.96 6.91 5.75

Median 0.37 6.16 (0.71) 8.29 7.63 9.13 17.42 (5.17) 5.87 5.15
75th Percentile 0.12 5.68 (1.10) 7.02 6.60 7.97 12.53 (9.33) 5.14 4.69
90th Percentile (0.08) 5.35 (1.67) 6.13 5.59 7.58 11.04 (13.26) 3.79 4.39

PIMCO
Fixed Income A 1.14 5.48 (0.12) 13.40 6.22 8.14 19.85 (5.85) 8.00 7.06

Barclays
Aggregate Index B (0.10) 5.97 (2.02) 4.21 7.84 6.54 5.93 5.24 6.97 4.33

Custom Index 0.71 6.31 (1.28) 10.62 6.42 7.28 14.24 1.00 5.89 6.06

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs Custom Index

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(12%)

(10%)

(8%)

(6%)

(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

PIMCO Fixed Income Barclays Aggregate Index CAI FI Core Plus Style

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs Custom Index
Rankings Against CAI Core Bond Plus Style (Gross)
Five Years Ended June 30, 2015

(1)
0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

B(95)
A(97)

B(95)
A(96)

10th Percentile 1.70 7.30
25th Percentile 1.24 6.51

Median 1.00 6.12
75th Percentile 0.59 5.67
90th Percentile 0.20 5.14

PIMCO
Fixed Income A (0.09) 4.82

Barclays
Aggregate Index B 0.12 5.05

(1.0)

(0.5)

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

B(96)
A(97)

A(83)
B(100)

A(10)

B(99)

10th Percentile 1.01 1.80 0.46
25th Percentile 0.86 1.71 0.25

Median 0.62 1.60 (0.01)
75th Percentile 0.37 1.48 (0.26)
90th Percentile 0.15 1.34 (0.46)

PIMCO Fixed Income A (0.08) 1.39 0.47
Barclays

Aggregate Index B 0.05 1.07 (0.64)

 69
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



R
e

a
l E

s
ta

te

Real Estate



Real Estate
Period Ended June 30, 2015

Investment Philosophy
The Total Real Estate Funds Database consists of both open and closed-end commingled funds as well as separate
accounts managed by real estate firms.  The returns represent the overall performance of institutional capital invested in
real estate properties.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Real Estate’s portfolio posted a 4.14% return for the quarter placing it in the 17 percentile of the Total Real Estate DB
group for the quarter and in the 45 percentile for the last year.

Real Estate’s portfolio outperformed the NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gr by 0.32% for the quarter and underperformed the
NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gr for the year by 0.52%.

Performance vs Total Real Estate DB (Net)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

Last Quarter Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 10 Years

(17)(20)

(45)(41) (32)
(45)

(36)(37)

(29)(26)

10th Percentile 4.43 22.54 20.76 19.48 11.02
25th Percentile 3.69 17.21 16.05 16.67 7.03

Median 3.02 13.63 12.73 13.65 6.00
75th Percentile 2.03 9.96 10.57 11.31 4.71
90th Percentile 1.12 7.70 7.72 8.73 3.75

Real Estate 4.14 13.92 14.39 14.58 6.52

NFI-ODCE
Value Weight Gr 3.82 14.43 13.11 14.41 6.85

Relative Return vs NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gr

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(2.5%)

(2.0%)

(1.5%)

(1.0%)

(0.5%)

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Real Estate

Total Real Estate DB (Net)
Annualized Five Year Risk vs Return

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16
0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gr

Real Estate

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 71
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Real Estate
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs Total Real Estate DB (Net)

(80%)

(60%)

(40%)

(20%)

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

12/14- 6/15 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

1927 6351 3040 3746 3634 5336

6263
4536

3737 4953

10th Percentile 10.21 29.31 26.68 24.08 28.44 35.72 1.32 0.57 37.31 48.42
25th Percentile 7.43 17.70 17.95 16.15 18.81 20.46 (11.33) (6.12) 18.93 30.12

Median 5.65 12.57 11.96 10.24 12.72 12.95 (22.94) (14.69) 13.19 17.39
75th Percentile 3.46 8.99 8.47 4.60 6.28 2.45 (37.34) (27.85) 7.15 8.92
90th Percentile 1.42 0.00 (1.35) (2.87) (4.52) (6.49) (55.68) (45.01) (3.83) (0.24)

Real Estate 8.17 10.78 16.82 12.36 15.36 12.05 (29.69) (12.89) 15.97 17.53

NFI-ODCE Value
Weight Gross 7.34 12.50 13.94 10.94 15.99 16.36 (29.76) (10.01) 15.97 16.32

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gross

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(7%)

(6%)

(5%)

(4%)

(3%)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Real Estate Total Real Estate DB

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gross
Rankings Against Total Real Estate DB (Net)
Five Years Ended June 30, 2015

(30)

(20)

(10)

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

(48)

(19)

10th Percentile 44.60 32.33
25th Percentile 13.47 17.56

Median 3.30 10.35
75th Percentile (3.51) (6.19)
90th Percentile (14.96) (13.56)

Real Estate 4.71 21.59

(4)

(2)

0

2

4

6

8

10

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

(16)

(2)

(34)

10th Percentile 6.29 6.09 1.23
25th Percentile 2.71 4.79 0.31

Median 0.80 2.54 (0.20)
75th Percentile (1.19) 1.38 (0.65)
90th Percentile (2.55) 0.94 (1.75)

Real Estate 3.56 8.45 0.11

 72
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



JP Morgan Strategic Property Fund
Period Ended June 30, 2015

Investment Philosophy
Strategic Property Fund is an actively managed diversified, core, open-end commingled pension trust fund. It seeks an
income-driven rate of return of 100 basis points over the NFI-ODCE Equal Weight Net Index over a full market cycle (three
to five year horizon) through asset, geographic and sector selection and active asset management. The Fund invests in
high quality stabilized assets with dominant competitive characteristics in markets with attractive demographics throughout
the United States. The product was funded in the fourth quarter of 2008.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
JP Morgan Strategic Property Fund’s portfolio posted a
3.70% return for the quarter placing it in the 27 percentile of
the CAI Open-End Real Estate Funds group for the quarter
and in the 49 percentile for the last year.

JP Morgan Strategic Property Fund’s portfolio
underperformed the NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gross by
0.12% for the quarter and underperformed the NFI-ODCE
Value Weight Gross for the year by 1.06%.

Quarterly Asset Growth

Beginning Market Value $40,861,805

Net New Investment $-98,504

Investment Gains/(Losses) $1,509,330

Ending Market Value $42,272,631

Percent Cash: 0.0%

Performance vs CAI Open-End Real Estate Funds (Net)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

20%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 10 Years Last 14-1/2
Year Years

(27)(26)

(49)
(33)

(1)
(3)

(14)(15)

(8)
(19)

(2)
(12)

10th Percentile 4.81 16.78 12.79 14.80 7.49 7.74
25th Percentile 3.88 15.70 12.48 13.96 6.58 7.57

Median 3.20 13.33 11.07 13.39 6.02 6.83
75th Percentile 2.69 11.91 9.64 11.29 5.47 6.18
90th Percentile 2.26 9.33 8.64 9.26 4.53 6.08

JP Morgan Strategic
Property Fund 3.70 13.37 13.84 14.47 7.69 8.62

NFI-ODCE Value
Weight Gross 3.82 14.43 13.11 14.41 6.85 7.71

Relative Returns vs
NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gross

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

JP Morgan Strategic Property Fund

CAI Open-End Real Estate Funds (Net)
Annualized Five Year Risk vs Return

1.0 1.5 2.0 2.5 3.0 3.5 4.0
8%

9%

10%

11%

12%

13%

14%

15%

16%

NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gross

JP Morgan Strategic Property Fund

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 73
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



JP Morgan Strategic Property Fund
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Open-End Real Estate Funds (Net)

(60%)
(50%)
(40%)
(30%)
(20%)
(10%)

0%
10%
20%
30%

12/14- 6/15 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

1628 7142 1128 1948
3333 6824

3656

3647

1526 2627

10th Percentile 8.11 16.37 16.41 12.79 19.15 18.90 (20.77) (2.54) 17.80 21.01
25th Percentile 7.49 13.36 14.28 11.67 16.29 15.94 (25.92) (5.53) 16.15 16.80

Median 6.79 11.99 13.06 10.80 15.33 15.09 (28.89) (10.25) 14.59 15.41
75th Percentile 5.43 10.52 10.02 8.95 13.30 13.02 (33.22) (14.99) 12.84 12.65
90th Percentile 4.52 9.09 8.65 5.49 11.79 9.80 (43.90) (25.83) 7.34 9.50

JP Morgan Strategic
Property Fund 7.81 11.14 15.90 11.84 15.99 14.16 (26.53) (8.09) 16.67 16.59

NFI-ODCE Value
Weight Gross 7.34 12.50 13.94 10.94 15.99 16.36 (29.76) (10.01) 15.97 16.32

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gross

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(4%)

(3%)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

JP Morgan Strategic Property Fund Open-End Real Estate

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gross
Rankings Against CAI Open-End Real Estate Funds (Net)
Five Years Ended June 30, 2015

(15)

(10)

(5)

0

5

10

15

20

25

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

(9)

(14)

10th Percentile 3.91 21.08
25th Percentile 2.01 17.04

Median (0.99) 12.92
75th Percentile (4.95) 10.13
90th Percentile (8.14) 8.65

JP Morgan Strategic
Property Fund 4.02 20.18

(8)
(6)
(4)
(2)

0
2
4
6
8

10
12

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

(3)

(7)

(15)

10th Percentile 2.95 8.37 0.24
25th Percentile 1.47 6.82 (0.19)

Median (0.72) 6.01 (0.68)
75th Percentile (2.84) 4.55 (1.57)
90th Percentile (5.16) 2.55 (3.47)

JP Morgan Strategic
Property Fund 3.76 9.05 0.04

 74
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



JP Morgan Income and Growth Fund
Period Ended June 30, 2015

Investment Philosophy
The product was funded in the fourth quarter of 2005.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
JP Morgan Income and Growth Fund’s portfolio posted a 5.28% return for the quarter placing it in the 16 percentile of
the Real Estate Value Added Open End Funds group for the quarter and in the 30 percentile for the last year.

JP Morgan Income and Growth Fund’s portfolio outperformed the NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gross by 1.46% for the
quarter and outperformed the NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gross for the year by 1.76%.

Performance vs Real Estate Value Added Open End Funds (Net)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

Last Quarter Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 9-1/2 Years

(16)

(39)

(30)

(42)

(5)

(63)

(4)

(69)

(47)

(5)

10th Percentile 5.96 23.62 16.87 19.08 4.95
25th Percentile 4.22 17.35 16.07 18.21 4.76

Median 3.48 14.08 13.82 16.84 4.43
75th Percentile 2.91 11.99 11.38 13.15 3.82
90th Percentile 2.26 7.92 9.20 9.23 3.45

JP Morgan Income
and Growth Fund 5.28 16.19 17.64 20.79 4.46

NFI-ODCE Value
Weight Gross 3.82 14.43 13.11 14.41 6.11

Relative Returns vs
NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gross

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(3%)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

JP Morgan Income and Growth Fund

Real Estate Value Added Open End Funds (Net)
Annualized Five Year Risk vs Return

1 2 3 4 5 6
8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

20%

22%

JP Morgan Income and Growth Fund

NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gross

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 75
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



JPM Income and Growth Fund
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs Real Estate Value Added Open End Funds (Net)

(80%)

(60%)

(40%)

(20%)

0%

20%

40%

60%

12/14- 6/15 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

3358 7660
3

70 24
68

15
49 5255

36
1 77

18

4884 2464

10th Percentile 10.36 24.91 18.81 21.75 45.34 23.11 (41.24) (4.81) 26.17 27.58
25th Percentile 9.93 14.68 17.45 17.17 22.42 20.00 (42.72) (13.03) 25.97 20.55

Median 8.50 13.32 15.13 13.28 15.42 17.62 (45.40) (16.25) 17.80 17.92
75th Percentile 6.75 11.07 12.70 10.39 11.66 11.32 (61.06) (25.95) 16.47 13.67
90th Percentile 2.78 8.77 10.70 8.43 9.06 2.94 (66.35) (42.95) 15.61 7.95

JPM Income
and Growth Fund 9.16 10.85 21.23 17.74 28.52 17.11 (44.09) (27.07) 18.11 20.93

NFI-ODCE Value
Weight Gross 7.34 12.50 13.94 10.94 15.99 16.36 (29.76) (10.01) 15.97 16.32

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gross

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

JPM Income and Growth Fund RE Value Add Open End

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gross
Rankings Against Real Estate Value Added Open End Funds (Net)
Five Years Ended June 30, 2015

(15)

(10)

(5)

0

5

10

15

20

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

(73)

(52)

10th Percentile 1.42 15.62
25th Percentile (1.05) 13.72

Median (3.22) 12.01
75th Percentile (4.86) 9.89
90th Percentile (10.49) 7.84

JPM Income
and Growth Fund (4.09) 11.99

(6)

(4)

(2)

0

2

4

6

8

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

(34)

(69)

(29)

10th Percentile 0.48 6.18 1.78
25th Percentile (0.50) 5.92 1.51

Median (1.75) 5.19 0.91
75th Percentile (2.16) 3.90 (0.70)
90th Percentile (2.69) 1.99 (3.40)

JPM Income
and Growth Fund (1.08) 4.42 1.44

 76
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



In
fra

s
tru

c
tu

re

Infrastructure



Infrastructure
Period Ended June 30, 2015

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Infrastructure’s portfolio outperformed the CPI + 4% by 3.14% for the quarter and underperformed the CPI + 4% for the
year by 6.37%.

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

Last Quarter

5.29%

2.14%

Last Year

(2.75%)

3.62%

Last 3 Years

5.32% 5.14%

Last 5 Years

7.46%

5.80%

Last 6-1/2 Years

6.91%

6.06%

R
e

tu
rn

s

Infrastructure CPI + 4%

Relative Return vs CPI + 4%

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 15

Infrastructure

Annualized Six and One-Half Year Risk vs Return

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
5.8%

6.0%

6.2%

6.4%

6.6%

6.8%

7.0%

CPI + 4%

Infrastructure

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 78
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Macquarie European Infrastructure
Period Ended June 30, 2015

Investment Philosophy
The product was funded in the fourth quarter of 2008.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Macquarie European Infrastructure’s portfolio outperformed the CPI + 4% by 4.57% for the quarter and underperformed
the CPI + 4% for the year by 13.26%.

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

Last Quarter

6.71%

2.14%

Last Year

(9.64%)

3.62%

Last 3 Years

5.47% 5.14%

Last 5 Years

7.96%

5.80%

Last 6-1/2 Years

4.93%

6.06%

R
e

tu
rn

s

Macquarie European Infrastructure CPI + 4%

Relative Return vs CPI + 4%

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Macquarie European Infrastructure

Annualized Five Year Risk vs Return

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14
5.5%

6.0%

6.5%

7.0%

7.5%

8.0%

8.5%

Macquarie European Infrastructure

CPI + 4%

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 79
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



SteelRiver Infrastructure North America
Period Ended June 30, 2015

Investment Philosophy
The product was funded in the fourth quarter of 2008.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
SteelRiver Infrastructure North America’s portfolio outperformed the CPI + 4% by 1.65% for the quarter and
outperformed the CPI + 4% for the year by 2.35%.

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

Last Quarter

3.79%

2.14%

Last Year

5.97%

3.62%

Last 3 Years

5.22% 5.14%

Last 5 Years

7.01%

5.80%

Last 6-1/2 Years

9.82%

6.06%R
e

tu
rn

s

SteelRiver Infrastructure North America CPI + 4%

Relative Return vs CPI + 4%

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

SteelRiver Infrastructure North America

Annualized Five Year Risk vs Return

0 2 4 6 8 10
5.6%

5.8%

6.0%

6.2%

6.4%

6.6%

6.8%

7.0%

7.2%

SteelRiver Infrastructure North America

CPI + 4%

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 80
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



C
a

lla
n

 R
e

s
e

a
rc

h
/E

d
u

c
a

tio
n

Callan Research/Education



Ρεσεαρχη ανδ Εδυχατιοναλ Προγραmσ

Τηε Χαλλαν Ινϖεστmεντσ Ινστιτυτε προϖιδεσ ρεσεαρχη τηατ κεεπσ χλιεντσ υπδατεδ ον τηε λατεστ ινδυστρψ τρενδσ ωηιλε ηελπινγ τηεm λεαρν 

τηρουγη χαρεφυλλψ στρυχτυρεδ εδυχατιοναλ προγραmσ. 

Ρεχεντ Ρεσεαρχη

Πλεασε ϖισιτ ωωω.χαλλαν.χοm/ρεσεαρχη το σεε αλλ οφ ουρ πυβλιχατιονσ.

Στυχκ ιν τηε Μυδ ορ Ροαδ το Συχχεσσ? 

DΧ Πλανσ ανδ Φεε Λαωσυιτσ Τηισ χηαρτιχλε 

δεσχριβεσ σελεχτ φεε λαωσυιτσ ανδ βεστ πραχ−

τιχεσ το ηελπ πλαν σπονσορσ σταψ ον τηε πατη 

το συχχεσσ.

Αχτιϖε Σηαρε ανδ Προδυχτ Παιρσ Αναλψσισ Ιν τηισ παπερ, αυτηορ 

Γρεγ Αλλεν ισολατεσ τηε ιmπαχτ οφ αχτιϖε σηαρε ον περφορmανχε βψ 

φοχυσινγ ον �προδυχτ παιρσ.� 

Υ.Σ. Εθυιτψ Βενχηmαρκ Ρεϖιεω, Ψεαρ−Ενδ 2014 Τηισ δεταιλεδ 

ρεπορτ χοmπαρεσ ΧΡΣΠ, Ρυσσελλ, ανδ Σ&Π ινδιχεσ αλονγσιδε Χαλ−

λαν Αχτιϖε Μαναγερ Στψλε Γρουπσ.

Χαπιταλ Μαρκετ Ρεϖιεω, 1στ Θυαρτερ 2015 Α νεωσλεττερ προϖιδινγ  

ινσιγητσ ον τηε εχονοmψ ανδ ρεχεντ περφορmανχε ιν τηε εθυιτψ, 

ixed income, alternatives, and real estate markets. 

Ηεδγε Φυνδ Μονιτορ, 1στ Θυαρτερ 2015 Χοϖερ στορψ: Βριδγινγ 

τηε Γαπ: Μυλτι−Ασσετ Χλασσ Στρατεγιεσ.

Πριϖατε Μαρκετσ Τρενδσ, Σπρινγ 2015 Α θυαρτερλψ νεωσλεττερ τηατ 

δισχυσσεσ τηε mαρκετ ενϖιρονmεντ, ρεχεντ εϖεντσ, περφορmανχε, 

ανδ οτηερ ισσυεσ ινϖολϖινγ πριϖατε εθυιτψ.

DΧ Οβσερϖερ, 1στ Θυαρτερ 2015 Χοϖερ στορψ: Ισ Ψουρ Ταργετ Dατε 

Fund Suitable? Plus the Callan DC Index™.

Μαρκετ Πυλσε Φλιπβοοκ, 1στ Θυαρτερ 2015 Α ρεφερενχε γυιδε χοϖ−

ερινγ ινϖεστmεντ ανδ φυνδ σπονσορ τρενδσ ιν τηε Υ.Σ. εχονοmψ, 

U.S. and non-U.S. equities and ixed income, and alternatives.

Ινσιδε Χαλλαν�σ Dαταβασε, 1στ Θυαρτερ 2015 Τηισ ρεπορτ γραπησ 

περφορmανχε ανδ ρισκ δατα φροm Χαλλαν�σ προπριεταρψ δαταβασε 

αλονγσιδε ρελεϖαντ mαρκετ ινδιχεσ.

Ρεαλ Εστατε Ινδιχατορσ: Τοο Ηοτ το Τουχη ορ Χοολ Ενουγη το 

Ηανδλε? Σεε σεϖεν ινδιχατορσ τηατ ηαϖε ηελπεδ σιγναλ ωηεν τηε 

ινστιτυτιοναλ ρεαλ εστατε mαρκετ ισ οϖερηεατεδ ορ χοολεδ.

Τηε Γαmε οφ Ρετιρεmεντ�Ηελπινγ Εmπλοψεεσ Wιν Τηισ χηαρ−

τιχλε προϖιδεσ α ηιγη−λεϖελ λοοκ ατ τηε τηρεε γενερατιονσ DΧ πλαν 

σπονσορσ mυστ ταργετ ανδ ηοω βεστ το χοmmυνιχατε ωιτη τηεm.

Τηε Ινϖεστmεντ ςεηιχλε Οωνερ�σ Μανυαλ Τηισ χηαρτιχλε ηιγη−

λιγητσ τηε κεψ φεατυρεσ οφ σεϖεραλ ποπυλαρ ινϖεστmεντ ϖεηιχλεσ. Ιτ 

also encourages investors to consider six important questions 

ωηεν mακινγ αν ινϖεστmεντ ϖεηιχλε σελεχτιον.

2015 Deined Contribution Survey Χαλλαν�σ 

αννυαλ συρϖεψ οφ DΧ πλαν σπονσορσ ρεϖεαλσ 

τρενδσ ιν πλαν στρυχτυρε ανδ mαναγεmεντ. 

ΧΑΛΛΑΝ 

ΙΝςΕΣΤΜΕΝΤΣ 

ΙΝΣΤΙΤΥΤΕ

Εδυχατιον

2νδ Θυαρτερ 2015

The message is clear for deined contribution (DC) plan sponsors: follow 
best practices established for plan fees or risk getting stuck in a costly and 
time-consuming lawsuit. 

Nearly 40 401(k) fee lawsuits have been iled since 2006. The irst gen-
eration of lawsuits focused on revenue-sharing violations, failure to under-
stand speciic costs, and use of retail mutual funds in 401(k) lineups. Over 
time these lawsuits have expanded in scope, covering everything from the 
prudence of offering certain stable value funds to adherence to investment 
policy statements. 

In addition to monetary payments, settlements have typically included 
requirements to:
• Competitively bid plan recordkeeping services
• Engage an outside consultant
• Utilize institutional or retirement-share classes where possible
• Add passively managed funds to the lineup
• Comply with the Department of Labor’s participant disclosure regulation
 

In this charticle, Callan describes select DC fee lawsuits. We suggest best 
practices to help plan sponsors keep their plan on the path to success.

Μυδδψ Wατερσ 
Recent fee lawsuits that reached settlement
Amount of Settlement ($mm) vs. Duration of Lawsuit (years)

2 6 10 14
$0

$10

$20

$30

S
e

tt
le

m
e

n
t 

($
m

m
)

Years

Median = $15 Million

$120

$150

Λ
Α

W
Σ

Υ
ΙΤ

 

Σ
Π

Ο
Τ

Λ
ΙΓ

Η
Τ

Τιββλε ϖ. Εδισον

In May 2015, the U.S. Supreme Court reversed the Ninth Circuit Court 
of Appeals’ ruling that the 401(k) fee lawsuit of Tibble v. Edison Inter-
national was time-barred, remanding the case back to the Ninth Circuit 
Court of Appeals. The case dates back to 2007, when participants in the 
Edison 401(k) Savings Plan sued plan iduciaries for losses suffered due 
to breach of iduciary duty relating to mutual funds in the plan’s lineup. 
Plaintiffs argued that Edison iduciaries imprudently offered higher-priced 
retail-class mutual funds when materially identical, lower-priced institution-
al-class mutual funds were available. However, the defendants argued 
that ERISA requires a breach of iduciary duty complaint to be iled within 
six years, and the breach occurred when the funds in question had been 
initially added to the plan, which was more than six years before the com-
plaint was iled. The District Court agreed that the complaint was untimely 
and the Ninth Circuit afirmed. The Supreme Court’s decision focused on 
the failure by the Ninth Circuit to consider iduciaries’ ongoing obligation 
to monitor and remove imprudent investments. Fiduciaries must prudently 
select funds AND prudently revisit fund selection on an ongoing basis. 
For this reason, the Supreme Court remanded the case back to the Ninth 
Circuit to determine if a prudent review process had been in place. The 
Supreme Court expressed no view on the scope of respondents’ iduciary 
duty, leaving it to the Ninth Circuit to make this determination.

Dον�τ γετ βογγεδ δοων.  
Φεε Λαωσυιτσ = 
Τιmε + Μονεψ

Τακε  
αχτιον  
νοω.  

Πατη το  
Συχχεσσ =  
Βενχηmαρκινγ 
+ Ρεγυλαρ 
Dοχυmεντατιον

Ψεαρσ 

Λοστ

Αmουντ οφ λαργεστ φεε 

λαωσυιτ σεττλεmεντ  

το δατε

ΜΙΛΛΙΟΝ

Τηε mινιmυm 

νυmβερ οφ ψεαρσ 

τακεν το σεττλε α 

φεε λαωσυιτ

DΧ πλαν σπονσορσ 

τηατ ρεδυχεδ 

πλαν φεεσ αφτερ 

ρεϖιεωινγ τηεm 

Νο Ονε ισ Ιmmυνε: Λαωσυιτσ βψ Ινδυστρψ

Grocery 4.2%

Retail 4.2%

Robotics 4.2%

Paper 4.2%

Utility 4.2%

I.T. 4.2%

Healthcare 4.2%

Energy 4.2%

Education 4.2%

Automotive 8.3%

DC plan fee lawsuits have popped up across a diverse array of 
industries, as illustrated in this chart. 

Aerospace
25.0%

Finance 
16.7%

Construction
12.5%

DΧ Πλανσ ανδ Φεε Λαωσυιτσ

Stuck in the Mud or 

Road to Success? 

Sources: 401(k) Fee Cases, Groom Law Group, Chartered. January 27, 2015; 

Callan 2015 DC Trends Survey

2015 Deined Contribution Trends

ΧΑΛΛΑΝ 

ΙΝςΕΣΤΜΕΝΤΣ 

ΙΝΣΤΙΤΥΤΕ

  

Survey



�Wε τηινκ τηε βεστ ωαψ το λεαρν σοmετηινγ ισ το τεαχη ιτ. 

Εντρυστινγ χλιεντ εδυχατιον το ουρ χονσυλταντσ ανδ σπεχιαλιστσ 

ενσυρεσ τηατ τηεψ ηαϖε α τοταλ χοmmανδ οφ τηειρ συβϕεχτ 

mαττερ. Τηισ ισ ονε ρεασον ωηψ εδυχατιον ανδ ρεσεαρχη ηαϖε 

been cornerstones of our irm for more than 40 years.” 

Ρον Πεψτον, Χηαιρmαν ανδ ΧΕΟ

Χαλλαν Ινϖεστmεντσ Ινστιτυτε ανδ τηε �Χαλλαν Χολλεγε�

 

Εϖεντσ

Dιδ ψου mισσ ουτ ον α Χαλλαν χονφερενχε ορ ωορκσηοπ? Εϖεντ συm−

mαριεσ ανδ σπεακερσ� πρεσεντατιονσ αρε αϖαιλαβλε ον ουρ ωεβσιτε:  

ηττπσ://ωωω.χαλλαν.χοm/εδυχατιον/ΧΙΙ/ 

Τηε ϑυνε Ρεγιοναλ Wορκσηοπ�σ τοπιχ ωασ 

�Φιδυχιαρψ Τιδαλ Wαϖε: Ναϖιγατινγ DΧ�σ Υν−

χηαρτεδ Wατερσ.� Ουρ σπεακερσ ωερε Ροδ 

Βαρε, Χηιχαγο Φυνδ Σπονσορ Χονσυλτινγ; 

Lori Lucas, CFA, Deined Contribution Con−

συλτινγ; ανδ Υϖαν Τσενγ, ΧΦΑ, Σαν Φρανχισχο Φυνδ Σπονσορ 

Χονσυλτινγ.

Our next event is the Οχτοβερ Ρεγιοναλ Wορκσηοπ, το βε ηελδ 

Οχτοβερ 21 ιν Νεω Ψορκ ανδ Οχτοβερ 22 ιν Ατλαντα. Σταψ τυνεδ 

φορ τοπιχ ανδ σπεακερ δεταιλσ! Αλσο, σαϖε τηε δατε φορ ουρ αννυαλ 

Νατιοναλ Χονφερενχε in San Francisco, January 25-27, 2016.

Φορ mορε ινφορmατιον αβουτ ρεσεαρχη ορ εδυχατιοναλ 

εϖεντσ, πλεασε χονταχτ Ραψ Χοmβσ: ινστιτυτε≅χαλλαν.χοm ορ 

415.974.5060

Τηε Χεντερ φορ Ινϖεστmεντ Τραινινγ  

Εδυχατιοναλ Σεσσιονσ

Τηε Χεντερ φορ Ινϖεστmεντ Τραινινγ, βεττερ κνοων ασ τηε �Χαλλαν 

Χολλεγε,� προϖιδεσ α φουνδατιον οφ κνοωλεδγε φορ ινδυστρψ προφεσ−

σιοναλσ ωηο αρε ινϖολϖεδ ιν τηε ινϖεστmεντ δεχισιον−mακινγ προ−

cess. It was founded in 1994 to provide clients and non-clients alike 
with basic- to intermediate-level instruction. Our next session is:

Ιντροδυχτιον το Ινϖεστmεντσ

Χηιχαγο, Οχτοβερ 27−28, 2015

Τηισ σεσσιον φαmιλιαριζεσ φυνδ σπονσορ τρυστεεσ, σταφφ, ανδ ασσετ 

mαναγεmεντ αδϖισορσ ωιτη βασιχ ινϖεστmεντ τηεορψ, τερmινολογψ, 

ανδ πραχτιχεσ. Ιτ λαστσ ονε−ανδ−α−ηαλφ δαψσ ανδ ισ δεσιγνεδ φορ ιν−

dividuals who have less than two years of experience with asset-
mαναγεmεντ οϖερσιγητ ανδ/ορ συππορτ ρεσπονσιβιλιτιεσ. Τυιτιον φορ 

the Introductory “Callan College” session is $2,350 per person. 
Τυιτιον ινχλυδεσ ινστρυχτιον, αλλ mατεριαλσ, βρεακφαστ ανδ λυνχη ον 

each day, and dinner on the irst evening with the instructors.

Χυστοmιζεδ Σεσσιονσ

Τηε �Χαλλαν Χολλεγε� ισ εθυιππεδ το χυστοmιζε α χυρριχυλυm το 

meet the training and educational needs of a speciic organization.
Τηεσε ταιλορεδ σεσσιονσ ρανγε φροm βασιχ το αδϖανχεδ ανδ χαν 

take place anywhere—even at your ofice.

Λεαρν mορε ατ ηττπσ://ωωω.χαλλαν.χοm/εδυχατιον/χολλεγε/ ορ 

χονταχτ Κατηλεεν Χυννιε: 415.274.3029 / χυννιε≅χαλλαν.χοm

ΧΑΛΛΑΝ

ΙΝςΕΣΤΜΕΝΤΣ

ΙΝΣΤΙΤΥΤΕ

Ναϖιγατινγ DΧ�σ Υνχηαρτεδ Wατερσ

Φιδυχιαρψ Τιδαλ Wαϖε

Ροδ Βαρε

Χηιχαγο Φυνδ Σπονσορ Χονσυλτινγ

Υϖαν Τσενγ, ΧΦΑ

Σαν Φρανχισχο Φυνδ Σπονσορ 

Χονσυλτινγ

Λορι Λυχασ, ΧΦΑ

Dεφινεδ Χοντριβυτιον Χονσυλτινγ

2015 Ρεγιοναλ Wορκσηοπσ

ϑυνε 17 � Χηιχαγο, ΙΛ

ϑυνε 18 � Σαν Φρανχισχο, ΧΑ

Υνιθυε πιεχεσ οφ ρεσεαρχη τηε 

Ινστιτυτε γενερατεσ εαχη ψεαρ50+

Τοταλ αττενδεεσ οφ τηε �Χαλλαν 

College” since 19943,300 Ψεαρ τηε Χαλλαν Ινϖεστmεντσ 

Ινστιτυτε ωασ φουνδεδ1980

Αττενδεεσ (ον αϖεραγε) οφ τηε 

Ινστιτυτε�σ αννυαλ Νατιοναλ Χονφερενχε500

Εδυχατιον: Βψ τηε Νυmβερσ



D
is

c
lo

s
u

re
s

Disclosures



 

List of Managers That Do Business with Callan Associates Inc. 

Confidential – For Callan Client Use Only 

Callan takes its fiduciary and disclosure responsibilities to clients very seriously.  The list below is compiled and updated quarterly because we believe 
our fund sponsor clients should have a clear understanding of the investment management organizations that do business with our firm.  As of 06/30/15. 
Callan provided educational, consulting, software, database, or reporting services to this list of managers through one or more of the following business 
units:  Institutional Consulting Group, Independent Adviser Group and Fund Sponsor Consulting.  Given the complex corporate and organizational 
ownership structures of investment management firms, parent and affiliate firm relationships are not listed here.  The client list below may include names 
of parent companies who allow their affiliates to use some of the services included in their client contract (eg, educational services including published 
research and attendance at conferences and workshops). Affiliates will not be listed if they don’t separately contract with Callan.  Per strict policy these 
manager relationships do not affect the outcome or process by which any of Callan’s services are conducted. 
 
Fund sponsor clients may request a copy of this list at any time.  Fund sponsor clients may also request specific information regarding the fees paid to 
Callan by the managers employed by their fund. Per company policy, information requests regarding fees are handled exclusively by Callan’s 
Compliance Department. 
 
Clients should also be aware that Callan maintains an asset management division, the Trust Advisory Group (TAG). TAG specializes in the design, 
implementation and on-going management of multi-manager portfolios for institutional investors. Please refer to Callan’s ADV Part 2A for a complete 
listing of TAG’s portfolios. We are happy to provide clients with more specific information regarding TAG, including detail on the portfolios it 
oversees.  Per company policy these requests are handled by TAG’s senior management. 
 

 

 

Quarterly List as of  

June 30, 2015

Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 6/30/15 

Manager Name Educational Services Consulting Services 
1607 Capital Partners, LLC  Y 
Aberdeen Asset Management Y Y 
Acadian Asset Management, Inc. Y  
Advisory Research Y  
Affiliated Managers Group  Y 
AllianceBernstein Y  
Allianz Global Investors U.S. LLC Y Y 
Allianz Life Insurance Company of North America  Y 
Altrinsic Global Advisors, LLC  Y 
American Century Investment Management Y  
Analytic Investors Y  
Apollo Global Management Y  
AQR Capital Management Y  
Ares Management Y  
Ariel Investments Y  
Aristotle Capital Management Y  
Aronson + Johnson + Ortiz Y  
Artisan Holdings  Y 
Atlanta Capital Management Co., L.L.C. Y Y 
Aviva Investors Y  
AXA Rosenberg Investment Management Y  
Babson Capital Management LLC Y  
Baillie Gifford International LLC  Y Y 
Baird Advisors Y Y 
Bank of America  Y 
Baring Asset Management Y  
Baron Capital Management Y  
BlackRock Y  
BMO Asset Management Y  
BNP Paribas Investment Partners Y  
BNY Mellon Asset Management Y Y 
Boston Company Asset Management, LLC (The) Y Y 



List of Managers That Do Business with Callan Associates Inc. (continued) 

Confidential – For Callan Client Use Only 

Callan takes its fiduciary and disclosure responsibilities to clients very seriously.  The list below is compiled and updated quarterly because we believe 
our fund sponsor clients should have a clear understanding of the investment management organizations that do business with our firm.  As of 06/30/15, 
Callan provided educational, consulting, software, database, or reporting services to this list of managers through one or more of the following business 
units:  Institutional Consulting Group, Independent Adviser Group and Fund Sponsor Consulting.  Given the complex corporate and organizational 
ownership structures of investment management firms, parent and affiliate firm relationships are not listed here.  The client list below may include names 
of parent companies who allow their affiliates to use some of the services included in their client contract (eg, educational services including published 
research and attendance at conferences and workshops). Affiliates will not be listed if they don’t separately contract with Callan.  Per strict policy these 
manager relationships do not affect the outcome or process by which any of Callan’s services are conducted. 
 
Fund sponsor clients may request a copy of this list at any time.  Fund sponsor clients may also request specific information regarding the fees paid to 
Callan by the managers employed by their fund. Per company policy, information requests regarding fees are handled exclusively by Callan’s 
Compliance Department. 
 
Clients should also be aware that Callan maintains an asset management division, the Trust Advisory Group (TAG). TAG specializes in the design, 
implementation and on-going management of multi-manager portfolios for institutional investors. Please refer to Callan’s ADV Part 2A for a complete 
listing of TAG’s portfolios. We are happy to provide clients with more specific information regarding TAG, including detail on the portfolios it 
oversees.  Per company policy these requests are handled by TAG’s senior management. 
 

 

 
Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 6/30/15 

Manager Name Educational Services Consulting Services 

Boston Partners  Y Y 

Brandes Investment Partners, L.P. Y Y 

Brandywine Global Investment Management, LLC Y  

Brown Brothers Harriman & Company Y  

Cadence Capital Management Y  

Capital Group Y  

CastleArk Management, LLC  Y 

Causeway Capital Management Y  

Central Plains Advisors, Inc.  Y 

Chartwell Investment Partners Y  

ClearBridge Investments, LLC (fka ClearBridge Advisors) Y  

Cohen & Steers Y Y 

Columbia Management Investment Advisors, LLC Y Y 

Columbus Circle Investors Y Y 

Corbin Capital Partners Y  

Cornerstone Investment Partners, LLC Y  

Cramer Rosenthal McGlynn, LLC Y  

Crawford Investment Council  Y 

Credit Suisse Asset Management Y  

Crestline Investors Y Y 

Cutwater Asset Management Y  

DB Advisors Y Y 

DE Shaw Investment Management LLC Y  

Delaware Investments Y Y 

DePrince, Race & Zollo, Inc. Y Y 

Deutsche Asset  & Wealth Management Y Y 

Diamond Hill Investments Y  

Donald Smith & Co., Inc. Y  

DSM Capital Partners  Y 

Duff & Phelps Investment Mgmt. Y Y 

Eagle Asset Management, Inc.  Y 

EARNEST Partners, LLC Y  

Eaton Vance Management Y Y 

Epoch Investment Partners Y  

Fayez Sarofim & Company  Y 

Federated Investors  Y 

Fir Tree Partners Y  

First Eagle Investment Management Y  

First Hawaiian Bank  Y 

First State Investments Y  

Fisher Investments Y  

Franklin Templeton   Y Y 



List of Managers That Do Business with Callan Associates Inc. (continued) 

Confidential – For Callan Client Use Only 

Callan takes its fiduciary and disclosure responsibilities to clients very seriously.  The list below is compiled and updated quarterly because we believe 
our fund sponsor clients should have a clear understanding of the investment management organizations that do business with our firm.  As of 06/30/15, 
Callan provided educational, consulting, software, database, or reporting services to this list of managers through one or more of the following business 
units:  Institutional Consulting Group, Independent Adviser Group and Fund Sponsor Consulting.  Given the complex corporate and organizational 
ownership structures of investment management firms, parent and affiliate firm relationships are not listed here.  The client list below may include names 
of parent companies who allow their affiliates to use some of the services included in their client contract (eg, educational services including published 
research and attendance at conferences and workshops). Affiliates will not be listed if they don’t separately contract with Callan.  Per strict policy these 
manager relationships do not affect the outcome or process by which any of Callan’s services are conducted. 
 
Fund sponsor clients may request a copy of this list at any time.  Fund sponsor clients may also request specific information regarding the fees paid to 
Callan by the managers employed by their fund. Per company policy, information requests regarding fees are handled exclusively by Callan’s 
Compliance Department. 
 
Clients should also be aware that Callan maintains an asset management division, the Trust Advisory Group (TAG). TAG specializes in the design, 
implementation and on-going management of multi-manager portfolios for institutional investors. Please refer to Callan’s ADV Part 2A for a complete 
listing of TAG’s portfolios. We are happy to provide clients with more specific information regarding TAG, including detail on the portfolios it 
oversees.  Per company policy these requests are handled by TAG’s senior management. 
 

 

 
Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 6/30/15 

Manager Name Educational Services Consulting Services 

Fred Alger Management Co., Inc. Y  

Fuller & Thaler Asset Management Y  

GAM (USA) Inc. Y  

Garcia Hamilton  & Associates Y  

GE Asset Management Y Y 

Geneva Capital Management Y  

Goldman Sachs Asset Management Y Y 

Grand-Jean Capital Management Y Y 

GMO (fka Grantham, Mayo, Van Otterloo & Co., LLC) Y  

Great Lakes Advisors, Inc.  Y 

The Guardian Life Insurance Company of America  Y 

Guggenheim Investments Asset Management (fka Security Global) Y  

The Hampshire Companies Y  

Harbor Capital  Y 

Hartford Funds Y  

Hartford Investment Management Co. Y Y 

Heightman Capital Management Corporation  Y 

Henderson Global Investors Y Y 

Hotchkis & Wiley Y  

HSBC Global Asset Management Y  

Income Research & Management Y  

Insight Investment Management  Y 

Institutional Capital LLC Y  

INTECH Investment Management Y  

Invesco Y Y 

Investec Asset Management Y  

Jacobs Levy Equity Management  Y 

Janus Capital Group (fka Janus Capital Management, LLC) Y Y 

Jensen Investment Management  Y 

J.M. Hartwell Y  

J.P. Morgan Asset Management Y Y 

KeyCorp  Y 

Lazard Asset Management Y Y 

Lee Munder Capital Group Y  

Legal & General Investment Management America Y  

Lincoln National Corporation  Y 

Logan Circle Partners, L.P. Y  

The London Company Y  

Longview Partners Y  

Loomis, Sayles & Company, L.P. Y Y 

Lord Abbett & Company Y Y 

Los Angeles Capital Management Y  



List of Managers That Do Business with Callan Associates Inc. (continued) 

Confidential – For Callan Client Use Only 

Callan takes its fiduciary and disclosure responsibilities to clients very seriously.  The list below is compiled and updated quarterly because we believe 
our fund sponsor clients should have a clear understanding of the investment management organizations that do business with our firm.  As of 06/30/15, 
Callan provided educational, consulting, software, database, or reporting services to this list of managers through one or more of the following business 
units:  Institutional Consulting Group, Independent Adviser Group and Fund Sponsor Consulting.  Given the complex corporate and organizational 
ownership structures of investment management firms, parent and affiliate firm relationships are not listed here.  The client list below may include names 
of parent companies who allow their affiliates to use some of the services included in their client contract (eg, educational services including published 
research and attendance at conferences and workshops). Affiliates will not be listed if they don’t separately contract with Callan.  Per strict policy these 
manager relationships do not affect the outcome or process by which any of Callan’s services are conducted. 
 
Fund sponsor clients may request a copy of this list at any time.  Fund sponsor clients may also request specific information regarding the fees paid to 
Callan by the managers employed by their fund. Per company policy, information requests regarding fees are handled exclusively by Callan’s 
Compliance Department. 
 
Clients should also be aware that Callan maintains an asset management division, the Trust Advisory Group (TAG). TAG specializes in the design, 
implementation and on-going management of multi-manager portfolios for institutional investors. Please refer to Callan’s ADV Part 2A for a complete 
listing of TAG’s portfolios. We are happy to provide clients with more specific information regarding TAG, including detail on the portfolios it 
oversees.  Per company policy these requests are handled by TAG’s senior management. 
 

 

 
Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 6/30/15 

Manager Name Educational Services Consulting Services 

LSV Asset Management Y  

Lyrical Partners Y  

MacKay Shields LLC Y Y 

Mackenzie Investments  Y 

Man Investments Y  

Manulife Asset Management Y  

Martin Currie Y  

Marvin & Palmer Associates, Inc. Y  

MFS Investment Management Y Y 

MidFirst Bank  Y 

Mondrian Investment Partners Limited Y Y 

Montag & Caldwell, Inc. Y Y 

Morgan Stanley Alternative Investment Partners Y  

Morgan Stanley Investment Management Y Y 

Mount Lucas Management LP Y  

Mountain Lake Investment Management LLC  Y 

MUFG Union Bank, N.A.  Y 

Neuberger Berman, LLC (fka, Lehman Brothers) Y Y 

Newton Capital Management Y  

Northern Lights Capital Group  Y 

Northern Trust Global Investment Services Y Y 

Nuveen Investments Institutional Services Group LLC Y  

Old Mutual Asset Management Y Y 

OppenheimerFunds, Inc. Y  

Pacific Investment Management Company Y  

Palisade Capital Management LLC Y  

Paradigm Asset Management Y  

Parametric Portfolio Associates Y  

Peregrine Capital Management, Inc. Y Y 

Philadelphia International Advisors, LP Y  

PineBridge Investments (formerly AIG) Y  

Pinnacle Asset Management Y  

Pioneer Investment Management, Inc. Y  

PNC Capital Advisors (fka Allegiant Asset Mgmt) Y Y 

Polen Capital Management Y  

Principal Financial Group  Y 

Principal Global Investors Y Y 

Private Advisors Y  

Prudential Fixed Income Management Y  

Prudential Investment Management, Inc. Y Y 

Putnam Investments, LLC Y Y 

Pyramis Global Advisors Y  



List of Managers That Do Business with Callan Associates Inc. (continued) 

Confidential – For Callan Client Use Only 

Callan takes its fiduciary and disclosure responsibilities to clients very seriously.  The list below is compiled and updated quarterly because we believe 
our fund sponsor clients should have a clear understanding of the investment management organizations that do business with our firm.  As of 06/30/15, 
Callan provided educational, consulting, software, database, or reporting services to this list of managers through one or more of the following business 
units:  Institutional Consulting Group, Independent Adviser Group and Fund Sponsor Consulting.  Given the complex corporate and organizational 
ownership structures of investment management firms, parent and affiliate firm relationships are not listed here.  The client list below may include names 
of parent companies who allow their affiliates to use some of the services included in their client contract (eg, educational services including published 
research and attendance at conferences and workshops). Affiliates will not be listed if they don’t separately contract with Callan.  Per strict policy these 
manager relationships do not affect the outcome or process by which any of Callan’s services are conducted. 
 
Fund sponsor clients may request a copy of this list at any time.  Fund sponsor clients may also request specific information regarding the fees paid to 
Callan by the managers employed by their fund. Per company policy, information requests regarding fees are handled exclusively by Callan’s 
Compliance Department. 
 
Clients should also be aware that Callan maintains an asset management division, the Trust Advisory Group (TAG). TAG specializes in the design, 
implementation and on-going management of multi-manager portfolios for institutional investors. Please refer to Callan’s ADV Part 2A for a complete 
listing of TAG’s portfolios. We are happy to provide clients with more specific information regarding TAG, including detail on the portfolios it 
oversees.  Per company policy these requests are handled by TAG’s senior management. 
 

 

 
Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 6/30/15 

Manager Name Educational Services Consulting Services 

Rainier Investment Management Y  

RBC Global Asset Management (U.S.) Inc.  Y 

Research Affiliates  Y 

Regions Financial Corporation  Y 

RCM  Y 

Rothschild Asset Management, Inc. Y Y 

RS Investments Y  

Russell Investment Management Y  

Sankaty Advisors, LLC Y  

Santander Global Facilities  Y 

Schroder Investment Management North America Inc. Y Y 

Scout Investments Y  

SEI Investments  Y 

SEIX Investment Advisors, Inc. Y  

Select Equity Group Y  

Smith Affiliated Capital Corporation Y  

Smith Graham and Company  Y 

Smith Group Asset Management  Y 

Standard Life Investments Y  

Standish (fka, Standish Mellon Asset Management) Y  

State Street Global Advisors Y  

Stone Harbor Investment Partners, L.P. Y Y 

Systematic Financial Management Y  

T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. Y Y 

Taplin, Canida & Habacht Y  

Timberland Investment Resources Y  

TCW Asset Management Company Y  

Thompson, Siegel & Walmsley LLC Y  

UBS Y Y 

USAA Real Estate Company Y  

Van Eck Y  

Versus Capital Group  Y 

Victory Capital Management Inc. Y  

Vontobel Asset Management Y  

Voya Investment Management Y Y 

Vulcan Value Partners, LLC  Y 

Waddell & Reed Asset Management Group Y Y 

WCM Investment Management Y  

WEDGE Capital Management  Y 

Wellington Management Company, LLP Y  

Wells Capital Management Y  

Wells Fargo Private Bank  Y 



List of Managers That Do Business with Callan Associates Inc. (continued) 

Confidential – For Callan Client Use Only 

Callan takes its fiduciary and disclosure responsibilities to clients very seriously.  The list below is compiled and updated quarterly because we believe 
our fund sponsor clients should have a clear understanding of the investment management organizations that do business with our firm.  As of 06/30/15, 
Callan provided educational, consulting, software, database, or reporting services to this list of managers through one or more of the following business 
units:  Institutional Consulting Group, Independent Adviser Group and Fund Sponsor Consulting.  Given the complex corporate and organizational 
ownership structures of investment management firms, parent and affiliate firm relationships are not listed here.  The client list below may include names 
of parent companies who allow their affiliates to use some of the services included in their client contract (eg, educational services including published 
research and attendance at conferences and workshops). Affiliates will not be listed if they don’t separately contract with Callan.  Per strict policy these 
manager relationships do not affect the outcome or process by which any of Callan’s services are conducted. 
 
Fund sponsor clients may request a copy of this list at any time.  Fund sponsor clients may also request specific information regarding the fees paid to 
Callan by the managers employed by their fund. Per company policy, information requests regarding fees are handled exclusively by Callan’s 
Compliance Department. 
 
Clients should also be aware that Callan maintains an asset management division, the Trust Advisory Group (TAG). TAG specializes in the design, 
implementation and on-going management of multi-manager portfolios for institutional investors. Please refer to Callan’s ADV Part 2A for a complete 
listing of TAG’s portfolios. We are happy to provide clients with more specific information regarding TAG, including detail on the portfolios it 
oversees.  Per company policy these requests are handled by TAG’s senior management. 
 

 

 
Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 6/30/15 

Manager Name Educational Services Consulting Services 

Western Asset Management Company Y  

William Blair & Co., Inc. Y Y 
 



Item B5













Item E1





























































Item B5













Item E1





























































Item E2




	City Hall, 255 West Alameda
	Tucson, Arizona 85701



